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EGYPT: PORT SAID SALINES PLANT 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION 

1. GRANTEE The Government of Egypt (GOE) 
2. EXECUTING ENTITY: 
 El Nasr Salines Company
 
3. AMOUNT OF GRANT: $13,000,000 (Thirteen Million Dollars)
 
4. TERMS: (Two Step Grant/Reloan Arrangement)
 

To the Government: 
 Grant
To El Nasr Salines Co.: 
 Loan from the GOE 
- Fifteen (15) years

maturity, including a 
5-year grace
period on the repayment of principal
with interest of 10% for the entire 15­year period.


5. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: 
 The pdrpose of the project isto reconstruct
the Port Said Salines Plant located at Port Said, Egypt. 
The project
will provide for an increase inproduction of salt for the domestic mar­ket and possibly the export market with attendant increases inforeign
exchange earnings. 
A.I.Do. will provide foreign exchange to be used for
procurement of various kinds of equipment required for the salt plant,
construction materials, and technical assistance.
 
6. GRANT APPLICATION: Since this isa project inthe Suez Reconstruction
area, the Government of Egypt has requested A.I.D. to provide U.S. $13
million on a
grat basis to finanxe the U.S. share of the foreign exchange
costs of the projec .
 eeAnnex
7. MISSION VIEW: . S
Cairo Mission recommends authorization of the proposed
grant. 
 See Annex C.
 
8. SOURCE OF U.S. FUNDS: 
 Fiscal year 1977 Supporting Assistance.
 
9. STATUTORY CRITERIA: 
 Satisfied. 
See Statutory Checklist, Annex D.
 

10. RECOMMENDATION: 
 That a 
Grant inthe amount of $13,000,000 be
authorized on terms and conditions set forth inthe Draft Grant Authori­zation, Annex B.
 

IT. PROJECT COMMITTEES:
 

USAID/CAIRO
 

Chairperson 
 Charles J. Patalive
Engineer 
 Philip S. Lewis
Economist 
 James Norris
Program Officer 
 George A. Laudato
Legal Advisor 
 James R. Phippard
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AID/WASHINGTON 

Chairperson 
Project Officer 
Desk Officer 

Thomas A. Sterner 
Gary R. Redman 
James R.Roberts 

Engineer 
Legal Advisor 

James Cooperman 
Robert B.Meighan 
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r. ,NTRODUCTION 

1.07 
 El Nasr Salines Company (El Nasr) an operating Egyptian Company wholly.
 
owned by the Government of the Arab RepubTic of Egypt (GOE)sible for maneging five salt production comapnial. is respon­
wars- Prior to 

The salt plantlocated at Port Said was partially destroyed inthe 1967 and 19731967 Salt Operations had been carried out on a 
continual basis since the late 1890's, E7 Hasr now pTans to re-establish

the Port Said Plant and modernize its operations through the additionof new material handling and salt washing and refining equipment.addition to various vehicle needs, El Nasr plans includes the construc­
tion of a 	 In
salt refinery and storage area, a
stacking equipment, a 
 salt washing facility,
new pump house to bring Mediterranean Sea water
 
into the plants concentration ponds, a 
vehicle and equipment maintenance

workshop, and the construction of approximately five-new concentration
Ponds.
 

1.02 The.GOE has requested,.a grant of $13 million to finance- the foreignend modernization of the P',rt Said Plant. 

exchange costs of the goods and services required for the reconstruction 
The application letter isattached as Annex A.
1.03 
STY Incorporated, A U.S. consulting ingineering f1rm. and A.I.D.'5

requirements contractor for industrial projects, has completed a study
 
to determine the technical feasibility of reconstruction of the Port 
Said Plant and concluded that reconstruction istechnically sound.the Mission staff analyzing data provided by the El Furtber,
and STv Inc. has concluded that the project is both 

Nasr Sarines Company 

1.04 	 financially feasible.-- economically and 
The assistance will be A.r.O.,s third project -.tosector. 	 ryp.'s IndustrialPreviousWeaving Company assistance was Provided to the Misr Spinning andGrant 263-0012) Loan 263-K-033) 


assistance 
(AID 

and the Suez Cement Company (AID
to 
The Project, being financed as a grant, continues A.I.D.te reconstruction of the Suez Canal area, a of the A.I.D. program. focal pointPrevious assistance to the Suez Canal area
 

included Electrical Distribution (AID Grant 263-0001); Road Building

Equipment (AID Grant 263-,0004); and Ismalia Steam Power Plant (AID Grant263-0009); and Suez Cement Co. 
(AID Grant 263-0012).
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II. BACKGROUND
 

A. USES OF SALT
 
2.01 
 There are literally thousands of uses of salt and it ispossible to
discuss only the major ones. 
Technologically, the most important
reactions of salt are those in which it isused as a starting material
for the production of other materials, many of which are bases to
produce still other chemicals. 
Salt is the raw material for almost
all chemicals containing sodium or chlorine.
 
2.02 
Salt is used in the meat, canning, baking, fishing, dairy, and other
f6 d--processing industries. 
 Inthe field of agriculture, salt provides
the ideal carrier for supplying minerals and trace elements in the
diet of animals. 
The use of salt isalso important in leather tanning
(for prevention of bacterial decomposition in hides), in textile
dyeing (for standardizing the strength of individual batches of dye
and for setting the dye into the fiber), in soapmaking (for separation
of soap from water and glycerine), in pulp and paper manufacturing
(as a precipitant for waterproofing compositions and for electrolytic
generation of chlorine bleach), in metallurgy (for descaling and for
fluxes and fused-salt baths), in ceramics (for surface vitrification
of heated clay), in rubber manufacturing (for salting out rubber from
latex), in refrigeration (either as saltice mixtures for direct cooling
or in the form of brine pumped as a refrigerant) and in the petroleum
industry (for inhibiting fermentation of starch in well-drilling mud
and for preventing dissolution of rock salt strata during the drilling
operation).
 

2.03 
 Given the fact that salt iss~uh a basic chemical in almost all 
indus­tries, its historical rate of consumption 
 inall countries parallels
the rate of increase of gross national product.
 

B. METHODSOF 
PRODUCTION
 
2.04 
Salt is recovered by three methods: 
 (1)Shaft mining, (2)Solution
mining and (3)Solar evaporation. 
In thaft 
 ing, salt is mined
using methods very similar to those use--n 'coal mining.
is sunk to a rock-salt vein. A shaft
Well-establi:hed techniques of under­cutting, side shearing, drilllng, blasting, loading and transporting
are used to remove the salt from the deposit for further processing.

2.05 
In solution 
 ning, silt brine isobtained for further processing by
pumpdng water into..a rock-salt deposit, disolving the salt, and
bringing brine to the surface.
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2.06 
The third method and historically the oldest issolar evaporation. 
 It
isbasically a fractional crystallization process using tesnas a
source of energy.

pond areas. 

Seawater isbrought to saturation inconcentration
Further evaporation incrystallizing areas results in thecrystallization of salt, which accumulates ina-ed on the floor of the
crystallizing pan. 
 The major brine constituents other than salt remain
in the solution and are discarded as bitterns. 
The salt crop isrecovered with special equipment inan operation called harvesting.The harvested salt iswashed and stock piled.
cessed ina 	
Itisthen further pro­plant by drying, crushing and screening.
 

2.07 
Inthe United States only about five percent of the total salt produc­tion comes from the solar process. Worldwide, solar salt accounts for
close to 50 percent of the world's salt production. InEgypt the
availability of sea water from the Mediterranean and the hot climate
make the solar process an ideal method.
 

C. HISTORY OF SALT PROGUCTION INEGYPT
 
2.08 	The production of salt inEgypt by the soidr salt method dates back in'
1895. 
From 1895 until 1961 the ownership of salt production companies
inEgypt went from'total foreign ownership to combinations of joint
Egyptian-foreign ownership to GOE nationalization. 
Currently, the
majority of salt produced inthe ARE is harvested and processed by.
El Nasr Salines, a public sector-company. El Nasr ismade up cf fiveoperating companies and produces approximately 95% of Egypt's totalsalt. 
Four of these companies are located along Egypt's Mediterranean
coastline. 
These 	plants are El Mex (Alexandria), Port Said, Baltim
and Edko. 
The fifth salt plant is inthe country's interior at El
Natron.
 
2.09 	Historically, Egypt has been one of the largest producers of salt in
the Mediterranean area. 
Ithas been not only self-sufficient insalt,
but has exported salt as well. 
 The El Nasr Salines Company isres­ponsible for providing both edible and industrial salt for domestic
use, and isthe sole exporter of salt in Egypt. 
 During the period
between 1961 and the 1967 war, El Nasr exported more salt than itsold
domestically. 
Salt exports decreased sharply after the war because
of the destruction of the Port Said Plant which limited total produc-

­
tion. Production inrecent years has continued to meet domestic salt
demand but exports have been minimal (2%).
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III. THE PROJECT
 

3.01 
 The purpose of the project is to reconstruct the Port Said Salines Plant
so that itwill help provide a 
portion of Egypt's projected increased
requirement of salt.
 

3.02 
The project provides for the reconstruction of tile El Nasr Salines
Company's solar salt plant located at Port Said, Egypt. 
The new faci­lity will permit the annual production of approximately 165,000 metric
tons of high quality salt. 
The A.I.D. assistance will finance the
foreign exchange costs of the required salt water pumping 
,(aliion,
salt harvesting equipment, salt washing and stockpiling equipment, a
salt refinery, materials handling equipment, certain construction
materials and U.S. technical services. 
 The estimated foreign exchange
costs is $13.0 million.
 

3.03 
The Egyptian pound costs of the project will be financed by the El
Salines Company. These cost- include all 
Nasr
 

civil works and plant construc­tion and are estimated at about L.E. 4.0'($5.72mnillion). El
Nasr has already pnstructed certain of the required civil works, inclu­ding a new laboratory/administration building, a 
garage, and a guest

house.
 

3.04 
As more fully explained in later sections, two sets of production and sales
figures are used inthe project paper. 
The Technical Analysis section
shows a gross salt harvest of 175,000 tons per year and a 
net sales
production of 155,000 tons per year; the difference represents produc­tion process losses. 
 The Financial Analysis and the Economic Considera­tions sections of the paper use gross salt harvest of 165,000 tons
per year and sales production of 145,000 tons per year. 
The disparity
between the amounts results from a question of additional land avail­ability utilized inthe preconcentration process. 
In the interest of
conservatism, the lower sales figures were used for profit and economic

considerations.
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IV. ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT
 

A. El-Nasr Salines 

1. General
 
4.01. 
 El Nasr iscurrently made UP of five operating companies:
Port Said, Baltime, Edko, and El Natron. El Mek
The El 
Mex and Port Said
plants provided 98% of El-Nasr's 1974 salt production and a7re,_
fore, more influential inmatters affecting company Policy. 


re.
 
Although
Port Said Salines has no salt production machinery, itcurrently
has sufficient capacity to pump seawater into some of the ponds.
tonnage referred to above represents the quantity of raw salt har-

The
 
vested as a 
result of this limited capability.


4.02 
 El Nasr's organization chart ispresented inAnnex F-1.
the &oard of El Nasr iscomposed of a 
Briefly,


Chairman, four Executive Direc­tors, and four members elected from among the workers. Under Egyptian
Law, all public sector companies must include representatives from
labor. 
There isno outside representation on the Board. 
 Each of the
Executive Directors brings to the Board his knowledge and experience
inhis particular area of responsibility 
 namely, Administration,
Commerical Affairs, Financing, and Engineering.
important matters are taken by a 
Decisions on all
majority vote during the Board's
monthly meetings.
 

2. Management
 
4.03 
 Inother developing countries, public sector companies are generally
inefficient and are managed by a
servants. group of less than qualified civil
El Nasr's management, on the other hand, ishighly capable
and experienced in the salt industry. 
Both USAID and STV, Inc., 
are
highly impressed by the quality of the El Nasr management. 
The
"esprit de corps" among the managerial group appears to be high.
isparticularly impressive as public sector companies inEgypt operate
 

This
under a disadvantage inthat management salaries are fixed by the
GOE and are quite low.
 

3. CompanyStaff
 
4.04 
El Nasr currently employs 1500 people of which a
have college degrees. little more than 13%
It isprojected that inthe mid-1980's El Nasr
will employ 2500 people as a 
result of expansion of the El Mex Plant,
reconstruction of the Port Said Plant, and the planned addition of
a 
plant at Lake Quarun.
 

4. GOE Role in El Nasr
 
4.05 
The GOE exercises substadtial control over El Nasr and other public
sector companies, mainly through the GOE's price-fixing mechanism.
Egyptian labor wage structure:rests The
on legislation establishing the
 



Page 8 of 54
 
minimum wate, rate both in public and private sector.. Currently this wa~e
rate is L. E. 14 (about $20) per month, but a proposal to increase this
level to LE 21 
isunder consideration by the GOE. 
Wage increases are
not formally linked to increases in productivity but tend to be awarded
to keep up with the rising cost of living.
 

4.06 
 Inregard to salt pricing, the GOE sets the price of packed milled salt
and packed coarse salt-grades used by and large by the general populace.
However, El 
Nasr is free to set prices on all other grades of salt in
domestic sales. 
All export prices of salt are also determined by El
Nasr.
 

4.07 
All plans for expansion, and modernization of El 
Nasr salt plants
require GOE approval. 
The GOE, however, does not interfere with El
Nasr's internal policies and operations.
 

B. Port Said Salines
 
4.08 
Port Said is the second largest operating company under El
organization chart is presented as Annex F-2. 

Nasr. It's
 
The significance of its
operations is certain to increase i5e6 near future both as a result of
this project and the fact that El Nasr is losing the three small saline
companies, Baltime, Edko and El Natron, to a government agricultural
land recalmatlon project.
 

4.09 
As a public sector operating company, the Port Said plant management is
determined by El Nasr. 
While Port Said did operate in a minimal capacity
in 1976 as mentioned earlier, it is difficult to evaluate the staff based
on these limited operations. 
We believe, however, the fact that it
operated and produced 71,000 tons of salt under adverse conditions with
very limited equipment speaks for itself in regard to plant spirit and
dedication of the staff.
 

4.10 
Port Said currently has a staff of 300 people which ismore than is
required for these limited operations. 
 However, it is very difficult
to reduce the staff of a public sector company in Egypt, and this trained
staff will be an asset to the project upon start-up. Forty of Port
Said's employees hold college degrees, mostly in engineering and accounting.
Port Said can be assured of a continued supply from Egyptian universities
of engineers, accountants, and others required by the project.
 
4.11 
 While the Port Said staff has much salt manufacturing experience, the
equipment proposed for this project is of. nodern design and generally
unfamiliar to them. 
Therefore, training of personnel
and maintenance wWl be required. 

in its operationi

An important initial task for the U.S.
Consultant will be to design and establish a training program for this
 

purpose.
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A. Plant Site
 
5.01 
 The Port Said salt plant is located on the northwestern corner of the
Sinai Peninsula, bounded on the north by the Mediterranean Sea, on the
east by Lake Mallaha and on the west by the SueztCanal. The present
facility occupies about 10.7 square kilometers (4.1 square miles).
Previous operations of the salt plant involved drawing salt water from
Lake Mallaha, which acted as a pre-concentrator, into the company's
lake for further preconcentration before transfer to the concentration
ponds. 
 The plant location and layout are shown in Annexes G-1 and G-2.
5.02 Presently underway is
a program to widen and deepen the Suez Canal..
Part of the program involves construction of a bypass canal, starting
about 17 kilometers south of Port Said on the main canal and running in
a northeasterly direction to the Mediterranean Sea. 
This bypass
will bisect the company lake, transiting between the concentration ponds
and Lake Mailaha. 
To compensate for this loss, the Suez Canal Authority-­will provide El Nasr Salines with a new area for use as a 
company lake
south of the existing plant with an area about double that of the
present lake. 
 Following construction of the bypass canal, 
raw water will
be drawn directly from the Mediterranear Sea into the new company lake,
thence into the existing concentration ponds and crystallizers.


5.03 
 The construction of the bypass canal will reduce the raw salt production
capability of the Port Said facility below its pre-war (1967) output
of about 250,000 MT per year. 
Due to loss of the pre-concentration

facility will be between 165,000 and 175,000 MT. 


effects of Lake Mallaha, gross annual production of the reconstructed
 
loss, two alternatives are feasible: 

To compensate for this
(1) to increase the area of the
company lake, concentration ponds and crystallizers, 
or (2)to construct
a pipiline under the Suez Canal bypass and again draw pre-concentrated
sea water from Lake Mallaha. Land availability in proximity of the
plant isvery lImited and only minor increases in production would
result from such land use. 
A technical and economic study of the feasi­bility of constructing a pipeline under the bypass has not yet been
performed. 
Planning of this project, therefore, has been based on an
 estimated production of about 175,000 MT per year, an economically
viable operation equivalent to many in other parts of the world.
 
B. The Process
 

I. Salt Production
 
5.04 
Production of solar salt from sea water is a fractional crystallization
process whereby certain compounds in
sea water that are less soluble than


sodium chloride precipitate before salt begins to crystallize.
comounds, however, are more soluble than salt and remain in solution
 
Other


antil most of the sodium chloride has crystallzed and dropped to the pond

bottom. 
lhe general flow diagram for solar salt production is shown in
Annex H.
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5.05 
At the Port Said plant, Mediterranean Sea water will be pumped into the
company lake and, successively, into a series of concentration ponds
at a rate which compensates for evaporation losses. 
 As the density of
the brine increases due to evaporation, the calcium sulfates and calcium
carbonates precipitate. The remaining brine, now rich in sodium
chloride, is transferred by gravity to the crystallizing ponds. 
In
the crystallizing ponds the sodium chloride is precipitated and forms
a layer of relatively pure salt. 
The concentrating area is approxi­mately ten tdmes that of the crystallizing area. 
The remaining brine
solution (bitterns) contains about 20% sodium chloride, plus the
contaminating magnesium salts. 
 Bitterns are either drained to the bittern
pond for the future recovery of the magnesium salts and, possibly,
bromine, or are diluted with salt water and returned to the sea. 
This
cycle is repeated throughout the season until harvesting begins.
 

2. Salt Harvesting and Washing
 

5.06 A least once a
year, raw salt is harvested from each crystallizer by use
of mechanical equipment. 
The rubber-tired tractor ­ drawn harvester
scrapes raw salt from the basins and, by means of elevating conveyors,
loads in directly into dump trucks moving beside it. A salt floor is
left permanently in each crystallizer to seal the earth bottom, pre­venting contamination of the salt, and to increase the load bearing
capacity of the basin bottom, permitting use of heavy vehicles.
 
5.07 
The dump trucks haul the salt to a common dumping point with surge
bin from where it can be either stockpiled directly or first washed and
then stockpiled. 
Stockpiling will be accomplished by a belt conveyor­fed, boom-type stockpiler.
 

5.08 The raw salt that is 
to be washed is transferred via a belt conveyor to
a helical screw washing machine where it is washed with saturated brine
to remove the fine clay particles and other impurities. The salt is then
fed into a dewatering belt which discharges the salt when the moisture
level reaches about 6%. 
The wash water is drained to settling ponds and
decanted back into the washing cycle. 
The washed salt is then conveyed
to a boom-type stockpiler to build up a salt pile 12 meters high. 
A
similar, but separate, stockpile will be created for raw salt. 
The salt
piles develop a hard 
 urfwace crust which protects the salt from wind and
rain. 
The piles are allowed to age for about 8 to 12 months to further
purify the salt. 
Small amounts of rain dissolve the magnesium chloride
which trickles to the bottom of the salt pile. 
After the aging process,
the raw salt iseither shipped for industrial uses or refined into edible
or spedialty salt. 
The washed salt iseither ground and packaged or
exported. A schematic diagram of the wasBing plant is shown inAnnex I-1.
 

3. Salt Refining
 

5.09 The refining process is,essentially, a 
two step process: (1)the purity
is increased and (2)the salt is dried, screened for size classification,
additives introduced and packaged. 
Salt can be purif*tdn two ways:
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the vacuum pan process, wherein the salt is dissolved and recrystallized
in steam evaporators, and the washing process.
is difficult to properly operate. 

The vacuum pan process

The washing process will
the Port Said plant. be used at
The process consists of crushing the salt to break
down the salt crystals, and washing it in
a helical 
screw washer. After
washing, the salt is dewatered ina centrifuge to remove most of the
wash water. 
The salt is then transferred to a
to below 0.2%. dptyer to reduce the moisture
Dried salt is approximately 99% sodium chloride. This
salt is packaged by mechanical packaging equipment in
weights, and used for edible salt. 

a variety of

A schematic diagram of the salt
refinery plant is shown inAnnex J-1.
 

C. Raw Materials
 

I. Sea Water Quality
 

Sea water for the Port Said Salines Plant will be drawn directly from the
Mediterranean Sea. Mediterranean Sea water is generally regarded as an
excellent raw materials source by salt experts; the worldis finest
salt is produced by France using Mediterranean Sea water and the solar
system. 
A detailed analysis of Mediterranean Sea water quality is shown
in Table V-I.
 

TABLE V-1
 

SEA WATER ANALYSIS
 

S~ecies 
 Standard 
 Mediterranean
 
Sea Water 
 Sea Water
 

sp. gr. 
 gm/cm3 
 1.025 
 1.029
 

Debree baume 
 oBe 
 3.5 
 I.0
 

T.D.S. 
 P.P.M. 
 35090 
 40500
 
Cl 


19353 
 22402
 
Na+ 
 10760 12503
 

Mg++ 

1297 
 1408 

Ca 

417 
 420
 

K, 

387 
 628
 

S0,4 
 2705 
 2866
 
Br 
 , 67 
 93
 
C03-


7 13.
 
HC03-


97 167
 



Page 12 of 54
 

2. Proposed Sea Water Intake
 

5.11 	 The Suez Canal Authority will build a breakwater at a point approximately

800 meters west of the west bank of the bypass canal. Based on a

preliminary study, itappears that the best location for the feed water

intake to be constructed by El Nasr, will be immediately adjacent to

the west bank. The tidal flow inand out of the bypass canal should
help to cleanse the intake area and keep itfree of contaminants and
 
sediment; and the prevailing current will tend to sweep sediment

generated by the bypass canal inan easterly direction away from the

feed water intake. Prior to actual positioning, a more detailed ana­
lysis of alternate positions will be prepared.
 

5.12 	The sea water intake will be positioned at least one meter above the
 ocean floor and below the water surface to avoid intake of sediments or

floating objects, oils, etc. Two high capacity axial flow pump: will
be installed inthe pump station to draw sea water from the pump to

the company lake and first stage concentration ponds.
 

3. Existing Salt Piles
 

5.13 	There are currently 250,000 tons of salt instockpiles at the Port Said

site. This salt was harvested before the 1967 war. El Nasr has not
attempted to use this salt for fear that the salt piles contain live

bombs. It isrecommended that a study be undertaken to determine the
 
most appropriate means of removing this salt and feeding itback into
the crystallizers. 
 Further, these stockpiles are interfering with the

flow of air currents over the ponds and diminishing the evaporation
 
rate.
 

D. Utilities
 

1. Electricity
 

5.14 	 Port Said relies on its own diesel generators (at El Raswa) which are

operated by the Egyptian Electricity Authority (EEA). Port Fouad has a
 
separate system with its own diesel generating station operating at
5500 volts (stepped down to 400 and 110 volts), 50 cycle, 3 phase. 
By
late 1977, the Port Said and Port Fouad systems will be inter-connected
 
by means of submarine cables under the Suez Canal. 
 In 1978, when the

EEAhas agreed to fully meet El Nasr's power needs of about 1000 kilo­
watts, Port Fouad's power characteristics will be changed to 11,000

volts 	(stepped down to 380 and 220 volts), 50 cycle 3 phase.
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5.15 	 By 1981, an overhead transmission line from Ismailia will supply the
Port Said urban area with power from EEA's 220 Kilovolt (KV) network
in Lower Egypt. When the Ismailia inter-connection is complete,
the existing diesel generators will revert to standby duty. 
This
will ensure a highly reliable source of electricity for the salt

plant.
 

2. Fresh Water
 

5.16 
Port Said draws its fresh water from the Nile Rivar by means of the
Abassa Canal, 
a branch of the Ismailia Canal. 
 The water is treated at
the El Raswa Water Treatment Works on the Port Said side of the Canal.
Port Fouad receives its water by means of two 500 millimeter pipes
located under the Suez Canal. 
 Water 	supply is,at present, considered
deficient and unreliable due to a lack of flow in the Abassa Canal
and unrepaired war damage inflicted on the El 
Raswa 	works. The Min­istry 	of Irrigation has made plans to widen and improve Abassa Canal
for irrigation purposes. 
 The Canal, subject to cleaning and clearing
obstructions, together with the improvement of the treatment plant
should ensure an adequate and reliable fresh water supply for the Port
Said and Port Fouad urban areas, including the salt plant.
 
5.17 
The SCA has initiated a concurrent three-phase improvement program for
the repair, rehabilitation, modification, and extension of the water
treatment plant. 
Phase I, repairing war damage and returning the
plant to its pre-1967 capacity is nearly complete. Phase II,covering
rehabilitation, modification, and expansion to meet short-term needs,
is currently underway. 
Phase 	III, to meet long-term needs through
further expansion of the treatment plant, has been started and comple­tion is anticipated within the next several years.
 

3, Fuel Oil
 

5.18 	A 40,O00-liter fuel oil tank will be provided to store fuel for com­pany vehicles and pump stations. A vehicle fueling station will also
be provided. A!1,50O-1iter capacity tank trailer will be used to trans­port fuel from the main storage tank to the pump station storage
tanks and will refuel vehicles in the field. A2,OO-liter fuel storage
tank will be provided at each of the pump stations.
 

4. Sewage Disposal
 

5.19 
 Domestic sewage generated by the plant's employees is now treated in
septic plants. No change in this system will 
 be required.
 

E. Transportation
 

5.20 	There is currently no rail service to the Port Fouad of the Suez Canal.
Therefore, Port Said Salines salt production will be transported by
one of two means. The exported salt will be shipped directly from the
SCA quay located near the salt plant. 
 The salt for domestic consump­tion will be transported by company trucks. 
The trucks must depend
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on the SCA ferries to carry them across the Suez Canal. 
 Thre are five

ferries inoperation during peak periods. However, long traffic back­ups are commonplace during the day, and each ferry will take only one
tandem tractor tiailer truck at a time. As the salt company will be
shipping out up to 15 truck-loads per day, the present ferry service

introduces inefficiencies into the company's transport plant.
 

5.21 	 The Master Plan for Port Said proposes that the existing ferry system

be restricted to pedestrian traffic only and that two new ferry oper­
ations be initiated at different:locations for vehicular and pedestrian

traffic. Ifimplemented, this plan would expedite movement across

the Canal and be particularly beneficial to the salines plant. The
Master Plan notes that forecasted year 2000 traffic movements will not
justify a direct highway link across the Canal.
 

F. Design Parameters
 

5.22 	The following design parameters were used indetermining project com­ponent selection and sizing, facility design and layout, and other

equipment and material requirements. These parameters were developed

inconcert with the El Nasr Salines Company's management and technical

staffs and are considered to be reasonable.
 

5.23 	 Following construction of the Suez Canal bypass, the available evapor­ative land area at the site will be 9,065,000 square meters. The

Company's experience indicates that, under the ambient climatic condi­
ions, about 55 square meters are required to produce one ton (metric)

of salt. Therefore, the presently available land area will permit

production of about 165,000 MT per year. 
However, additional areas of
about 	550,000 square meters adjacent to the plant site, now disused
 
or used for disposal of bitterns, may eventually be brought into

production. Such use would permit salt production to rise to about

175,000 MT per year. 
Therefore, in sizing facility capacities, the
 
annual production figure of 175,000 MT has been used.
 

5.24 	 Production losses during harvesting, washing, stocking and refining.will

result ina salt output of about T55,000 MT per year. Annual salt

production targets have been chosen as follows:
 

Type of Salt 
 Tons Per Year
 

Refined 
 60,000

Washed (ground and packaged) 40,000

Washed (bulk export and domestic) 48,000

Raw (miscellaneus) 
 7,000


Total 	Saleable Salt 50
 

Refined salt will have an average analysis of 99% sodium chloride, and
 
will be processed directly from the aged raw salt. 
The refined salt
will be categorized as follows:
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Type of Salt 
 Description Tons Per Year
 

Kitchen 
 Minus 3 mm plus 1 mm grain

size - 1 kg plastic bags- 30,000

25 kg plastic or jute bags 23,000
-


Table 
 Minus 1 mm plus 0.3 nm grain
 
size - 0.5 kg plastic bags in
 
cardboard boxes ­ 5,000
 

Powdered 
 Minus 0.3 mm grain size
 
5 kg cattle blocks - 1,000

0.5 gram salt tablets - 1,000
 

Total Refined Salt Final Product Capacity 60,000
 

Washed salt will have an average analysis of 98.5 sodium chloride.

The washed salt can be divided as follows:
 

Type of Salt Desrriptton Tons Per Year
 
Washed 
 Bulk Shipment 
 48,000

25 kg plastic or jute bags 25,000
1 kg plastic bags A. 15,000 

Total Washed Salt Final Product Capacity 88,000
 
5.25 
A salt (sodium chloride) balance'sheet of the processing cycle is
 

shown as Annex K.
 

G. Equipment Selection
 

I. Salt Harvesting
 

5.26 The size of the harvesting equipment isbased on a
total raw salt
harvest of 175,000 tons per year and the following calculations:
 

Basis: 9 month cycle; 234 days per year;
 

66% efficiency factor.
 

= 234 day X 8 hr X 66%
 
year -a
 

= 1236 operating hours per year
 

The harvesting capacity is:
 

175,000 TPY raw salt = 
142 tons per hour
 
1236 hours
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No. Units 	 Description
 

2 	 Salt harvesters - Minimum capacity 150 TPH.
 
Ru er-tired-pulled by farm-type diesel tractor.
 
Equal to the CRS Model Harvester. One harvestor
 
working, one standby. Spare parts: conveyor

belt, main hydraulic pump, chainlinks for
 
flights.
 

2 	 Tractors - Sized to pull harvester, standard
 
farm-type tractor, John Deere Model 401, 
or
 
equal.
 

1 	 Road §rader - Equipped with front mounted tooth
 
scarifier and 14 foot grader blade, with large

tires for best flotation ability. Equal to a
 
Caterpillar 12 G Model Grader (135 HP).
 

2. Salt Handling
 

5.27 Materials Handling Equipment
 

The materials handling equipment includes haulage vehicles, salt re­
claiming vehicles, shiploading equipment and package moving equipment.
 

No. Units 	 Description
 

18 	 Haulage Vehicles - 9 M3 capacity @ 1112 kg

=70 tons capacity, large tires for best flotation
 
capabilities, tandem rear axle, dual tires, both
 
axle driven, conventional cab, diesel engine,
 
corrosionproofed undercarriage.
 

5.28 Raw Salt Stockpiling Equipment
 

The size of the raw salt stockpiling equipment is based upon a design
 
capacity to handle 	the full harvesting rate of approximately 150 TPH.
 

No. Units 	 Description
 

Dum1 Hopper - Driveover, steel construction,
 
minimi, side slope 	60f, corrosionprotected,
 
nominal capacity 30 M3
 

Stockpiling Conveyor - Troughed rubber belt conveyor
 
and corrosion-proofed structure, complete with
 
tripper and wing type stacker; total storage pile

capacity 125,000 tons, hourly capacity moninally
 
150 TPH.
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5.29 	Salt Reclaiming Equipment
 

Bulldozer -
Equal to a Caterpillar Model D-7
Track Type Unit, standard equipped with a
U blade, nominal capacity 235'MJ per hour.
 
3 
 Wheel 	Loaders - Rubber-tired, bucket capacity
2to 
 a Caterpil1ar Model 966
Loader, nominal capacity 200 TPH.
 

5.30 	Shiploading Equipment
 

1 
 Shiloading Unit 
- Consisting of 20 M3 capacity
stee 
 ump hopper, 150 meter long troughed
rubber conveyor belt arrangement with a rail­mounted movable tripper and boom conveyor
installed at the existing loading quay location.
Boom conveyor unit will be capable of loading
bulk 	salt into each hold of 10,000 ton capacity
ship while berthed at the quay.
 

3 
 Fork Lifts ­ 3200 kg lift capacity (7000 lb)
to-Tandle palletized bagged salt at plant and
palletized packaged salt at refinery.
 

3. Transport and Support Equipment

5.31 
 The following equipment will be provided for personnel transportation,
equipment servicing and support, and civil works maintenance.
 

No. Units 
 Description
 
7. 
 Ditching Machine 
-
Cut to 1.5 meters deep
 

0.5 metejrs-wJde
 

4 	 3/4 Ton Pickup Truck -
With 	four wheel drive.
1 
 Fuel 	Oil Tank Truck
 

1 
 25 Ton Mobile Crane
 
1 Portable Welding Truck
 
1 	 Portable Lubrication Truck
 

1 	 10 Ton Capacity Crane Truck ­2 	 Boom type.
6" Centrifuge Portable Pumps 
-
With 40 m hoses,
 
diesel motor.
 

1 
 Truck 	Scale 
- Drive Over.
 
1 
 Autobus ­ 54 passenger, for workers
 
1 
 7
Van - -passenger.
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A. Intake and Transfer Pumps
 

5.32 Pumps will be provided as follows:
 

No. of Units Description
 

2 Sea Water Intake Pumps - Axial flow, stainless
 
steel construction, complete with diesel power
drives and nominal capacity each 2300 M per

hour (10,000 GPM).
 

4 Interstage Transfer Pumps 
- Concentrator location,

axial flow, stainless steel construction, com­plete with diesel power drives, nominal capacity
each pump 1360 M3 
per hour (6000 GPM)
 

2 Bittern Drain Pumps 
- Crystallizer bittern
 
drainage, axial flow, stainless steel construction,
complete with diesel powe 
drives, nominal
capacity each pump 1360 M3 
per hour (6000 GPM).
 

2 Desaltinq Pumps 
-
Desalting use with crystallizer

bittern drainage pumps, monel construction, com­
plete with power drives, nominal capacity each
 
pump 12 M1 per hour (50 GPM).
 

5. Salt Processing Plants
 

a. Salt Washing and Stocking Unit
 
5.33 
A complete salt washing unit of 150 MT per hour capacity will be furnished
 

including components as shown in Annex I, plus spare parts.
 

b. Salt Refining Plant
 
5°34 
A complete salt refining plant of 60,000 MY per year output will be
 

furnished including components as shown in Annex J plus spare parts.
 
c. SaltGrinding Unit
 

5.35 
A complete salt grinding unit of 40,000 MT per year capacity will be
 
furnished including components as shown in Annex L
, plus spare parts.
 

H. Other Equipment and Materials
 

5.36 
To ensure the maintenance of high quality standards of production,
equipment for a quality control 
laboratory will be provided to supple­
ment that of the company.
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5.37 
The following additives may be used as free-flowing agents for refined
salt in an amount between 0.5 to 1% of the salt being treated.
 

• magnesium carbonate
 
" calcium silicate
 
" 
dicalcium and tricalcium phosphate

" calcium carbonate
 

If iodized salt is needed, there will be ar
potassium iodide as a 
aditional requirement for
salt additive, and a stabilizer such as sodium
carbonate. 
 The potassium iodide requirement would be approximately
0.01%. 
A one year supply of required chemicals will be financed by
the A.I.D. Grant.
 

5.38 
Construction materials, as detailed in para 5.43 hereinafter, will be
 
procured from U.S. sources.
 

I. Plant Layout and Construction
 

7. Roads and Dikes
 
5.39 
The existing concentration basins and crystallizers can remain at their
present location, though minor construction will be needed to permit
'flow between them. 
SCA-built dikes, as part of the construction of the
b pass canal, will create new concentration basins south of the existing
p ant.
 

The salines plant currently has an intricate system of dikes, roadways,
and inlet and outlet canals. Additional dikes and roadways are required
as part of the plan to reestablish salt production operations. 
Since
the dikes that the SCA is building will have a maximum side slope of
5 to1 (horizontal to vertical), El. Nasr will have to regrade the slopes
to 2 to 1 
to achieve the maximum concentration area, and-add-stone
slope protection. El -Nasr will also be responsible for the construction
of dikes within the new concentration areas as shown in Annex M. These
dikes should be 5 to 8 meters wide at the top with 2 
to I slopes pro­tected by slope paving.
 

5.40 
Roadways must be constructed to the stockpiling and refining plant
hoppers as shown inAnnex N. The roadway should also be on five meters
,f fill at the hoppers so that trucks can easily discharge salt into the
hoppers. 
An alternative stockpiling roadway configuration was con­sidered in which the new roadways would extend in
an easterly direction
from the stockpiles in
a 
direct line with existing roadways.
would terminate in a cul-de-sac, on fill, 
The ramps


at the same hopper locations
as in the recommended scheme. 
The alternative configuration had the
disadvantage of cutting off the existing north-south plant road and
necessitating the construction of a new road approximately 100 meters
east of the north-south road.
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2. Buildings
 
5.41 The administration/Gffice/laboratory 


building, guest house, and
maintenance/repair 
garage have been built in the location shown in
Annex N. Buildings to be constructed include the refinery, storage
TTidngs, workshops and four new pump houses.
be located as shown on the same Annex. 
The main buildings will
The location of the proposed
buildings have been determined through an analysis of space require­ments, existing building locations, functional requirements and inter­relationships between buildings, the need for ramps to reach the
refinery and stockpiling areas, foundation conditions and the possi­bility of future expansion.
 

5.42 
The pump houses will be of concrete and brick construction. 
 Based on
their experience with masonry-walled reinforced concrete buildings
at El Mex and Port Said, El 
Nasr prefers that the remaining buildings
be made of prefabricated structural steel with galvanized steel
sheeting for walls. 
 Valid alternatives to galvanized steel sheeting
include fiberglass or asbestos sheeting. 
These materials have the
additional advantage of being corrosion-free even if scratched or
damaged.
 

3. Construction Services
 
5.43 	Construction services are generally available in the A.R.E. 
El Nasr
stated that they have had no problem obtaining construction services
for their current projects.


at least three bidders. 
Each request for bids has always attracted
Construction services availability was veri­fied during discussions with Giza Systems Engineering Company (a
private consulting engineering firm) and with Nasr General Contracting
Company (a public sector contractor).
as readily available inthe A.R.E. 

By contrast, materials are not
Officials at the General Organi­zation for Industrialization (GOFI) stated that since El Nasr is
a
public sector company, sufficient quantities of cement would be made
available as needed, on a 
month to month basis. 
GOFI stated that the
waiti.ng period for the structural steel varies greatly depending upon
when it is ordered, and the type, size and quantities that are ordered.
The siding materials are not readily available in the A.R.E. and would,
therefore, have to be imported. 
These findings were verified during
discussions with Giza Systems Engineering Company and Nasr General
Contracting Company. 
To ensure the timely completion of the project,
it is recommended that the structural steel, the siding, and all
building hardware, such as lighting fixtures and ventilating equipment,
be imported from the United States.
 

4. Stockpile Area
 
The two stockpiles, located as shown in Annex N, 
are initially designed
to store about 125,000 MT each. However, the layout allows for expan­sion of the piles up to about 200,000 MT each if operating or sales
exigencies so require.
 

5.44 

http:waiti.ng
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J. Expected Plant Production 

5.45 
The following five-year production schedule isfeasible if30,000
MT of raw salt are available at the time of refinery startup in
1980.
 

TABLE V-2
 

ANNUAL PRODUCTION IN IlMIC TONS 
Tons 
 1980 
 1981 
 1982 
 1983 
 1984
 
Harvest 
 75,000 
 155,000 155,000 155,000 
155,000

(after losses)
 

Refined Salt 
 30,000 
 50,000 6o,ooo 6o,OOO 
 6o,ooo
production
 

Ground Salt 
 20,000 
 .hO,Ooo 
 ho,ooo 40,ooo 4o,ooo
Production
 

Bulk Shipments 
 0 0 25,000 55,000 
 55,000
 
*iryvr Stock­
-piles1980) (prior-.,
 

30,000 
 55,000 120,000 150,000 
150,000
 

ProductionStockpile to 
55,000 65,00o 0 0 0 

End yearStockpile* 
 55,000 
 120,000 150,000 150,000 
150,000

*This is
an approximate figure to ensure that at least a one-year supply
of salt is always on
The projected tonnages 

hand and to allow for aging to increase purity.are essential to the successful start-up of thefacilities. 

5.46 
As noted earlier, the harvest figure of 155,000 MT (after all losses),
equalling gross salt production of 175,000 MT per year, will be ob­tained only ifthe company puts into Production all available
areas adjacent to the site. land
 

K. Technical Assistance
 
5.47 
Trained professionals and skilled workers familiar with solar salt
production are currently available to Port Said Salines. 
 However,
due to the modernization of the plant through this project, many of theplant staff will require training in the use of those more sophisti­cated equipment.. The training will be most intensive for those employees
concerned with operating refinery and packaging equipment. 
Some of the
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training is expected to be supplied by the suppliers of major items
of equipment. The U.S. consultant will design and establish the

training program.
 

L. Project Cost Estimate
 

5.48 
The detailed project cost estimate inAnnex 0 is summarized in Table
 
V-3.
 

5.49 
The dollar cost items contain escalations of 9.6 percent on the base
cost estimates of the equipment and 7 percent as the estimated costs
of contractor's profit. Additionally, all U.S. equipment and construc­tion materials contain a 15 percent freight factor.
 

5.50 The L.E. costs of salt production equipment and U.S. construction
materials represent the transportation, costs of moving the materials

from the port to the plant site.
 

M. Section 611 (a)Requirements
 

5.51 
 In view of the forgoing it is the position of the Mission in Cairo
that the requirement of Section 611 
(a)of the Foreign Assistance Act
of 1961, as amended, have been met. 
This project is based upon sound
engineering plans as recommended by 'STV_rInpor'ted, 
 -.
and a reasonably firm cost estimate also preparTb-y--STV 
 The
Mission has reviewed the plans and cost estimate andfinds- em reason­able and accurate. 
An adequate quantity and quality of raw materials
are available and neceesary utilities are in place or will be in
place.at the time required by the project.
 

http:place.at


TABLE V-3
 

PROJECT COST ESTIATE 

COST CATEGORY DOLLAR 
COSTS 

Salt Production 8,115 
Equipment 

U.S. Construction 
 1.322 

Materials 

Engineering, Procure- 1,835 

ment and Management 

Civil WorkT 


Plant Construction 

Subtotal 
 11,272 


Contingencies 15% 
 1,690 


Total 
 $12,962 


Grant Amount $13,OOO
 

LOCAL 
COSTS 

35.8 

1i.3 

38.6 

3,679 


1,028-

k,T96 


719 


$5,515 


TOTAL 

8.151
 

1,336
 

1,87 

3,679
 

1,028
 

16,068 

2,409 

$18 ,477 
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VI. MARKET ANALYSIS
 

A. PRODUCTS
 
6.01 
 There 	are four types of classifications of salt which this project
will produce, and many 4ditional product mixes are obtainable from
the basic four classifications by means of packaging. -Previously
in this paper, the production quantities of these types of salt.
were discussed; additionally, the technical section describes the
production process.
 

6.02 
Much confusion exists about the classifications of salt, not so
much, 	by the physical properties of the substance, but by the
nomenclature used. 
Probably the best way to describe the four
product groups of salt is to verbally describe table salt, which one
finds 	in the U.S. supermarket. Table salt is:
refined salt. 	 raw, washed, crushed,
The confusion arises by the fact that except for the
raw, or beginning stage, many variations of the process can be
combined. 
To further complicate the matter, unwashed salt isoften
used to refer to raw salt.
 

1. Raw Salt
 
6.03 	 Industrial salt,1 s 	 a or phkrieC1)._used as a cataly inchemical or physical 	 -is also

reactions.people often see it used 	 In the U.S.on highways to melt snow and ice. Note thatdelicate industrial chemical users of salt cannot use this product due
to tracer elements and impurities. Most industrial users require

refined salt.
 

2. Washed Salt
 
6.04 	Best known as "people's salt", itisabout 95 percent Na & C1,
it isdarker incolor and does not look, as the name indicates, as
having been washed. Impurities exist inthis salt, but it issafe
to ingest inspite of its visual properties, but has difficulty going
into solution. The washing with water isa 
pure physical process.
 

3. Crushed Salt.
 
6.05 
The name implies its physical description. The crushing process
reduces the size of the crystals making it easier to use and more
soluble. 
The solubility of salt affects its ability and time to act
ina chemical or mixing process. 
The crushing isagain a 
physical
process, making the product more useable. 
Either raw or washed salt
can be crushed, ifthe intent ismerely to increase the surface
 areas of the salt.
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4. Refined
 
6.06 
The refining process has been described. Generally, the product has
been through the above other two processes before refining. 
This
isnot always the case, and the two intermediarysteps can be omitted.
Refined salt has two grades, kitchen salt (for food processing) or
fine table salt (as an additive to food or drink at the time of
consumption). 
 Itisgenerally 99.8 percent NaCi.
 
6.07 
The industrial markets for salt are both commercially and chemically
complex. The following information points out the great commercial
demand for raw, washed and/or crushed salt.
 

Each ton of chlorine requires 1.7 tons sodium chloride.
Each ton of soda-ash requires 1.5 tons sodium chloride.
Each ton of aluminium requires 0.33 tons sodium chloride.
Each ton of VCM requires 0.928 tons sodium chloride.
Each ton of caustic soda requires 1.5 tons of sodium chloride.
 
6.08 
As mentioned above, the confusion about salt arises from the fact
that different processes can be combined without necessitating the
other. 
Thus, 	one could have refined salt which came from unwashed
salt or crushed washed salt, or just washed salt. 
Each step adds
to the value of the salt, the quality of the four process steps can
also vary greatly. Some countries have such a 
poor refining process
that refined salt from such countries cannot be compared to washed salt
from another country. For instance, the washed salt which will be
produced from this project will be much better physically than the
washed salt presently coming out of the El Mex plant.
plant 	site isnext to a The El Mex
cement mill that has no "scrubbers", its
washed salt production ispeppered by particles of pollution.
 
6.09 
Just as the cost of each type of salt isdictated by the quantity and
quality of processes itundergoes, so isits value inthe market place.
However, except for refined salt, GOE sets sale prices for most salt
sold domestically: 
 Raw Salt 
 LE 2.30/ton


Washed Salt 
 LE 3.80/ton

Washed, Ground and
 
Bagged Salt 
 LE15.50/ton


Refined Salt 
 LE21.50/ton
6.10 	International prices for salt varies inquality but it isonly sold
inquantity (bulk). 
 Most recent figures indicate that washed salt
sells at about U.S. $8 .00/ton F.O.B. or L.E. 5.60/ton. Similar salt
which this project will produce must be sold domestically under G.O.E.
price 	controls at L.E. 3.80/ton. 
Ifthe company had the capacity,
a financially rewarding export market awaits it.
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6.11 
 The major profit element in salt production is in the packaging.
Refined kitchen and table salt, when individually packaged by the
company, show extremely high mark-ups. 
Not unlike products such as
detergents, flour, etc. in the U.S., bulk prices are much cheaper
than small packaged prices. 
 For instance refined table quality salt,
when individually packaged (IKEM), works out to L.E. 25.00/ton.
The company isfree to set its own prices on these packaged products.
 

B. MARKETING OF SALT
 

1. Distribution
 

6.12 
Salt is distributed from the El Nasr operating companies to 130
public sectordistribution centers throughout Egypt.
belong to El These centers
Nasr and sell the salt to clients at prices set by El
Nasr. 
 Only bagged, milled-washed salt and bagged, refined salt are
sold to the distribution centers. 
Bulk salt is only sold ex-plant
and in export. Salt is delivered to Upper Egypt by train and in
Lower Egypt (Delta) by company-owned trucks.
consumed in the Delta area. 
Eighty percent is
 

2. Supply and Demand
 
6.13 
 The total salt production capacity in Egypt has levelled off at
about 600,000 tons per year due to a lack of additional capacity.
By 1980, additional production capacity is expected to be available
from the GOE-financed expansion of the El Mex Plant. 
 From 1980
through 1985, the production of the A.I.D. project in Port Said will
result inadditional gradual increases until production capacity
levels out at a total production of about 910,000 tons per year.
 
6.14 
Fortunately, the demand statistics for Egyptian salt are well-documented
and quite complete. 
The historic growth rate for salt consumption
in Egypt has averaged 15.5 percent per annum.
 
6.15 
The GOE projects that demand for salt will increase by 22.9 percent
per year. It acknowledges the historic growth rate, but envisions
much greater demand to come from 
industrial 
users as a result of the
industrialization efforts.
 
6.16 For our analysis, A.I.D. has used a 
minimum demand growth rate of
10 percent per year, versus a historic 15.5 percent and GOE figures
of 23 percent.
 

6.17 
Table VI-i shows tre historic and projected supply/demand figures for
salt in Egypt based on the above conservative assumptions.
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TABLE VI-1
 

Total 
 Total
 
Year 
 Production 
 Demand


(000 Ton:u) (000 Tons) 

AC 19T231
1973 
 310
U 1974 	 334
 
313
A 1975 	 344

394
L 1976 	 414
5506o4 	 500
 

56o
 
P 1977 
 610
R 1978 	 616614 
 6770 1979 
 619 
 745E 1981 


815
c 1982 	 819

855
T 1983 	 901

885
E 1984 	 992
900
E 1984 	 1,091

905
1985 	 1,200
910 
 1,320


6.18 Table'Z-2shows the effects of the El Mex expansion and the A.I.D. 

Port Said project on projected total production of salt.
 

TABLE VT..2 

PRODUCTION COMING N-STREAM 
(000 Tons) 

Total 
Projected

Year 
 Production A.I.D. Project El Mex 
1979 
 619 
 0
1980 	 0
815 
 50
1981 	 146
855 
 90
1982 	 146
885 
 120
1983 	 146
900 135
1984 	 146
905 
 14o
1985 	 146910 k5I/ 146
 

6.19 Egypt will have shortages of salt in varying amounts in spite of this 

project. 

1. 1986 will be the first year inwhich Port Said plant will show full salts
capacity.
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6.20 
Since the construction of new public sector companies and expansion of
present plants must have Ministry approval, through the annual budget
process, A.I.D. is
secure in knowing that there will not be production
quantities that would adversely affect El Nasr's position. 
 On the
demand-site, the A.I.D. projection at 10 percent rate of growth is
considerably below either the historical 15.5 percent or the ARE
projected 22.9 percent.
 
6.21 
 With the projected production shortfalls in mind, El 
Nasr Salines is
currently planning another plant at Lake Quarun with a capacity of
about 200,000 tons per year.


planning of the compnay. 
A.I.D. is pleased with this long-range
However, inorder to ensure that an over­supply situation does not come about, A.I.D. will seek to include in
the grant agreement a GOE/El Nasr requirement to obtain A.I.D.'s
approval before any additional production facilities can 
be acquired.
 

C. EXPORTS
 
6.22 
 With the complexities of international marketing inmind, A.I.D.
did not justify this project's viability by relying on salt exports.
Although confident that domestic demand will require the additional
production of this project, the future prospect for the export of
Egyptian salt looks extremely promising.
 
6.23 
 It has been mentioned that prior to the destruction of the Port Said
plant during the war, Egypt exported over 200,000 MTY.
opportunities exist for Egyptian salt exports, not only because of its
 

Exceptional
 
high quality, but also because the production facilities are strate­gically located with its own shipping quay. The commodity value/
transportation ratio of salt is extremely low, making its international
marketability highly dependent upon transportation costs. 
The company
starts with an advantage.
 

6.24 
Another necessity for export marketing is
a
market. close proximity to the
Statistics from 1971, indicate that 10 countries
Cameroun to Zaire have to import over 300,000 MT per year. 
ranging from
 

these countries had any local None of
source of supply. 
Six other countries
produced some salt, but still required imports totalling 30,000 MTY
to meet domestic demands. 
Only Senegal had the capacity to export
salt, and this was 
less than 80,000 MTY.
 
6.25 
Considering that the above are based upon 1971 statistics, best
estimates indicate a salt import requirement of up to 400,000 MTY.
Thus, on 
the same fontinent, Egypt looks out upon potentially vast
export markets. 
 This demand coupled with the competitive advantages
of Egyptian salt could, if developed and if Egypt had excess capacity,
become a -4oreign exchange earner for Egypt.
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6.26 	The complexities of gaining entrance to export markets consist not
only of quality and cost, but also the ability to assure the buyers
that their requirements can continually be met. 
 This usually entails
having existing production facilities to satisfy long-term sales
agreements. 
Because Egypt does not currently have an excess capacity
of salt, not does A.I.D. envision such a situatig, this potential
export market for salt has been discounted and not relied upon for
project justification. However, not relying upon such markets does
pot mean they do not exist, nor does it imply that they can not be
exploited inthe future. 
 Itisa situation which exists and can be
viewed as a
margin of safety for the marketing of Egyptian salt.
 
0. COMPETITION
 

6.27 
As stated earlier, Tl Nasr produces 95 percent of all salt inEgypt.
Consequently, competition from other producers inEgypt isnegligible.
Further, due to the large initial investment required insolar salt
operations, future competition isunlikely.
 
6.28 	 No salt isimported by Egypt. 
Future competition from imports is
not a concern. It, would be.difficult. f'~i' forelgw salt to 'cadnpetein the domestic market'du to. price advantages enjoyed by the domestic
salt. 
Inaddition to competing with government controlled prices
for all but the refined salt, imported salt would carry the additional
burden of ocean freight costs and Alexandria port handling and tariff
charges which are quite high.
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VII. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
 

A. HISTORICALS
 

General
 
7.01 El Nasr Salines Company is
a public sector corporation and is there­for required to follow the Egyptian Standardized Accounting System
(SAS) which was made mandatory for all 
public sector corporations by
Presidential Decree No. 4723, dated December 1966. 
 One hundred
percent of El Nasr's stock is owned by the 'overnment of Egypt,
specifically, the Ministry of Industry and Industrialization. 
Within
the Ministry, it is presently classified as a 
mining sector company.
Before the reorgainzation of the Ministry, and the Government-wide
elimination of General Organizations in 1976, El Nasr was included
in the Ministry's General Organization for Foodstuffs.
 
7,02 
In any event, El Nasr Salines Company is subject to both the benefits
and the disadvantages of being an Egyptian public sector corporation.
On balance, it has definitely been to its advantage since the Company
has received sizable contributions to equity for plant replacement
and expansion, and operating grants to meet salary and benefit
-payments to the Port Said Plant employees.
El As discussed earlier,
Nasr lost the production of the Port Said plant in 1967 due to
warfare. 
 During the intervening period until the Company was able
to take physical possession of the Port Said Plant again in 1974,
El 
Nasr retained all the Port Said employees on the payroll by giving
them jobs at the Mex salt plant in Alexandria.
 
7.03 
In following the regulations of the Standardized Accounting System
(SAS) all public sector companies, including El Nasr, prepare lengthy
annual reports, entitled Balance Sheets and Results of Operations.
Not only do they show the -esults of current year operations and
financial position, they include detailed operating data and budgets.
Unfortuanately, the reports are entirely in Arabic and, in keeping
with the SAS, presented in
a format totally different than that
specified by the American Institute of Certified Public Accounts and
required by the Amefican Security and Exchange Commission. Accordingly,
the Mission contracted with an Egyptian-chartered accounting firm,
Farid S. Mansour & Co., 
which represents Coopers and Lybrand, CPA
in Egypt, to translate the audit reports for El Nasr Salines Company
for the years 1973 through 1976, and represent them in the Ameeican
format with financial:notes. 
The translated reports appear in Annex P.
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Balance Sheets
 
7.04 At the end of 1976, El 
Nasr's assets totaled LE 6,499,254 ($9.2
million) of which LE 1,854,437 ($2.6 million) were classified as
current. 
Total liabilities were LE 1,642,138 ($2.3 million) of which
LE 1,401,841 were current and only 240,297 was long term debt.
Table VII-1 below shows comparative balance shee_ 
 for El Nasr for
five years.
 

7.05 
The value of total assets show an increase from LE 2.7 million in
1972 to LE 6.5 million in 1977 which would, on the surface, indicate
a growing, healthy company. 
However, closer examiniation reveals over
the same period the Ministry of Industry made contributions to equity
totalling over LE 1.8 million ($2.6 million). 
 These contributions
were taken on El Nasr's books as a "Redeemable Government Participation"
increasing the account from LE 1.4 million to LE 3.2 million. 
Pre­sumably they may be withdrawn at the Ministry's decretion. However,
the Ministry, at the end of 1975 during the Annual General Meeting,
akin to an American annual stock-holder's meeting, passed a 
resolution
transferring LE 2.1 million from the redeemable account to the
cap'ital stock account.' This, ineffect, created a
premium paid
account, on LE 1,500 shares of LE 2.00 per value stock. 
 There still..
remains in the redeemable account a 
balance of LE 1.1 million. In
addition to these funds, El Nasr also received LE 779,713, a
grant to
be utilized specifically for the rehabilitation of the war-destroyed
Port Said Plant. 
This amount also appears inthe equity section but
the Ministry has not designated that it isredeemable. As a result
of the equity contributions, the capital portion of equity increased
from LE 1.8 million at the end of 1972 to LE 3.98 million at December

1976.
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7.06 	The purpose of the contributions isto finance El Nasr's major

expansion and rehabilitation program. Over the last four years, El

Nasr has either purchased equipment or constructed facilities valued
 
at LE 4.28 million ($6.1 million), including construction inprogress.
 

(Note 	at December 31, 1976, El Nasr was carrying-'LE 784,140 for
 
construction inprogress at the Port Said Plant, of which 
L.E. 271,181
 
was building construction and the remaining was civil works on the
 
restoration of canals and ponds.)
 

Table 	VII-2 shows the annual plant additions.
 

TABLE VII-2
 

Additions to Depreciable Assets
 

Equipment
 

Tools
 
Year Building Machinery Total
 

1976 347,426 618,524 965,950
 

1975 143,753 535,398 679,151
 

1974 31,483 530,651 562,134
 

1973 23,760 29,153 52,913
 

2,260,i48
 

Construction in Progress at 12/31/76 2,017,802
 

4,277,850
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7.07 	 As the balance sheets indicate, El Nasr aid the Ministry have made an
 
operating decision to finance plant additions with equity contributions
 
in addition to operating income rather than debt financing. As
 
Table VII-3 below indicates, the debt equity ratio for El Nasr at
 
December 31, 1976, is 25:75 which is very conservative; usually A.I.D.
 
looks to see a 70:30: that is 70% debt to 30% equity. Also, the
 
trend of decreasing current ratios, with a corresponding decrease in
 
current asset and increase in fixed assets further substantiates
 
that equity contributions and current operations are financing the
 
plant expansion. Provided there is adequate cash flow to service
 
debt, El Nasr is in good position to take on a sizeable amount of
 
debt.
 

TABLE VIII-3 

CALCULATION OF BALA1nCE SHEET RATIOS (LE -000) 

1976 1975 1974 1973 1972 

Cash with Receivables 348 554 766 771 625 

Other Current Assets i,506 1,396 1,136 1,020 980 

Total Current Assets 1,854 1,950 1,902 1,791 1,605 

Other Assets 4,645 3,556 1,894 iI59 1,132 

TOTAL ASSETS 6,499 5,506 3,796 2,950 2,737 

Short Term Debt 1,402 981 594 506 424 

Long Term Debt 240 363 91 -0- -0-

TOTAL DEBT 1,642 1,343 686 506 424 

TOTAL EQUITY 4,857 4,162 3,110 2,444 2,313 

Current Ratio 	 1.32:1 1.99:1 3.20:1 3.54:1 3.79:1
 

Acid Ratio 0.25:1 0.56:1 1.29:1 1.52:1 1.47:1
 

Debt Equity atio 25:75 24:76 18:82 17:83 15:85
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Income Statements
 

7.08 	 El 
Nasr's recent history of income is erratic, although overall it

shows a trend at improvement. As mentioned previously, El Nasr
 
retained all the Port Said Plant employees, well over 300, on the
 
payroll from the time El Nasr physically lost possession of the
 
Port Said Plant. Obviously, this has had a verydisruptive effect
 
on maintaining plant efficiency at the Mex plant with 300 extra men
 
to work into an already established operation. Over the period,

the Ministry has reimbursed El Nasr the direct out of pocket expenses

of the Port Said personnel; however, this inno way makes up for the
 
overall inefficiency. During 1976 many of the Port Said employees

have returned to Port Said to begin rebuilding the preconcentration

ponds and crystalizers in anticipation of the plant resuming produc­
tion in 1978. Also, Port Said has been bagging and selling a portion

of the unspoiled raw salt to Turkey during 1976 and 1977. 
 We would
 
expect the Mex Plant to begin showing a better profit picture as
 
the Port Said Plant recalls its employees.
 

7.09 	With net profits before taxes of LE 201,373, LE 150,277, and LE 25,207,

El Nasr has generated only a 4.1%, 3.6% and .8%return on total
 
equity for the Calendar Years 1976, 1975 and 1974 respectively. See
 
Table VII-4. This is not a fair calculation since El Nasr was and is
ina period of major expansion. The plant expansion, financed by

the significant equity contributions# have not yet begun generating

the additional revenue. Although we have not reviewed the financial
 
projects for the Mex Plant additions, El Nasr claims that the additional
 
revenue generated by plant capacity increase, 600,000 tons per year to
 
over 850,000 tons per year, will yield an adequate rate of return.
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B. FINANCING PLAN
 
7.10 
 It isproposed that this project be financed on a two-step basis; that
i4 that the GOE be required to relend the A.I.D. Grant to El Nasr on
commercial terms. 
 Grant financing to the GOE is proposed since this
project is clearly a reconstruction of a
located in the Suez Canal 

war destroyed facility,
area. 
 This is in keeping with recent A.I.D.
criteria. 
 Proposed terms to El Nasr Salines Companyo however, are at
commercial rates. 
 Principal repayment in Egyptian Pounds over a
15-year period including a five year grace period with interest at
10 percent during the life of the loan. 
These terms are consistent
with Egyptian private sector rates and equal to current rates for
companies finding financing from internitional financing entities. 
7.11 
 Interest payments over the life of the loan will total the equivalent
of $13.2 million. The total principal and interest payment from
El Nasr to the GOE will total_$26.2 million
to e' r
...
.. ... J'7..


EpSEyts budget( over the repayment period. ~ ~ s n i~~ q a d t o
tfT Annex 4 shows ... de­iti'sf-and loan amortlzation computatins for ENsr
 

7.12 
Total project costs are $18,477,000, of which $12,962,000 are foreign
exchange costs and $5,515,000 are Egyptian currency costs. 
 The A.I.D.
loan will finance the foreign exchange cost and the local currency
cost will be financed from El 
Nasr's internal cash generation. The
cash flow analysis is covered later in this section.
 

C. PROJECT PROFITABILITY
 

Sales and Pricing
 
7.13 
 Of the various grades of salt produced by El Nasr, the GOE cuntrols
the price on most of them except the refined salt which is set by
El Nasr. Particular attention is given to the sale price for washed,
ground and bagged which is used by the poorer segments of the
population; it isconsidered the "common" salt. 
Generally speaking,
the domestic sales prices are considerably less than FOB Mediterranean
sales prices of the similar grades of salt. 
 Below, are the domestic
and approximate FOB prices for the grades of salt which will be
produced by El Nasr: 
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TABLE VII-5
 

Comparative Sales Price
 

Domestic 	 FOB
 
Refined Salt: LE 21.50/per ton LE 23.20 per ton
 

Washed, ground

Bagged Salt 
 LE 15.50 
 LE 17.00 per tonl / 
(Common):
 

Washed Bulk
 
Salt 
 LE 3.80 
 LT 5.60 

I/Salt in this form and bagged iUnot indemand on an export basis.However, based on production costs of the-milled salt and refinedkitchen salt which are the two closest grades of salt, we have
estimated an export price of LE 17.00 per ton.
 

7.14 	As discussed previously and in the Economic Analysis section, at the
present time, it isassumed that the production from this project
will be consumed inthe domestic market. However, for the purposes
of basing the financial projections, particularly sales revenue,
export sales prices were used for washed, bulk salt production and
for two thirds of the production of refined salt. 
No changes were
made to the sales price for "common" salt, which is consumed by the
lower 	income families. 
 Even with these price adjustments, the Port
Said plant will show small profits, especially inthe beginning of

the project.
 

7.15 
 Clearly, the domestic price of salt isnot sufficient to generate
the revenue to yield adequate profits or, as discussed later,
sufficient cash flow to service debt on the life of the loan. 
A.I.D.
intends to inciude a 
covenant into the Grant Agreement that will
require the undertaking of a
market and sales price study before 1980,
when the Port Said Plant begins production, with the resulting adjust­ment of domestic sales prices to allow the Port Said Plant to generate
sufficient profit cash flow to service debt.
 

7.16 	The gross tonnage of sales of the plant over the first two years of
operation., 1980 and 1981 represent only 44.3 and 78.7 percent
respectively of the plant capacity. 
In the third year of operation,
1982, the gross sales tonnage will reach 95 percent; sales will not
reach 100 percent capacity until the sixth year of operation,
i.e., 	1985. 
This isdue to the nature of salt plant operations in
that it isnecessary to first build up and subsequently maintain a
salt stockpile equivalent to one year's production, inthe case of

this plant, 145,000 tons.
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(Note: Although the technical section of this paper isbased on a
net production, after losses, of 155,000 tons per year, the financial
and economic analyses are based on the assumption that inthe immediate
future the additional land necessary to produce the 10,000 may not
be available. 
Table VII-6 below shows the percent capacity of
production, the number of tons sold, and the restptant revenue..
 

TABLE VII-6 * 

PLANT CAPACITY AND PROFIT GENERATED
 

Percent Tonnage Revenud 

Year 

1980 

Capacity 

34.5% 

Prod. & Sold 

50,000 

Produ 
LE- 000, 

989 

1981 62.0% 90,000 1,754 
1982 86.2% 125,000 2,118 
1983 93.1% 135,000 2,174 
1984 96.6% 140,000 '2,202 
1985 100.0% 145,000 2,230 
1986 100.0% 145,000 2,230 
1987 100.0% 145,000 2,230 
1988 100.0% 145,000 2,230 
1989 100.0$ 145,000 2,230 
Annex Q-1, Production and Sales Schedule Projection
 
shows in 
more detail the effect of building the salt
 
stockpile on 
gross sales over the first five years of
 

the project.
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Profits
 

7.17 Profits, before taxes 

estimated to follow a 

(but after interest and depreciation) are
rather erratic pattern over the first few years
of the project. 
Again, this is primarily a 
result of building a
salt stockpile over this period of time, and consequently, not being
able to sell the total salt harvested each year. A detailed analysis
showing plant profits is included inAnnex Q-1,2, Project Income

Statement.
 

7.18 
 Inorder to properly match costs with revenues, the corresponding
annual percent of capacity was applied to the plant depreciation and
interest expenses over the period that the plant was operating at
less than 100 percent capacity. 
The balance of the amounts which
were not currently expensed, were capitalized until full capacity was
achieved, and then subsequently amortized over the remaining plant
life, 25 years. All other operations expenses were charged at a
rate equivalent to the percentage of the estimated quantity of salt
produced and sold ineach year to the total production capacity of
the plant.
 
7.19 
The plant, however, shows marginal profits in1983 primarily due to
increasing depreciation and interest expenses toward the end of the
5 year deferred expense period. 
The plant actually shows a loss in
1985, the first year the deferred interest and depreciation amounts
are expensed. 
After 1985, however, the plant shows increasing profits
to LE 417,000 in1989 
-
the tenth year of plant operation. A summary
of Port Said's profits for various year- isshown below inTable VII-7.
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Table VII-7 

PORT SAID'S ANNUAL PROJECTED PROFIT 

(LE 000) 
Year Sales Net Profit Before Taxes PrQufit As %.of Sales 

1980 989.0 
 166.8 
 1T.o
 

1981 1,754.5 
 387.9 
 22.0'
 

1982 2,118.0 
 1o4.7 
 5.0
 

1983 2,174.0 
 12.4 
 .6
 

1984 2,202.0 
 18.3 
 .8
 

1985 2,230.0 
 (67.8) 
 (3.0)
 

1986 2,230.0 
 164.5 
 7.0
 

1987 2,230.0 240.5 
 10.0
 

1988 2,230.0 324.0 
 14.o
 

1989 2,230.0 
 417.8 
 18.0
 

El Nasr Debt Service Capability
 
7.20 
During the construction phase of the project, all local currency
requirements will be provided by El 
Nasr, and to the extent necessary
by the Ministry as a contribution to equity. 
Once production begins,
the project will generate sufficient cash flow to service debt through
the year 1987. See Annex R.
 

7.21 
 Beginning with 1978, our projection of cash shows a negative flow.
We would expect, however, that by 1985,asufficient rise in the selling
price of salt, as a 
result of price adjustments, will generate
sufficient revenue to service fixed amount of debt, even taking into
account the expected rise of costs. 

El 

A.I.D. will seek to secure from
Nasr its annual reports in English in which actual experience is
compared to budget figures. 
Also, we intend to require El Nasr to
submit annual financing plans, with projected cash flows to ensure
each year's obligations are planned for and met.
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VIII. 
 ECONOMIC CONSIDERATIONS
 

8.01 
 As discussed above in the marketing section, it is currently projected
that all of the salt produced will be consumed domestically. As a
result, the benefits of this project are equal to the expenditures
that would otherwise have to be made for salt imports for the domestic
 
market.
 

8.02 
 Salt import prices were estimated using current information on inter­national salt prices (cif plus port charges). These import prices are
estimated at $10.67/ton for washed raw salt in bulk, $27.25/ton for
washed ground salt in 25 kg bags, and $44.16/ton for refined kitchen
salt in 25 kg bags. At projected production levels and these prices,
the economic internal rate of return is 17.2%.
 
8.03 
On the capital cost side, the direct foreign exchange components of
investment costs shown in Annex 0 were pro-rated over the two-year
construction period. 
 The expenses section of Annex P served as the
basis for the calculation of the annual operating and maintenance
costs commencing in 1980 (year 3 of the analysis). 
Two adjustments
were made to the expenses reported for each year inAnnex Q. Depre­ciation expenses were excluded from costs and the fuel was shadow
priced at world market prices.
 

8.04 
The gross savings due to this investment would be the foreign exchange
needed to import 145,000 tons of salt annually in those grades and
quantities included inAnnex Q, 
or approximately $3.6 million. 
In
addition fuel exports of the quantities consumed by PSS.at world
market prices would be foregone; using 2,500 tons as an estimate of
fuel consumption would put the value of exports foregone at about
$0.3 million. Deducting the total of $.3 
million from the savings
of $3.6 million would leave a net saving of$3 3 million annually, or
a recovery of the foreign exchange cost of the plant in six years.
 

(Note:' All conversions were calculated at the parallel market rate
 
of one U.S. dollar equals 1.70 Egyptian Pounds.)
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IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS
 

9.01 An environmental 
analysis

prepared by STV inAugust 1977. 


of the Port Said Sal ines project wasSTV's conclusion, inwhich we concur,
isthat this project will have no adverse impact on the environment.
-Ann T shows the potential environmental impacts intable form.
Following isa 
narrative discussion of the environmental analysis.
9.02 
Atmospheric Conditions: 
 Concern with atmospheric conditions center
upon prevailing winds. 
 Upwind sources could 
,ave a detrimental effect
on the salt plant while sensitive downward areas may suffer ifair
pollutants are released during salt operations.
from the northwest. Prevailing winds are
There are no existing or planned land development
to the northwest which will produce undue levels of air pollutants,
and none to the southwest which would be sensitive to any pollutants
originating from the salt plant.
 
9.03 
Soil Conditions: 
 The soils at the plant range from a silt to fine
san4 underlain by clay, silt and fine sand and are not suitable for
buildings requiring heavy foundations. 
 Care will be needed in
selecting the location and site of salt stacks since their weight
issuch that they could uplift soil pressures on nearby plant
buildings. 
Groundwater isbasically saline and will not be adversely
effected by plant operations.
 
9.04 
Sonic Conditions: 
 The plant area covers ten square kilometers and
isnow surrounded by undeveloped land, marshes and water bodies.
Noise levels at specific areas on the site may be objectionable.
However, the noise will quickly dissipate.
 
9.05 
WasteDisposal: Sewerage from Port Said and Port Fouad should not
pose a 
threat to final salt quality or seawater quality at the point
where El Nasr's seawater intake isplanned. 
 Ships moving through
the Suez Canal are not permitted to dump wastes inthe canal or
within Egyptian territorial waters. 
Sewerage generated by the salt
plant's employees istreated inseptic tanks and isnot a 
threat
to salt or water quality.
 
9.06 Bittern Disposal: 
 A solution of bromides, magnesium and calcium
salts (known as bittern) will remain after the sodium chloride is
crystallized out of the saltwater. 
The bittern concentration will
be more than 40 times that of seawater and discharge into the sea at
this level of concentration would be harmful to marine and plant
life. 
 To remedy this, the bitterns will be diluted to a
concentratiorl
of ten times seawater and returned to the sea. 
 The level of concen­tration meets U.S. standards.
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9.07 	 Fuel Oil Stora e: Approximately 40,000 liters of diesel fuel will be
 
stored at the site. Dikes and containment areas, with a capacity

twice that of the tanks, will be built around oil tanks.
 

9.08 	Construction Phase: Itwill take approximately 24 months to complete

the re-establishment and modernization of the plant. 
During this
 
period, between 100 and 200 additional workers will be on the site.
 

9.09 	THRESHOLD DECISION
 

This project will not adversely affect such aspect of the human environ­
ment as air, water, land flora and fauna. Sicio-economic condition will
be improved as a result of this project. The initial environmental
 
analysis indicates that this project will 
not have a significant effect
 
on the environment.
 

9.10 	The reasonable foreseeable effects of environmental impact on organisim

in the biosphere, including human life, are not significant. Consequently,

the threshold decision is that an Environmental Assessments or an
 
Environmental Impact Statement is not considered as required for this
 
project. The IEE Determination Sheet is shown in Annex T.
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X. SOCIAL ANALYSIS
 

A. General
 

10.01 	 Other than primary economic growth benefits which will result from
this project, there are benefits which are closely related to the
 
major Egyptian social goals of employment generation and population

dispersion. Both of these social oriented goals represent important

aspects of Egypt's development program. Given the equity concern of

Egyptian Development planners itcan safely be assumed that economic

benefits derived from the development investment are distributed
 
among the population at large with a significant portion of these
 
benefits supporting programs which ameliorate the environment of
 
the poorer classes inEgypt.
 

10.02 	One of the most fundamental socio-economic problems facing Egypt

over the next two decades will be finding jobs for the estimated
 
300,000 young men and women entering the labor force each year.
Present estimates hold that only about 185,000 jobs are being

created each year. Inpart the exporting of trained Egyntians to the

oil-rich Arab countries has provided a pressure valve for the rapidly

expanding labor force. 
Ithas 	also given the GOE time to reassess

it's investment policies and orient these, whenever possible, toward
 
projects which create jobs along with increasing the productive

capacity of Egypt.
 

10.03 	This project will directly create 250 new jobs at the proposed plant­
site inthe Port Said area. As the production from the plant comes
 
on stream additional jobs will be created inthe systems which
 
transport and distribute the salt. The jobs created will -include
 
management and administration of the plant, the technical refinery

operation, material handling, packaging and general marketing of
 
the product.
 

10.04 	The developmentof a rational urban development policy which will
 
curtail emigration from rural areas to Cairo isa
major 	challenge

for Egypt. Cairo and Alexandria presently contain about 27% of the
population of Egypt. 
 Cairo's eight million population will increase
 
.to about 20 million people by 1990 ifthe present emigration and

population growth trends continue.
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10.05 
 Two important factors have encouraged the rural/urban migration in
Egypt. Population increases in rural areas have created labor sur­pluses because agricultural activity is limited by the availability
of water and suitable land. 
 Inaddition the government has 
over
the last 20 years deliberately allocated a disproportionate level
of public funds to centralize government services and urban based
production activities. 
 These two factors have led to a concentration
of the more attractive employment opportunities in the urban areas­principally Cairo and Alexandria.
 
10.06, As the government has become increasingly aware of the need to under­take policies which will 
stem this flow of people to Cairo it has
undertaken a broad range of programs to address this problem. 
One of
the most important of these programs has been the redevelopment and
renovation of the Canal Cities, with the creation of meaningful job
opportunities in these cities. 
 The potential impact of this policy
could have broad reaching effect in the medium and long term as
these cities begin to attract part of these migrating rural people.
As such this project directly supports this important GOE social
goal of urban dispersion.
 
10.07 
El Nasr Salines Company already employs 225 women which represents
fifteen percent of its work force. 
There is complete economic equality
within the firm between women and men 
- each receiving the same pay for
the same work performed. 
The majority of women, in the Company's
work force are employed in secretarial 
or clerk positions but they are
also represented in senior management positions which include lawyers,
accountants and engineers. 
It can be assumed that this pattern will be
repeated in the Pott Said Plant and therefor this project will directly
increase the productive role that women play in the economic development


of Egypt.
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XI. PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION
 

A. Implementing Agency
 

1. El Nasr Salines
 
11.01 The El 
Nasr Salines Company, a public sector company of the Egyptian
Government, will be responsible for the implementation of this
project. The organization and resources of this company have been
discussed in Chapter IVof this paper.
 

2. Cooperating Agencies
 
11.02 
As a part of its program to widen and deepen the Suez Canal, 
the
Suez Canal Authority (SCA), a semi-autonomous agency of the GOE,
isplanning to construct a by-pass canal which will bisect the
existing company lake. 
To compensate for this, the SCA has agreed to
construct dikes along the periphery of an adjacent area which will
serve in the future as the company lake (concentration pond).
 
11.03 
The Egyptian Electric Authority has agreed to fully satisfy the
El Nasr Salines Company electric power requirements, approximately
1,999 KV, in 1978 at which-time the Port Said and Port Fouad electric
networks will be interconnected.
 

B. Implementation Plan
 

1. Current Status
 
11.04 
nuring the past several years, the El 
Nasr Salines Company has
accomplished considerable work in reconstructing the solar salter
at Port Said. 
Civil works, including office, garage and guest house
building, have been erected and site roads and dikes have been
improved or restored. Using equipment borrowed from the company's
facility at Mex (Alexandria), the company expects to begin limited
production of raw salt this year.
 
11.05 
El Nasr will assign a Project Management Team to the project whose
full time responsibility will be project execution. 
The Team will be
headed by a Project Manager, who will 
be a senior executive of El
Nasr, and include civil and process engineers, accounting and procure­ment personnel.
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2. Consulting Services
 
11.06 
The company will 
contract for consulting engineering services to
funded under this project. be
Services will include assistance to the
company in preparation of a final project plan, schedule and budget,
final equipment specifications and IFBs, evaluation of bids, award
and contract execution, monitoring of procurement, overall supervision
of construction and erection, project startup, testing and acceptance.

11.07 
 The El Nasr Salines Company has 
indicated its desire to utilize the
firm of STV, Incorporated, for the above cited engineering services.
The STV study team worked very:closely with the company in preparing
the initial study of the technical and environmental aspects of
this project under Contract No. AID/otr-C-1452. 
A.I.D.-i1l-rev­the consultant selection in accordance with provisions of Section
lB2K of AID Handbook 11, .Country Contracting.
 

3. Procurement
 
11.08 
 The El Nasr Salines Company will procure all equipment, vehicles
tools, and materials from U.S. suppliers utilizing AID approved IFBs
and Handbook 11 procedures. 
It is anticipated that procurement will
be divided into several major categories: 
 washing and stockpiling
facilities; salt refinery; harvesting and transport/support equipment;
shop and laboratory equipment; and miscellaneous materials, including
construction materials.
 
11.09 
The expected approach to the two main production facilities, i.e.,
the raw salt washing and stockpiling facility and the salt refinery,
will 
involve single responsibility (turnkey) type contracts or
possibly one contract covering both facilities. 
The supplier would
be required to provide detailed design, all equipment, piping,
electricals, etc., and technical services including supervision of
erection, startup and training of operators and maintenance crews.
11.10 
All civil works will be accomplished by Egyptian general contractors
working directly under sontract(s) with El Nasr Salines Company.
Any specialized civil designs will be provided by the related U.S.
supplier. 
Designs relative to standard works, i.e., roads, dikes,
pump houses and 
sea water intake, etc.,


consulting engineer or El Nasr. 
will be provided by the
 

C. Implementation Schedule 
11.11 
The implementation schedule is shown in bar chart format inAnnex U.
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0. Terminal Dates and Project Assistance Completion Date
 

11.12 	The terminal date for meeting Conditions Precedent will be 120 days

after the date of signing of the Grant Agreement.
 

11.13 	 The ploject assistance completion date will be Nwvember 30, 1979.
 
The terminal date for disbursements will be August 31, 1980.
 

E. Monitoring and Reporting
 

11.14 	Upon signing of the Grant Agreement, USAID will issue an Implementation

Letter which, among other things, will contain the necessary guidance

details on the types of reports (e.g., progress, financial, shipping)

and reporting formats to be followed. At the commencement of his
 
work, the Consulting Engineer will update the P-oject Schedule
 
which, when approved by El Nasr, will become the basis for project

executien. The Consulting Engineer and El Nasr will be required to
 
submit monthly progress reports to A.I.D., stating progress in
 
conformance with the implementation schedule. Throughout the lif'
 
of the project, the U.S. Consultant will monitor the project to
 
ensure satisfactory project progress. Any routine problems,

together with corresponding suggested solutions, will be brought to
 
the attention of USAID inthe form of the monthly reports from the
 
Consultant and El Nasr. Serious problems requiring inmediate attention
 
will be brought to the attention of the U'SAID Project Manager and
 
his counterpart inEl Nasr. Project progress will be deternined by

measuring actual performance against the approved schedule. USAID
 
staff will make periodic visits to the plant site to review progress

and problems with El Nasr's management staff and the Consultant, as
 
well as meet on a regularly scheduled basis with El Nasr and the
 
Consultant.
 

F, Evaluation
 

11.15 	 Two basic evaluation processes will be undertaken as part of this
 
project. Based on the detailed monitoring reports which will be
 
submitted by the Consulting Engineer, the AID Project Manager working

with the El Nasr Project Manager will undertake an annual evaluation/
 
progress report which will summarize the consulting engineers

report's reports and evaluate the progress of project implementation

against the agreed to schedule. This report will be used by El Nasr
 
and A.I.D. as an annual check on progress. Suggested dates for
 
these reports are October 1978, October 1979 and October 1980.
 

11.16 	A more detailed technical assessment will be made inthe Fall of 1981;

when the plant will have been inoperation for at least one productio;.

cycle. This assessment will be made by a team of El Nasr and A.I.D.
 
technicians and will assess the progress made toward the production

objective of this project. Ifthe design production capacity has been
 
reached or indicators are such that the Team, believes this capacity

will be reached in the following cycle the project will be considered
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to be successfully completed. 
The Team will draft an Evaluation

Report stating their findings and submit this Report to El 
Nasr
Salines Company and the Agency for International Development/
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XII. RECOM4MENDATION, CONDITIONS AND COVENANTS
 

A. Recommendation
 

12.01 
 Subject to the conditions and covenants listed bglow, we recommend that
A.I.D. authorize a Grant to the Government of Egypt in the amount of
$13 million for the reconstruction and modernization of the Port Said
Salines Plant. 
We further recommend that Grant funds be loaned to the
El Nasr Salines Company at an annual interest rate of ten percent (10%)
with the principal to be repaid over a 15 year period, including a
five year grace period. The equipment and services financed by this
grant will have their source and origin in the United States.
 
B. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement
 

12.02 
We recommend that the Conditions Precedent to Disbursement be segregated
into two groups. 
 The first, or initial, 
set would be those conditions
which must be satisfied before the employment of a consulting engineer.
The second, or subsequent, set would be those conditions which must be
satisfied before the purchase of plant and equipment.
 

12.03 
The Conditions Precedent to Initial Disbursement are:
 

a) An opinion of the Egyptian Ministry of Justice or other':egal
counsel satisfactory to A.I.D. that the grant agreement and the
corresponding relending agreements have been duly authorized and
ratified by, and executed on behalf of, the GOE and is
a valid and
legally binding obligation in accordance with its terms.
 

b) The names of the persons who will act as the representatives
of the GOE and El Nasr Salines, tigether with evidence of their
authority and the specimen signature of each.
 

c) Evidence that the grant proceeds will be made available to
El Nasr Salines on terms and conditions satisfactory to A.I.D.
 
d) An executed contract acceptable to A.I.D. for consulting
 

engineering services.
 

12.04'r The Conditions Precedent to Subsequent Disbursements are:
 

a) A model flow analysis and sedimentation study of the Sea Water
intake location.
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b) A cost comparison between obtaining sea water from the
Mediterranean Sea and the building of a pipe line to Lake Mallaha.
 

c) An agreement between El Nasr Salines and the Suez Canal
Authority for the building of new concentration ponds which defines
responsibility between the two parties.
 

C. Covenants
 

12.05 The GOE and El 
Nasr will be required to covenant:
 

a) Execution of the Project
 

i To cause the project to be carried out due diligence and
efficiency, and inconformity with sound engineering, construction,

financial and administrative practices
 

ii To cause the project to be carried out incrinformance
with all the plans, specifications, contracts, schedies, and other
arrangements, and with all modifications therein approved by A.I.D.
 

iii To submit for A.I.D. approval prior to implementatiot,
issuance, or execution, all plans, specifications construction

schedules, bid documents concerning solicitation of proposals relating
to eligible items, contracts, and all modifications to these documents.
 

b) Funds and other Resources to be Provided
 

To make available on a 
timely basis all Egyptian currency and
all foreign currency in addition on the Grant and all other resources
required for the punctual and effective carrying out of construction,

maintenance, repair and operation of the project.
 

c) Operation and Maintenance
 

i To operate, maintain and repair the project in conformity
with sound engineering financial and administrative practices and in
such manner as to insure the continuing and successful achievement
 
of the purposes of the project.
 

ii To undertake necessary action to determine the best means
of removing and appropriately utilizing the existing stockpiles of
salt at Port Said which were harvested prior to the 1967 war.
 

iii 
 To abtain from the Egyptian Electricity Authority (EEA)
a 
written guarantee that Port Said Salines will be provided, prior
to plant startup, full electrical power requirement of 1,000 KW.
 

d) Management
 

i To provide qualified and experienced management for the
project and to train such staff as may be appropriate for the mainten­
ance and operation of the project.
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e) Continuing Consultation
 

i To cooperate fully with A.I.D. to assure that the purpose
of the grant will be accomplished. To this end, the GOE, El Nasr and

A.I.D. shall from time to time, at the request of any party, exchange

views through their representatives with regard to the progress of

the project, the performance of the GOE and El Nasr of its obligations

under the grant agreement, the performance of consultants, contractors

and suppliers engaged on the project, and other iatters relating to
 
the project.
 

f) Financial Planning
 

A.I.D. will seek during grant agreement negotiations the
following undertakings from the GOE and El 
Nasr Salines Company.

These undertakings are negotiable and thus are not being included in
 
the grant authorization.
 

i Not to take any action or make any investments to further

increase El Nasr's salt production capacity without prior consent anC
 
approval of A.I.D.
 

ii To have an Egyptian Charted Accountant, who is representing

an American firm of Certified Public Accountants, to annually through

the year 1990 translate appropriate sections of El Nasr's Annual
 
Report, in order to prepare Historical Financial Reports, including
Balance Sheets, Income Statements and Source and Application of

Funds inconformity with presentation standard prescribed by the
 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
 

iii To submit to A.I.D. each year until 
1990 a one year and
 
five year plan showing sources and application of funds to ensure
 
all debts will be properly serviced.
 

iv Without the prior consultation and approval of A.I.D.,
 
El Nasr agrees:
 

(a) Not to (1)declare any divident or to make any other
distribution with respect to its capital e;*cept out of accumulated
 
adjusted net earnings; (2)purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire,

directly or indirectly for any consideration of any such capital; or
 
(3)otherwise reduce its capital or prepare any long-term debt, if,
after giving effect to any such action the ratio or current assets
 
to current liabilities would be less than 1.5:1 (60:40).
 

(b) Not to make expenditures, or commitments for expendi­
tures for capital additions in any one year which exceed Egyptian

pounds three million (L.E. 3,000,000), except those expenditures and

commitments required for carrying out the Project.
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(c) To maintain a ratio of current assets to current
 
liabilities of at least 1.5:1 (60:40) and not to incur or to have
 
outstanding any long-term debt if the aggregate principal amount of
 
El Nasr's outstanding long-term debt exceeds 150 percent of El Nasr's
 
net worth.
 

v Submit to A.I.D. by the end of 1980, a completed market
 
and sales price policy study relating to the salt industry, along
 
with El Nasr Salines Company's plans for implementing the recommenda­
tion of the study. The salt prices should be set at a level which
 
will allow El Nasr to generate a reasonable profit on investment
 
after paying all production cost and operating costs and servicing
 
debt.
 



ANNX A
 

MINISTRY OF IDCONOM 
AND ECOZTOMIC C00PERATION 

lLt. Donald S. Brown 
Aia Director
 
U.S.A. Embassy 
Cairo.
 

Cairo, "-Sept. 1977.
 

Dear Mr. Brown, 

One of the priority objectives of the Government 
of the Arab Republic of Egypt is to reconstruct the 230,000
ton per year solar salt plant at Port Said. This reconst­
ruction is considered essential to meet the increased in­
dustrial demand for sodium chloride used in the production

of -aper and pulp, petrochemicals, plastics, textiles, foodprocessing and leather tanning. The estimated cost of this 
project is approximately $30 million.
 

We would like the assistance of the Government 
of the United States of America to grant finance the foreign

exchange costs of the project. 
This portion is estimated at

approximately $13 million. We will provide the Egyptian

Pound financing required for the 
project. 

Sincerely yours, 

GANAL EL-NAZER 
Deputy Chairman

For Investment Authority
In Charge of Economic Cooperation 
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ANNEX B-1
OEPARTMENT OF STATE 

AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
WASHINGTON 

THE ADMINISTRATOR 

PROJECT'AUTHORIZATION

AND REQUEST FOR ALLOTMENT OF FADS
 

Name of Country: 	Arab Republic of Egypt 
 Name of Project: 	 Port Said
 
Salines
 

Number of Project: 263-0072
 

Pursuant to Part II,Chapter 4, Section 532 (Security Supporting

Assistance Funds), of the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961, 
as amended,
I hereby authorize a Grant to the Arab Republic of Egypt ("the Cooperat­ing Country") of not to exceed Thirteen Million United States Dollars

($13,000,000) to finance the foreign exchange costs for goods and

services of the project as described in the following paragraph.
 

The project purpose is to reconstruct the Port Said Salines Plant
located at Port Said, Arab Republic of Egypt. A.I.D. will finance under
the project the procurement of various kinds of equipment required for
the salt plant, construction materials, and technical assistance.
 

The entire amount 	of the A.I.D. financing herein authorized for
the project will be obligated when the Project Agreement is executed.
 

I hereby authorize the initiation of negotiation of the Project
Agreement by the officer to whom such authority has been delegated in
accordance with A.I.D. regulations and Delegations of Authority subject
to the following terms and covenants and major conditions; together
with such other terms and conditions as A.I.D. may deem appropriate.
 

a. Source and Origin of Goods and Services
 

Except as A.I.D. may otherwise agree in writing, goods and
services financed by A.I.D. appropriated funding shall have their
 
sourre and origin in the United States.
 

b. Conditions Precedent to Initial Disbursement
 

Prior to the first disbursement or the issuance of any funding
dcuentation under the Grant, the Grantee and El Nasr Salines
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shall furnish to A.I.D. in form and substance satisfactory to
 
A.I.D.:
 

(1) An opinion of the Egyptian Ministry of Justice or other
legal counsel satisfactory to A.I.D. that the Grant

Agreement and the corresponding Relending Agreement have

been duly authorized and ratified by, and executed on

behalf of, the Grantee and are valid and legally binding

obligations in accordance with its terms.
 

(2) The names of the persons who will act as the representa­
tives of the Grantee and El Nasr Salines, together with
evidence of their authority and the specimen signature

of each.
 

(3) Evidence that the Grant proceeds will be made available
 
to El Nasr Salines on terms and conditions satisfactory
 
to A.I.D.
 

(4) An executed contract acceptable to A.I.D. for consulting
 
engineering services.
 

c. Other Conditions
 

Prior to any disbursement, or the issuance of any commitment
documents under the project other than to finance consulting

engineering services, Grantee and El Nasr Salines shall, except
as A.I.D. may otherwise agree in writing, furnish in form and

substance satisfactory to A.I.D.:
 

(1) A model flow analysis and sedimentation study of the
 
Sea Water intake location.
 

(2) A cost comparison between obtaining sea water from the

Mediterranean Sea and the building of a pipe line to
 
Lake Mallaha.
 

(3) An agreement between El Nasr Salines and the Suez Canal

Authority for the building of new concentration ponds

which defines responsibility between the two parties.
 

d. Covenants
 

(1) Execution of the Project
 

The Grantee and El 
Nasr Salines shall covenant that they

will:
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(a) cause the project to be carried out with due diligence
and efficiency, and in conformity with sound engin­eering, construction, financial and administrative
 
practices;
 

(b) cause the project to be carried out in conformance

with all the plans, specifications, contracts,
schedules, and other arrangements, and with all
modification therein approved by A.I.D. pursuant

to this Agreement;
 

(c) submit for A.I.D. approval prior to implementation,
issuance, or execution, all plans, specifications,

construction schedules, bid documents concerning

solicitation of proposals relating to eligible
items, contracts, and all modifications to these
documents.
 

(2) Funds and other Resources to be Provided
 

The Grantee and El Nasr Salines shall covenant that they
will make available on a timely basis all Egyptian
currency and all foreign currency in addition to the
Grant and all other resources required for the punctual
and effective carrying out of construction, maintenance,
repair and operation of the project.
 

Deputy Administrator
 

Date
 



ANNEX C 

UNITED STATES AGENCY for INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
CAIRO, EGYPT 

EGYPT - PORT SAID SALfNES PLANT PROJECTCERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 611 (e),
FOREIGN ASSISTANCE ACT 

I, Donald S. Brown, Director of the United. States Agency forInternational Development Mission to Egypt, having taken intoaccount, among other things, the maintenance and utilizationof projects in Egypt previously financed or assisted by theUnited States, do hereby certify that in my judgment, Egypthas both the financial capability and the human resourcescapability to effectively maintain and utilize the Port SaidSalines Plant which will contribute 145,000 tons of salt toEgypt's salt requirement, taking into accountthe maintenance and utilization of projects 
among other things

in Egypt previouslyfinanced or assisted by the United States. 

/ ./ 

Donald S. Brown 
Director 
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(2)- PROJEcr cHErisr 
Listed below are, first, statutory criteria applicable generally to projects with FAA funds, andthe. project criteria applicable to Individual fund sources:
category for- criteria applicable only 

Development Assistance.(wtth a sub­to. loans): and. Security Supporting Assistance funds. 

'.ROSS REFERICES: 
 ISCOUNTRY CHECKI.IST UP TO DATE? 
 IDDITIFY. RAS-WAOARD'ITEN CHECXLIST BEEN
REVIEWED. FOR THIS PROJECT? 

.GEUERAL CRITERIA FOR PROJECT.
 
1. 	 App. Unnumbered; FAA Sec. 653(b) 

(a)Describe how Committees on Appropria-

tions of Senate and House have been or.
will be notified concerning the project;

(b)isassistance within (Operational
Year- audget) country or international 

organization allocation reported to
Congress (or n3t more than $1million over that figure plus 10%)? 

Z.FA 1() . Prior to obligationin excess or ,000, will there be (a)engineering, financial, and other plans
necessary to carry out the assistance and
(b)a-reasonably firm estimate of the 

cost to the U.S. of the assistance?
 

3.. 	PAA Sec. 611(a)(21. Iffurther legis­lative actionis required within recipient
country, what isbasis fcr reasonable 

expectation that such action will be
completed in time to permit orderly
accomplishment of purpose of the assis­
tance?
 

4. 	FAA Sec.611(b); Ao. Sec.101. If forwater or water-retaea 'land resourceconstruction, has project met the stan-.

dards and criteria as per Menrandum ofthe 	President dated Sept. 5, 1973

(replaces Hemorandum of May 15, 1962;see 	Fed. Register, Vol 
38, 	11o.174, Part
III, Sept. 10, 1973)?
 

5.. 	FAA Se. 
611(e . If project iscapital
assistance (e.,construction), and allU.S. assistance for it will exceed' 
$1million, has Mission Director certified

the country's capability effectively to
mintain and utilize the project?
 

'An "Advice of Program Chang'e" has 
been prepared for transmittal to
the appropriate committees of Con­
gress. Oblitations under this
amendment will notto 	 takeI place prior

", 
15 days after, the date- of del 

very of this notifcation. 
..intended obligation is within 

The 
the­level of funds appropriated, for Egypt'

for FY 1977. 

aj yes- -b yes 

No 	further legislative action is
required to implement the-project.
 

Not applicable.,-


This Mission Director has so certified.
 
Thi Minio E cSee Annex E.
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A. 
6. FAA Sec. 

of execution
of eecl~onaspat209, 619. of regional orIsproject susceptible
mluti-" '" 
as part frgonlolateral project? 
If
so executed? Informationso why

andisproject notconclusion 
whether assistance will encourage
regional development programs. 
 If 

assistance isfor newly independent

country, is itfurnishej through multi­lateral organizations cr'plans to 
 he' 	.
naximum extent appropriite?
 

7. FAA Sec.601la (and Sec.20evelo 	 201 f forment loans . In-ormation and­even ent n r anconc usions wnether prolect will encourage

efforts of the country :o: (a)increase
the flow of internatiomil trade; (b)fos-
ter private initiativ: ind competition; 

(c)encourage developmeit and use of
cooperatives, credit unions, and savings

and loan associations; (d)discourage

monopolistic practices; (e)improve

technical efficiency of industry, agri­culture and commerce; and (f)strengthen

free labor unions.
 

8. FAASc.601(b) Info.iation and con-

c usion on ow project will encourage
U.S. 	private trade and investment abroad
and encourage private U.S. participation 

inforeign assistance programs (including
use of private trade channels and the
services of U.S. private enterprise).
 

9. FAA Sec. 612(h); Sec. 636(h). 
 Describe
 
Zlteps taken to assure tnt, to the
maximum extent possible, the country. is
contributing local currencies to meet
the cost of contractual and other
services, and foreign currencies owned
by the U.S. are utilized to meet the cost
of contractual and other services.
 

10. 	 FAA Sec. 612(d). Does the U.S. own excess
foreign currency and, if so, what arrange-
ments have been made for its release? 


B. FUWDING CRITERIAFOR PROJECT 

1. Development Assistance Project Criteria
 
a. FAA Sec. 102(c); Sec. III- Sec. 281a. 

Extent to which activity willt') 
effec­tively involve the poor in dvelopment,

by extending access to economy at local
level, increasing labor-intensive pro­duction, spreading ikivestment out from

cities to small towns and rural areas;
and (b)help develop cooperatives,

especially by technical assistance, to
assist rural and urban poor to help
themselves toward better life, and other­wi3e 	encourage democratic private and
local governmental institutions?
 

T
execution as part of a regional 
or
The 	 project. is not susceptible of 
m.ultilateral project. 
Egypt is-nOta newly independent country.


nd et 

The 	El Nasr Salines Co. is a public

sector company." Consequently, '61Nproject will only directly affecti
 
item (e); that is, it will im­-prove the technical efficiency of
 
the 	Egyptian salt industry. 

The 	great majority of funds
expended will be for goods and s

eendes w ie r g 
 o n sservices from private U.S. 
concers.
 

Yes,Release by the GOE is not a
 
ero lea se 
 t
problem at present. 

Not 	Applicable.
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b. FAA Sec. 103, 103A. 104, 105, 106,

107. Is assistance being made available:
 
UFIolude only applicable paragraph

j..,a, b, etc. --
which corresponds to
 
source of funds used. 
 If more than one
 
fund sourutt i ub for project, include
 
relevant paragraph for each fund source.]
 

(1) [103] for agriculture, rural develop­
ment or iutrit'on; if so, extent to
 
which activity is specifically

designed to Increase productivity
 
and income of r.iral poor; E103A]

if for agricultiral research, is

full account Laken of needs of small
 
farmers;
 

(2) [104] for population planning or
 
health; if so, extent to which
 
activity extends low-cost, integrated

delivery systeff; to provide health
 
and family planning services,
 
especially to eiral areas and poor;
 

(3) [105] for educacion, public admin­
istration, or r,'Jman 
resources
 
development; it so, extent to which
 
activity strengthens nonformal
 
education, makc, formal education
 
more relevant, especially for rur1
 
families and urban poor, or
 
strengthens management capability

of institutions enabling the poor to
 
participate in development;
 

(4) [106] for technical assistance,
 
energy, research, reconstruction,
 
and selected development problems;
 
if so, extent arvivity is:
 

(a) technical cooperation and develop­
ment, especially with U.S. private

and voluntary, or regional and inter­
national development, organizations;
 

(b) to help alleviate energy problem;
 

(c) research into, and evaluation of,

economic development processes and
 
techniques;
 

(d) reconstruction after natural 
or
 
manmade disaster;
 

(e) for special develooment problem,

and to enable proper utilization of
 
earlier U.S. infrastructure, etc.,
 
assistance;
 

(f) for programs of urban development,

especially small labor-intensive
 
enterprises, marketing systems, and
 
financial or other institutions to
 
help urban poor participate in
 
economic and social develooinent.
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(5) [107] by grants for coordinated
 
private effort to oevelop and

disseminate interm ?diate technologies

appropriate for developing countries.
 

c. 
FAA Sec. llO(a.), LPc. 208(e) 
 Is the
recipient country willing to-contribute

funds to the project, and in what manner
has or will it provide assurances that it
will provide at least 25% of the Costs of
the program, project, or activity with
respect to which the assistance is to be
furnished (or has the latter cost-sharing

requirement beer, waived for a "relatively

least-developed" country)?
 

d. FAA Sec. 110(b). 
 ill grant capital

assistance be disburseo for project over
 more than 3 years? 
if so, has justifi­cation satisfactory to Congress been made,
and efforts for other financing?
 

FAA Sec. 207; Sec.113.
e. Extent to
which assistance reflects appropriate

emphasis on; 
(1) encouraging development

of democratic, economic, political, and
social institutions; (2) self-help in
meeting the country's food needs; (3)

improving availability of trained worker­
power in the country; (4) programs
designed to meet the country's health
needs; (5) other important areas of
economic, political, 
and social develop­
ment, including industry; free labor
unions, cooperatives, and Voluntary

Agencies; transportation and communida­
tion; plannino and public administration;

urban development, and modernization of
 
existing laws; or 
(6) integrating women
into the recipient country's national
 
economy.
 

f. FAA Sec. 281(b). Describe extent to
whic recognizes the particular

needs, desires, and capacities of the
 
people of the country; utilizes the
couotry's intellectual to
resources 

encourage institutional development;

and supports civic education and training
in skills required for effective partici­pation in governmental and political

processes essential 
to self-.overnment.
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g. FAA Sec. 201 b?(2).(4 ) and -(8); Sec.
 

201*e); Sec. 1(a():(3)and -8 . Doesthe activity give reasonable promise of
contributing to the development: of
economic resources, or to the increasL of

productive capacities and self-sustaining

nconomic growth; or of educational or

other institutions directed toward social
progress? Is it related to and consis­
tent with other development activities,

and will itcontribute to realizable
 
long-range objectives? And does project

paper provide information and conclusion
 
on an activity's economic and technical
 
soundness?
 

h. FAA Sec. 201fbi(e); Sec. 211(a)(5), (6).

information and conclusion on possible

effects of the assistance on U.S. economy,

with 9pecial reference to areas of sub­
stantial labor surplus, and.extent to
 
which U.S. commodities and assistance
 
are furnished in a 
manner consistent with

improving or safeguarding the U.S. balance.
 
of-payments position.
 

2. Development Assistance Project Criteria
 
.(LoansonTy)
 

a. FAA Sec. 201(b)(1). Information 

and conclusion onavailability of financ­
ing from other free-world sources,

including private sources within U.S.
 

b. FAA Sec. 201(b)2); 201(d). Infor­
mation and conclusion on--TT-apacity of

the country to repay the loan, including

reasonableness of repayment prospects,

and (2)reasonableness and legality

(under laws of country and U.S.) of

lending and relending terms of the loan.
 

c. FAA Sec. 201(e). If loan isnot

made pursuant to a multilateral plan,

and the amount of the loan exceeds
 
$100,O0o,. has country submitted to AID
 an application for such funds together

with assurances to indicate that funds
 
will be used inan economically and
 
technically sound mannar?
 

d. FAASec. 201( . Does project paper

describe how project will promote the

country's economic development taking

into account the country's human and
 
material resources requirements and

relationship between ultimate objectives

of the project and overall economic
 
development?
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e. 
FAA Sec. 20?(a). Total amount of
money unoer oarnwhich is going directly

to private enterrrise, is going to
intermediate credit institutions or

other borrowers for use by private

enterprise, is beinq used to finance
imports from private sources, or is
otherwise being used to finance procure­
ments from private scirces?
 

f. FAA Sec. 620(d). Ifassistance is

for any productive--enterprise which will
compete in the U.S. with U.S. enterprise,

is there an aoreement by the recipient
....country to prevent exDort to 
the U.S. of
 more than 20% of the entcrprise's annual
production during tni life of the loan?
 

3. Project Criteria Solelyfor Security
Supporting Assistance 

FAA-Sec. 531. 
 How will this assistance 
support promote ecorn.nic or pc liticalstability? 

4. Additional Criteria lor Alliance for 

Progress 

[Note: Alliance for 'rogress projects 
should add the follow)no two items to aproject checklist..J 

a. FAA Sec. 251b)(l) -() Does
assistance take into account principles

bf the Act of BoQota and the Charter of
Punta del 
Este; and to what extent will

the activity contribute to the ecaIcmic
 or political integration of Latin
 
America?
 

b. FAA Sec. 251(b)8); 251(h). 
 For
loans, has there been taken into account
the effort made by recipient nation to
repatriate capita] 
invested it,other
countries by their own citizens? Is
 
loan consistent with the findings and
recommendetions of the Inter-American
 
Committee for the Alliance for Prooress

(now "CEPCIES," the Permanent Executive
Committee of the OAS) in its annual
review of national development activit es?
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This assistance will promote 
economic stability by increasingsalt production for export,thereby gaining critically needed 

' foreign exchange for the GOE. 

Not Applicable. 

C)
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6C(3) - STANDARD ITE4 CHECKLIST 

Listed below are statutory items which normlly will be covered routinely inthose provisions of an
assistance agreement dealing with its implementation, or covered ir:the agreement by exclusion (aswhere certain uses of funds are permitted, but other uses not).
 

These items are arranged under the general headirgs of (A) Procurerent, (B) Construction, and
(C)Other Restrictions.
 

Procurement 
 Procurement of goods and services 
1. 	 FAA Sec. 602. Are there arrangements to will be pursuant to establishedpermit U.S. small business to participate A.I.D. regulations.

equitably in the furnishing of goods and
 
services financed? 

2. 	FAA Sec. 604(a). Will all commodity

procurement financed be from the U.S. Yes. 
except as otherwise determined by the 
President or under delegation from him?
 

3. 	FAA Sec. 601(d). If the cooperating

country discriminates against U.S. Yes.
marine insurance companies, will aqree­
ment require that marine insurance'be
 
placed in the U.S. on coimodities 
financed?
 

4. 	 FAA Sec. 60a(e). If offshore procure- There, will be no such procurement.
ment of agricultural commodity or
 
Rrcduct is to be financed, is there

provision agairst such procurement when
 
the domestic price of such connodity is
 
less than parity?
 

5. 	FAA Sec. 603(a). Will U.S. Government Consideration will be given to the excess personal property be utilized
wherever practicable in lieu of the use 	of excess property whenprocurement of new items? practical. ­

6. 	V.NASec.901(b). (a) Compliance with
 
requirement that at least 50 per centu=
 
of the gross tonnage of commodities Yes.
 
(computed separately for dry bulk
 
carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers)

financed shall be transported on privately
 
owned U.S.-flag commercial vessels to the
 
extent that such vessels are available
 
at fair and reasonable rates.
 

7. 	FAA Sec. 621. If technical assistance
 
is financed, will such assistance be fur-
 Technical assistance, to thenished to the fullest extent practicable greatest extent practical, will beas goods and professional and other from private enterprise on aservices from private enterprise on a 	 contract basis. 
contract basis? If the facilities of
 
other Federal agencies will be utilized,
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are they particularly suitable, not 
competitive with private enterprise, 
and made available qithout. undue inter­
ference with domestic programs? 

8. International Air Tansport. Fair 
Competitive Practicts Act, 1974 

Yes. 

If air transportatic.i of persons or 
property is financed on grant basis, will 
provision be made that U.S.-flag cariers 
will be utilized to the extent sudh 
service is available? 

B. Construction 

1. FAA Sec. 601 d). If a capital (e.g., 
construction) project, are engineering 
and professional services of U.S. firms 
and their affiliates to be used to the 
maximum extent consistent with the 
national interest? 

Yes. 

2. FAA Sec. 611(c). If contracts for 
construction are to be financed, will 
they be let on a corFctitive. basis to 
maximum extent practicable? 

Yes. 

3. FAA Sec. 620(k). If for construction 
of productive enterprise, wlill aggregate 
value of assistance to be furnished by 
the U.S. not exceed $100 million? 

Yes. 

C. Other Restrictions 

1. FAA Sec. 201(d). If development loan, 
is interest rate at least 2% pr annum 
during grace period and at least 3% per 
annum thereafter? 

Not applicable. 

2. FAA Sec. 301(d). If fund is established 
solely by U.S. contributions and adminis­
tered by an international organization, 
does Comptroller General have audit 
rights? 

Not applicable. 

3. FAA Sec. 620(h). Do arrangements
preclude promoting or assisting the 
foreign aid projects or activities of 
Communist-Bloc countries, contrary to 
the best interests of the U.S.? 

The Grant Agreement 
stipulate. 

will so 

4, FAA Sec. 636(i ). Is financing not per­
mitted to be used, without waiver, for 
purchase, long-term leas*-, or exchange 
of motor vehicle manufactured outside 
the U.S. or guaranty of such transaction? 

" 
Financing is not permitted
used for such purposes. 

to be 
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5. Will arrangements preclude use of 
financing: 

a. FAA Sec. 114. to pay for performance 
of abortions o motivate or coerce 
persons to practice abortions? 

Yes-. 

b. FAA Sec. 620(g. to compensate 
owners tor expropriated nationalized 
property? 

Yes. ­

c. FAA Sec. 660. to finance police
training or other law enforcement 
assistance, except for narcoti.2 
programs? 

Yes. 

d. FAA Sec. 662. fo: CIA activities? 

e. Apt. . pay pensions, etc.,fr mi Iitary -personnel? 
Yes. 
Yes. 

f. App.'Sec.
me,,Cs? 106. to pay U.N. assess- Yes. 

g. App. Sec. 107. to carry out provi-
slions of FAA Sections 209(d) and 251(h)?
(transfer to multilateral organization 
for lending). 

Yes, 

h. App.Sec. 501. to be used for 
publicity or propaganda purposes
within U.S. not authorized by Congress? 

Yes. 
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Salt Washinr and Stockpilling Equipment
 

The design capacity of the salt washing and stockpiling equipment

is based upon the ability to handle.he full harvesting rate of
 
approximately 150 TPH.
 

Item No. Units Description
 

1 1 
 Dump Hopper - Driveover, steel construction, 
minimum side slope 600, corrosion-protected, 
nominal capacity 30 M3. 

2 1 	 Feed Conveyor - Inclined troughed, rubber
 
belt, corrosion-protected, capacity 150 TPH.
 

3 1 	 Soiral Classifier - Slow turning, large pool
 
settling area, stainless steel screw and 
trough, nominal capacity 150 TPH. 

4 1 	 Deuwtering Belt - Stainless steel mesh on
 
rubber coated flat carrier rolls, nominal
 
length 18 M, nominal 	width 1.2 M, capaciLy
 
150 TPH.
 

5 2 	 Salt Water Pump - Centrifugal pump casing 
and impeller, monel material, pump capacity
85 M3 per hour (375 GPM). 

6 2 
 Classifier Brine Pump - Centrifugal or
 
axial flow, casing and impeller, monel 
material, maximum capacity 170 M3 (750 GPM). 

7 2 	 Slurry Pump - Centrifugal slurry pump, monel 
material, maximum capacit:r 23 Mi per hour
 
(100 GPM). 

8 1 	 Stockpiling Conveyor - Troughed rubber belt 
conveyor and corrosion-proofed structure,
 
complete with tripper and wing type stacker;
 
total storage pile capacity 125,000 tons,
 

d hourly capacity nominally 150 TPE.
 

http:handle.he
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Salt Refining Equipment 
The design of the refinery equipment is based on an output of 60,000 TPY
 
of refined salt. 
 A 12% processing loss in anticipated.
 

Item No. Units Descrintion
 

1 1Dump 
 Hopper - Steel construction with corrosion
 
proofing, 60 minimum side slope, Grizzly over­
the-top with 15 cm x 15 cm clear openings, 
nominal capacity 20 m3
 .
 

2 j. Lump Crusher - To reduce salt lumps to work­
able size for feeder belt and primary crusher,
 
nominal capacity 15 TPH.
 

3 1 	 Salt Feed Conveyor - Troughed rubber belt feeder 
with magnetic head pulley for iron removal,
steel construction corrosion-proof coating,
capacity 15 TPH. 

4 1 Hammermil- Primary Crusher - Capacity 15 TPH, 
steel construction. 

5 1 Bucket Elevator - Stainless steel or monel
 
buckets mounted on rubber belt, corrosion­
proofed framework, capacity 15 TPH.
 

6 1 	 Screw Classifier - Corrosion-proofed shell
 
and framework, stainless steel or monel shaftand flights, large pool settling 	area, nominal 
o pacity 15 TPH. 

7 1 Dewatering Belt - Mesh belt for flushing and 
dewatering salt, mesh of stailess steel or 
monel wire weave, flat carrier and return 
rolls rubber covered, size nominally 1 M
wide by 5 M long, nominal capacity 15 TPH.
 

8 1 Centrifuge 
- All internal and salt contact 
surfaces of stainless steel, neoprene or 
Lnel covered, framework of corrosion-proofed 
steel, nominal capacity 15 TPH. 

S-
9 2 Pump for sea water or ground 
water, centrifugal wetted parts monel capacity
17 M3 per hour (75 GPM). 
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10 2 Brine Pump- 24' Baume brine, wetted parts 
monel, capcity 17 M3 per hour (75 GPM). 

1 2 Slurry Pump - Centrifugal pump, wetted parts 
monel, capcity 35 M3 per hour (150 GPM). 

12 1 D erFeed Conveyor - PVC White food grade 
belting, corrosion-proofed structure, nominal 
capacity 14 TPH. 

13 1 Salt Dryer and Cooler - Complete salt drying 
unit consipting primarily of a rotary dryer 
and coolev, with all salt contact surfaces 
of sta'.Iess steel, all other components of 
corrosion-proofed material, complete with 
furnace, blowers, and automatic controls, 
nominal through-put 14 TPH, moisture output 
0.2%. 

14 1 Secondary Crusher Feed Conveyor - Troughed 
conveyor, PVC white focd grade belting, 
corrosion-proofed structure, magnetic head 
pulley, nominal capacity 14 TPH. 

15 1 Scalping Screen - Single mesh size, stainless 
steel construction, capacity 14 TPH. 

16 1 Secondary Crusher - Double sets cast iron 
rolls, nominal capacity 14 TPH. 

17 1 Crushed Salt Transfer Conveyor - Troughed 
conveyor, PVC white food grade belting, 
corrosion-proofed structure, nominal capacity 
14 TPH. 

18 1 Bucket Elevator - Corrosion resistant buckets 
mounted on rubber belt with corrosion-proofed 
framework, capacity 14 TPH. 

19 1 Screan Feed Conveyor - Troughed conveyor, PVC 
white food grade belting, corrosion-proofed 
structure with split discharge chute of stainless 
steel construction, nominal capacity 14 TPH. 

20 2 Rotary Screans - 3 deck, 3 mesh size, stainless 
steel construction, nominal capacity each 
screen 7.0 TPH 

.- AVAILABLE COPY 
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Oversize Return Conveyor - Troughed conveyor,
 
oversize return FVC white food grade belting, 
corrosion-proofed structure, nominal capacity 
4 TPH 

Salt Mixing and Transfer Conveyor - Combina­
tion mixing and screw transfer conveyors
 
between screens and storage bins, stainless
 
steel construction, n6minal capacity 5 TPH 
each screw.
 

Salt Additive System - Salt additive units 
for metering iodizing or freeflowing materials 
to salt flow, capable of introducing up to 
0.5% of salt tonnage on a continuous basis, 
one on each screw, stainless steel construLt­
ion.
 

Final Salt Holding - Bins stainless steel,
 
supporting framework to be corrosion-proofed,
 
nominal capacity each bin 10 M3 

Salt Transfer Conveyors - Screw conveyors, 
stainless steel, corrosion-proofed supporting 
structure, bottom multi-le discharges to 
feed alternate packing machines, nominal 
capacity of screw conveyor 5 TPH each. 

Salt Bagging Machines - Gross weigher filling 
machine to fill 25 kg open mouth bags, complete 
with sealing units and take away conveyors. 
Sealing units capable of closting either 
plastic or jute bags. All parts in contact
 
with salt stainless steel, nominal capacity 
23,000 TPY or 30 bags per minute rated
 
capacity.
 

Salt Packaging Machine - Filling machine for 
0.5 kg plastic pouches, connected to overheat
 
screw feed conveyors by hoopers and chutes 
for gravity feed, completed with sealing 
units and take away conveyors leading to 
packing area. All parts in contact with 
salt: stainless steel, capacity 35 pouches 
per rminute. 
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28 3 Salt Packaging Machine - Same as Item 27 
except 1 kg pouchel, capacity 
per minute each machine. 

105 pouches 

29 1 Carton Forming Machine -- go shape boxes 
from pre.cut and pre-printed flat sheets, 
cartons to encase plastic pouches as required. 

30 Salt Tablet Forming Machine - To compress 
salt into 0.5 gram tablets. All parts in 
contract with salt: stainless steel, complete
with take away conveyor leading to packing 
area, capacity 3.5 kg per minute, total 
capacity 1000 TPY. 

31 1 Cattle Brick Forming Machine - To compress
Salt into kg bricks. All parts in contact 
with salt: stainless staeel, complete with 
take away conveyor leading to packing area,
capacity 3.5 kg per minute total capacity 
1000 TPY. 

32 1 Dust Collection System - Nominal air movement 
not less than ll00 meters per minute, complete
with wet scrubber or cyclone and duct pipes,
fans, supports, controls, etc. 

33 1 Air compressor - To supply compressed air to 
plant system as required. Nominal capacity 
not less than 3.0 standard cubic meters per
minute. 
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ANNE( I-2
 

Ground Salt Equipment
 

The design of the ground salt equipment is based on an output

of 40,00 TPY. The feed material is washed salt.
 

Item No. Units Description 

1 1 Dump Hopper -Drive over, steel, minimum 
side slope 600, corrosion-protected 15 cm 
x 15 cm Grizzly, nominal capacity 20 M3 . 

2 LumTp Crusher - To reduce salt lumps to 
!forkable size for feeder belt and crusher, 
nominal capacity to TPH. 

3 Crusher Feed Conveyor - Throughed rubber 
belt feeder with magnetic head pulley for 
iron removml, capacity 1OTFM. 

4 1 Hammermill Crusher - Capacity 10 TPH. 

5 1 Bucket Elevator ­ Corrosion-resistant buckets 
mounted on a rubber belt, with corrosion-proof­
ed framework, capacity 10 TPH. 

6 1 Salt Holding Bin - Stainless steel, support­
ing steel framework, corrosion-proofed, 
dual compartments, double discharge, nominal 
capacity 15 M3 . 

7 1 Ground Salt BaggingMachine - Gross weigher
scale for 25 kg open-month bags, complete
with closure attachment and bag take away 
conveyor, a3.Uparts in contact with salt: 
stainless steel, capacity 3.5 bags per minute. 

1 Filling Machines - For I kg plastic pouches, 

--

complete with sealing units and take away 
conveyors leading to packing area, all parts
in contact with salt- stainless steel, capacity 
52 pouches per minute. 
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Annex 0-

PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 

COST CATEGORY DOLLAR LOCAL 
COSTS COSTS TOTAL 

Salt Production 8,115 35.8 8.151 
Equipment 

U.S. Construction 1.322. 14.3 1,336 
Materials 

Engineering, Procure- 1,835 38.6 1,8T4 
ment and Management 

Civil Works 3,679 3,679 

Plant Construction 1,028 1,028 

Subtotal 11,272 4,796 16,068 

Contingencies 15% 1,690 719 2,409 

Total $12,962 $5,515 $18,477 



TABLE 8-1
 

PROJECT COST EVTILITE
 

UNIT 2(1ST TOTAL COST 
(11f THOUSANDS OF (IN THOUSANDS OFSALT JRODUCTION EQUIPMENT QUANTITY U.S. DOLLARS) U.S. DOLLARS)
 

Salt Harvesting Equipment
 

Salt Nsrvester 
 2 $ 112 $ 224
Road Grpader 1 92 92
 
Tractox 
 2 21 42
 

SUB "OTAL $ 358
 

w
M9 Brine Intake Equilo,,f-"
 

Sea W-l-ar Intkc P 
 .:.. 2G.. 56

Interstage ITansie..' kumps 4 22 88 
Bittern Drain Pumps 2 
 20 40
 w Desalting Pumps 2 2 
 4

Fuel Oil Handling JysLeas. 4 4 16
0o Sea Water Intake Pip 27I 27 


SUB TOTAL 
 $231
 

Notes: Production Equipment
 

1. Unit prices are based on September 1977 costs. 

2. All spare parts costs are included ID the ucit costs.
 

3. Manufacturer services are included In the unit costs.
 



4b 

TABLE 8-1 (Cont.) 

Washing and Stockpilinz Equipment 

Dump Eapr -r 
Feed Conveyor 
Spiral Classifier 
Dewatering Belt 
Salt Water _Pump 
Classifier Brine Punp 
Slurr7 Pump 
Stockpiling Conveyor 
Pipir. and Valves 
Electrical Distribution 

1 
1 
1 
1 
2 
2 
2 
1 
LS 
LS 

$ 22 
15 
70 
34 
6 
8 
3 

600 
115 
180 

$ 22 
15 
70 
34 
12 
16 

6 
600 
115 
180 

SUB TOTAL 

Raw Salt Stockpiling Equipment 

$ 1070 

Dump Hopper 
Stockpiling Conveyor
Electrical Distribution 

SUB TOTAL 

1 
1 
LS 

22 
600 
95 

' 

22 
600 
95 

717 

I 



TABLE 8-1 (Cont.)
 

Salt Refining Equip-ent
 

Dcmp Hopper 
 1 $ 20
L=o Crusher $ 20 
81611i Feed Conveyor 

1 
1 8 

]Riz-ermill Primar7 Crusher i 
6 6

18Buket Elevator 181 13Screw Classifier 13 
26De atering Belt 261 17Centrifuge 
95 


S-ray Pump 95 
Brine Pump 2 42 84Slurry Pump 8 

3Dryer Feed Conveyor 
2 

61Salt Dryer and Cooler 8 8
200
Secondary Crusher Feed Conveyor 

1 2001 
 4 
 4
Scalping Screen - 1 11 
 1
Secondary Criusher 
 1 
 35 
 35
Crushed Salt Transfer Conveyor 1 4
Dcket Elevator 4 
16
Screen Feed Conveyor 

1 
161 4Potary Screens 42 11Grersize Return 22Conveyor

Salt Mixing and Transfer Conveyor 3 
1 44 

Salt Additive System 9 27
3 7Fi3al Salt Holding Bins 21
3
S2lt Transfer Conveyors 8 2,1

8
S3!t Bagging Machine 
3 

241

Salt Packagin, Lachine 

22 22(0.5 k7) 1Salt Packaging Machin 55 55
(I kg) 3 
 53 
 159
 

BEST AVAILABLE COPY 



TABLE 8-1 (Coat.) 

Salt Refining Equiprent (Coant.) 

Carton-Formiz- achind 
Salt Tablet Forming lachine 
Cattle Brick Forming Machine 
Dust Collection System 
Air Compres-sor 
Piping and Valves 
Electrical Distributor 
Duct and C-ute Work 

SUB TOTAL 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
LS 
LS 

LS 

$ 51 
55 

130 
18 
12 
50 
75 
60 

51 
55 

130 
18 
12 
50 
75 

60 

$1316 

Ground Salt Equip~ent 
Dump Hopper 
Lump Crusher 
Cxushei- Fbe- Conveycr 
Hammermill Crusher 
Bucket Elevator 
Salt-Holdi-.- Bin 
Ground Sal: Bagging Machine 
Filling Machines 
Electrical 
Duct and C--ute "iork 

SUB TOTAL 

.1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
LS 
LS 

$ 18 
6 
6 

18 
13 
12 
17 
85 
15 
25 

$ 18 
6 
E 

18 
13 
12 
17 
85 
15 
25 

$ 215 

F.r AVAILABLE Copy 



Materials Handling Equipent
 

Haulage Vehicles 


%NSUB TOTAL 


Salt Reclaiming Equipment
 

Bulldozsr 

Wheel Loader 


SUB TOTAL 


Shiploading Equipment
 

Shiploadng Unit 


SUB TOIAL 


Packae-Mo1,.in Equipment
 

Forklift 


SUB TOTAL 


Quality Control Equipment
 

Quality Control Equipment 


SUB TOTAL 


TABLE 8-1 (Cont.)
 
I 

18 $ 


1 $ 

3 


1 $ 


3 $ 


' LS $ 

~ ~L~fi~rCD 

40 


160 

93 


450 


24 


24 


$ 

$ 

720 

720 

$ 

$ 

160 
279 

439 

$ 

$ 

450 

450 

$ 

$ 

72 

72 

$ 

$ 

24 

24 x 
0
S 

http:Packae-Mo1,.in


TABLE 8-1 (Coat.) 

Mobile Equipm.ent 

Ditching Machie 
3/4-Ton (4 Wheal Drive), 

Pickup Truck 
Fuel Oil Tank Tr-uck 
25-Ton Mobile _r-ane 
Portable Weldizl Truck 
Portable Lubrication Truck 
10-Ton Capacity Boom Type 

Crane Truck 
6" Centrifugal Portable Pumps 
Truck Scale - -Iive Over 
54-Passenger A::oius 
Passenger Van 

1 
4 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

2, 
1 
1 
1 

$ 35 
8 

18 
150 
22 
19 
21 

6 
25 
60 
11 

$ 35 
32 

18 
150 
22 
19 
21 

12 
25 
60 
11 

SUB "COTAL $ 405 

PRODUCTION Eq-IPMENT TOTAL $ 6017 

Sea Freight - CIF Port Said '/ $ 325. 

SUB TOTAL $ 6342 
Contractor Profit - 7% 

SUB TOTAL 

Escalation (Mid-P-aint construction, 16 months @ 0.6% per month -
TOTAL PRODUC7ON EQUIPMENT 

$ 444 

$ 6786 
9.61 652 

$ 7438 

BEST AAtABLr- r'OPY 
x 
J0 



TABLE 8-1 

PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 

U.S. CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS 

Refl=eryI 

Worlkshop 
Stcraze 
Wash lpazt and Stockpiling Facility 2 
Raw Salt Stockpiling Facility 

SUS TorA!L 

TOTAL COS 
(IN THOUSANDS OF 
U.S. DOLLARS) 

$ 475 
180 
245 
50 
30 

$ 980 

Frei=-ht - CIF Port Said 8o 

ST. TT ., $ 106n 

Cont_-ctcr's Profit @ 75 $ 75 

SUB- TC7AL $ 1135 

Escalatica (Mid-point construction, 16 months 109 
a 0.6% per month = 9.6%) 

TOTAL U.S. CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS $ 1244 

1 &:iliizr materials include equipment supports, platforms, etc. 
Izcl::es supports for stockpiling equipment. x 

0 

.4? BEST pA'J ,%.-~COPY, 



TABLE 8-1
 

PROJECT COST iSTI1AT
 

COST 
 COST
 
ENGINEERING, PROCURZI!ENT AND IIANAGEMEIr 

(INf THOUSANDS OF (IN THOUSANDS OFU.S. DOLLARS) EGYPTIAN POUNDS) 

Preliminary Engineering $ 160 LE 5Project Man&-ement 
 250 _
Survey and Test Bcring 30 1Final Design Service 
 420 
 5
Equipment and Materials Procurement 280 2Construction Supervision 
 220 
 1
Start-Up and Testizh 
 Service 
 80
Operator Training a-d Operator Manuals 1

160 10
 

ENGINEERING EQUIPMENT SUB TOTAL $ 1600 LE 25 

Contractor Profit at 71 
 $ 112
 

SUB TOTAL 
 $ 1712 

Escalation - 12 months @ 0.6% per month $ 123 LE 2 
TOTAL ENGINEERING A.'M PROCUREMENT $ 1835 LE 27 

Note: 
1. LE cost represents the cost of liaison by El Nasr with the contractor.
 

2. Unit ccst inczludes overhead costs.. 

BEST AVAILABLE COPY 



TABLE 8-i (Cont.)
 

PROJECT COST ESTIMATE
 

TOTAL COST
 
UNIT COST (IN THOUSANDS OF
 

CIVIL WORKS QUANTITY (EGYPTIAN POUNDS) EGYPTIAN POUNDS) 

Site. iAeparation LS LE LE 10 
Dike Construction 

New 9925 m 150 1,489 
Fix SCA 6700 m 70 469 

Roadways 
Pl t 770 m 240 185 
To Quay 2000 m 40 80 

Sev.Water Int-ke Installation 150 M 30 5 
Electrical Co.-ection to LS 40 

Port Fouad 
On Site Utiliity Installations LS 25 
Engineering (El Nasr) LS 45 

- SUB TOTAL LE 2,348 

Escalation (rid-point construction 225 
15 months 9 0.6M per
 
month - 9.6%)
 

TOTAL - CIVIL WORKS LE 2,573 

BC
BEST AVAILABLE COPY0 



TABLE 8-1 

PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 

COST
 
PLANT COUSTR UC? ION AiN THOUSANDS OFEGYPTIAN POLVDS) 
Refinery 1
Workshop 1 LE 392 

69

Storage 15
Wash Plant and Stockpiling Facility 1Raw Salt StockpilingFacility 13 

85 

Includes all materials and labor for foundations and floor slabs.
 

Pump Houses (4) 2 
44 

SUB TOTAL 
LE 656 

Escalation (Mid-point construction-
16 months @ 0. 6 .%/montli
• 9.6%) 

LE 63 

TOTAL - PLANT CONSTRUCTION LE 719 

Note: 1. 

Does not include materials for remainder of building.
2. 
 Includes all materials and labor for construction.
 

~ AVALASLC.P 
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FIARIO S. MANSOUR 

uUUO *m 1a7m1Tvuu PARIO ITh.17?, MOMANUO 

suIJrrgIr 4oa
 
COPENS &m L.YUNANO CAI o-gysypy
 

August 15, 1977 

USAID 

Cairo , Egypt 

Gentleman: 

In accordance with, your instructions, Z enclosa herewith 
EL NASR SALINES COMPANY Financial Statements for the years
1973 thr 1976, in quadruplicate, in English. 

Me attached notes to the Financial Statements set out the 
explanations required in your instructions, while the 
planned expansion program is set out in the attached 
Appendix A. 

Very truly yours, 

CA.OPY 0ILE 

BEST AVAILABLE COPY
 



AL NASR SALINES COMPANY
 

A MINING SECTOR COMPANY
 

BALANCE SHEET
 

December 319 1976 and 1975
 

ASSETS 
 LIABILITIES
 

Note 1976 1975 
 Note 1976 1975
 
LECurrent Assets I 
 Current Liabilities t 'LEL 

Gash 1,991 235,957 Bank Loan 169254

Trade accounts receivable 2 141,344 61,935 Current portion of long

Other accounts receivable 3 2050439 256,589 term debt 
 207,302 128,590
Inventories 
 4 1466,910 1374,9.78 Accounts payable and

Prepaid expenses - letters 
 accrued expenses 8 957,493 852,120


of credit 38,753 20,293 Inr-mA Tax 
 67,792
 

Total current assets 1854,437 1949,752 
 Total current liabilities
 
1401,841 980,710
 

Propertyplant and equipment 
 Long term debtiless current
 

at cost less depreciation 
 5 2593t209 1933,679 portion 9 240,297 363,200
 

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
 

Projects in progress 6 2017,702 1589,513 Capital account 
 10 .3983,088 3400,830
 
Non distributable
 

reserves 11 1021441 99,208
Investments 
 7 33,906 33VO96 Distribution reserves 12 771,587 770g262
 
Retained earnings - (108,170)-


Total stockholder*' equity 4857p116 4162,130 2
 

LE 6499,254 5506pO40 
 LE 6499t254 5506l040-p
 

BEST = = =
 

http:1374,9.78


AL NASR SALINES COMPANY
 

A MINING SECTOR COMPANY
 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND
 

RETAINED EARNINGS
 

For the years ended December 31,1976,& 1975
 

1976 

INCOME -


Net Sales £E'1,867,183 

Other Income 28,487 


1,895,670 


COSTS AND EXPENSES
 

Cost of sales 934,448 

Selling,general and
 

administrative expenses 883,274 


1,817,722 


Income before items shown below 
 77,948 

Prior year income - Port Said salines
 

war damage grant 133,169 

Prior year charges 9,744) 


Income before taxation 201,373 

Income- tax 
 68,709 


Net income for year 132,664

Retained earningslosses) beginning of year (1082170) 


24,444 

Tranzfer to reserves and distributions 24,494 


Retained earnings (losses),end of year £E -

Annex P-3
 

1975
 

;E 1,664,460
 

59,988
 

1,724,448
 

885,970
 

752,940
 

.1638,910
 

85,538
 

72,785 
( 8,046) 

1509277
 
Z088
 

148,189
 
(256,359)
 

(108,170)
 

-


£E (108,170)
 



AL W40R SALINES COMPANY ANNEX,1_4 
A MINING SECTOR COMPANY 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION 

For the years ended December 31,1976 and 1975
 

WORKING CAPITAL PROVIDED BY 


Net income for the year LE 


Add :
 

Depreciation and oth6r items not
 
requiring current outflow of work­
ing capital 


Total from operations 


Government redeemable capital participation 

Government Port Said war damage grant 


Total ZE 


WORKING CAPITAL USED FOR 

Profit distribution 
Expenditure for property, plant and equi-.

Project in progress 

Reducti-In in long te'rm debt 

.Investments 

Total E 


Net increase (decrease) in working capital XE 


Increase (decrease) in working capital . 

Current Assets 

Cash 
 LE 

Accounts receivable 

Inventories 

Prepaid expenses 


Total Current Assets LE 


Current Liabilitiev-

Bank Loans 

Current portion of long term debt 

Accounts.payable 

Income tax provision 


Total current Liabilities £E 

Increase (decrease) in
 

working capital LE 


1976 1975
 

1329664 148p189
 

289,065 96,138
 

421,729 244,327­

202,545 925,000
 
379v713 271,904
 

1,003,987 1,441,9231
 

18,370 ­
950,161 590,907
 
428,189 1,188,539
 
122,903 ­

810 ­

1,520,433 1,779,446
 

5
316,446) ( 338,215)
 

(233,966) (105,664)
 
28,259 (106,512)
 
91,932 254,507
 
18,460 5,720
 

(95,315) 48,051
 

(169,254) ­
( 78,612) 84,489
 
(105,473) 30,jp777
 
t 67.792.) ­

(421,131) 386,266
 

(516,446) XE(338,215)
 



ANNEX P-5
 
AL NASR SALINES COMPANY
 
A MINING SECTOR COMPANY
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I) Summary of'significant accounting policies :
 

(a) Inventories
 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
 
realisable value. Cost consists of direct materials, labour
 
and attributable expenses, calculated on an average cost bais.
 

(b) Accounts receivable :
 

Bad debts are fully provided for as they arise and
 
provision is made for ali doubtful debts.
 

(c) Depreciation of plant, property and equipment :
 

Dpreciation is cal ulated to write-off the book
 
value on a straight line basis over the expected useful Lives
 
of the assets concerned. Depreciation has been calculated from
 
the day of acquisition and is charged as the asset is used on a 
daily basis, a. the rate of 300 .shifts per annum at the following 
rates. 

Buildings 2 - 5 7f
 
Plant & Machinery 5 - 10 7?
 
Vehicles 10 - 20 7,
 
Tools 5,- 25 7
 
Furniture 107.
 

Where fully depreciated assets are ',used, one quarter
 
of the depreciation is charged to costs and credited to distrib­
utable reserves.
 

(d) Foreign Currencies :
 

Assets and liabilities arising in,foreign currencies
 
are converted to Egyptian Pounds at the rates of exchange ruling
 
at the balance sheet date. Profits and lossea on exbhange are
 
charged to income or expenses during the yftrpother than those
 
arising from significant changes in ratesuch as the change
 
from official rate to incentive ratewhich are included in ex­
traordinary items.
 



ANNEX P-'6
 

2) Trade accounts receivable
 

Trade accounts receivable consisted of :
 
1976 1975 

Trade accounts receivable. 
Less : Provision for 

LE 218,175 LE 140,442 

doubtful debts 76,831 78,507 

LE 141,344 LE 61,935 

3) Other accounts receivable :
 

Other accounts receivable consisted of the following :
 

11975
 
Refundable deposits LE 
 18,660 ZE 22,863

Employees advances 
 369863 36,719

Other receivables 29,197 56,237

Payments in advance to suppliers 51,666 80,153

Ministry of Finance - employees


bonus due to profit shortfall 69,053 34,395

Employees compulsory savings repayments - 26,222
 

LE 205,439 LE 256,589
 

4) Inventories
 

Inventories are.comprised of the following :
 

1976 .1975
 

Raw materials £E 1,514 LE ,128

Work in progress 
 25,004 .21,627

Finished goods 
 938,367 796,892

Fuel 
 7,583 4,583

Spare parts 370,734 383,001

Packing material 117,685 158,653
 
Waste materials 
 6,423 10,094
 

£E 1,466,910 £El,374t978
 



5, Property * plant and equipment g 

Land Buildings Plant:.& Vehicles Tools Furniture Total 
Mquhtnery & Office 

E E ZE 
..LEE 

LEEquipment 
£ ., LE 

Cost to 1.1.1976 . 1,309,865 416,023 10182,462 81305 53,828 310151483 
Additions . 347j426 2130641 395,349 .32280 61254 9651950 

Disposals - ( 179) ( 900) ( 14,710) - - ( 15,789 ) 
Reclassifications 7995 ( 7,995) 121796 ( 140250) 1,454 e . 

Cost to 12.31.1976 7995 116491117 686560 115488851 13,039 60082 30965l644 

Cumulative Depreciation .331280 329725 374864 4041 411893 081803 
to 1.1.1976 

Reclas-sification - 111609 (12,690) 1,081 - . 
Charges for year 57,694 30,691 206,928 783 2 526 298622 

Disposals ( 179) ( 900) ( 61911) . . C 7 990) 

Total Depreciation to 
12.31.1976 - 388s795 3711.125 5621191 5,905 449419 10372l435 

Net book value 7995 1.2601322 315,435 986,660 7,134 15 663 2 5 9 3 g20 9 
II 

...................................................................
 



ANNEX P_ B. lt. 

6) Projects in progress 

Projects in progress consisted of the following : 

Max Project : 

Washing locations 
Stoacking facilities 
Mechanical foundations 
Arteezian Wells 
Washing machinery 
Centrifuge for refinary 
Gass room 
Connection between seeaand lake 

Civil work for stoacking plant 
Railway 
Furniture 
Overhead crane 
Cables for washing plant 
Sundry expenses 

LE 4 t 023 
220t095 
22,346 
1,300 

714,745 
88,727 

752 
2,000 
1,997 
12,952 
1,128 
t250 

100405 
1,012 

1,081,932 

Port Said Project z 

Construction 
Drianage canals 
Sundry 
Deradying and reelaimation of 

stacking area 
Overall of zrystallizers 
Overall of locomotives 
Overall of deco.vill tubs 
Overall of barges 
Machine rild sdn- expenses 

271,181. 
4,900 
3,523 

185,700" 
182.382­
30,301 
24,488 
79,758 
l,907 

. 

784,140 

Fayoum Project : Cost to-date 20p168 

Letters of credit expenses to-date 131,462 

LE 29017,702 



ANNEX P-9
 

7) Investments t
 

InVestments consisted of the folowing 
s
 

1976 1975
 

Government Securities : 
Production Loan 
3h 7. £E 30,906 £E 30,096 

Others : 

1500 shares @ £E 2,- - each
 
in the General Company for Mineral
 
Wealth 
 3,000 3,000
 

£E 33,906 £E 33,096
 

The market value of both is unknown.
 

8) Accounts Payable :
 

Accounts payable consisted of the following
 

1976 1975
 

Suppliers 
 £.E 349,095 £E 2479455
Suppliers of assets 
 69,303 92,354

Other payables 
 129,199 123,399

Custom duties on plant and
 

machinery which may be waived 
 107,968 125,000

Accrued expenses, including
 
£E 123,162 and 163,.162 respectively


interest due to the government on
its capital contribution 
 139,845 176,345

Payments received in advance 
 52,662 62,943

Profit distribution - Government
 

(note 14) 
 13,778

Profit distribution - Employees


(note 14) 
 4968 ,275
Sundry accounts payable 
 27,775 24,349
 

£E 957v493 £E 852,120
 



ANNEX P-IO 


9) Long term deb.t :
 

Long term deb t consists af ix installments
 
due after 12 months of the balance sheet date
 
for the purchase of washing equipment •
 

The installments are due in May and November
 
1978 thru 1980 of LE 40,049 each payable in
 
Deutsch Mark at the official rate of exchange
 
DM - LE 0.148485 the installment being DM
 
269,720.-


N.B. See contingent liabilities (Note 13).
 

10) Capital : 

Up to December 31,1974 

182,500 shares of LE 2.-..'each fully paid
 
belonging to the Government of Egypt
 

Increased at~the 1975 annual general meeting
 
as from January 1,1975 by transferring the
 
balance of the " Redeemable Government of
 
Egypt Participation Account " to capital. -. 

This represents payments made by the govern­
ment to Al Nasr Salines Company to datevTith 
out specifynmg how many shares this re­
presents. 


Capital account as from 1.1. 1975 


Since 1.1. 1975 Al Nasr Salines Company
 
has received further sums which are
 
credited to the Redeemable Government
 
Participation Account
 

Capital account as of 12. 31. 1976 


Amounts paid by the Goverment of Egypt to 
Al Nasr Salines Company up to 12.31. 1976, 
without indicating that they are -redeemable, 
towards repairing the effects of war damage 
to the Port Said Salines. 


ZE 

LE 240,297
 

mn====
 

CE 365,000
 

2,110,830
 

29475,830
 

39203p375.
 

779t713
 

3,983,9088
 



ANNEX P-il 

11) Non Distributable Reserves : 

Non distributable reserves consisted of t 

1976 1975 

5 .Statutory reserve 

5 7. Government Securities 
reserve 

LE 70r310 

37,131 

69,085 

30,123 

LE 102,441 99,208 

12) Distributable Rserves : 

1-.?'Distributable reserves consisted of : 

1976 1975 

Profit on sale of assets LE 
General reserve 
Jncome,.. tax provision not 

required 
Reserve in leiu of depreciation 

of written aff.assets 
Profit: equaLisation .,reserve 
Sundry provisions 

110,510 
3L9,979 

62t.142 

184,273 
269.348 

-

108,819 
317,530 

62,142 

171,030 
26,348 
84,393 

9X 771v587 770,262 

13) Contingent Liabilities : 

A contingent liability at the balance 
sheet date, amounted to LE 191,000.­
being the approximate additional cost 
of settling the long term deb..t at the 
incentive rate instead of official rate. 
C See note 9 ). 

14) Profit Distribution: 

1976 was the first year since 1972 
which had profits available for dis­
tribution. These were distributed 
as follows : -

57 Statutory reserve 
5%Government Securities 

reserve 

ZE 1,225 

1t225 



ANNEX P-12
 

10, General reserve 2,449 
5% 	Replacement value of
 

assets reserve 1,224
 
Employees share of
 
profit 4,593
 
Government Share of
 
profit 13,778
 

LE 24,494
 

N.B. The employees share is
 

(i) 
(ii) 

paid cash 
credited to a 
servicez fund 

£E 
.1 

2,112 

.19837 
(iii) credited to a 

social fund ,919 

.E 4,868 
mIm--~ll~l 



AL NASR SALINES COMPANY-.
 
A MINING SECTOR 
COMPANY
 

BALANCE SHEET
 

December 31.1975 
 and 1974.
 

AjSETS 
 NtNlote 195 
 1974.
17 9___4 LIABILITIES
 Note 1975 
 1974
 
LE R-E 


Cash -E ­2359957 341,621
Trade accents receivable 2 611935 
239,575 Current portion of long
Other accounts receivable 3 256,589 185461 term debt 
 128590 441101
Inventories 
 4 1374p978 1120,471 
Account Payable and
Prepaid expenses - letters 
 accrued expenses 
 7 852,120 550343of credit 

20j293 14,573 Income Tax
 

Total current assets 
 1949,752 19010701 

980,710 594,444
 

Property, pnt and equipment 

at Long term debt less current
--at less deprealation 5 
 1933;679 1459;975 portion 
 363,200 91,296
 

Projects in progress STOCK HOLDERS1 EQUITY
15899513 400,974 
 Qapital account 
 -34OO830 2475,830
 
Non distributable
 

Investments reserves
6 33,096 33,O96 999208,) 99,209
Distribution reserves 
 770,262 7911326
 
Retained earnings 
 (lO8l;O)(256 359)
 

Total stockholders, equity 
 4162w-130 3LI0 006

LE .5506,0403795,746 


LE ­
.= -. . 501 79 

~ 

0 



ANNEX P-14
 

AL NASR SALINES COMPANY 

A MINING SECTOR COMPANY
 

STATEMENT OF INCOME & RETAINED EARNINGS
 

For the years ended December 31,1975 & 1974
 

INCOME 1975 1974
 

Net Sales £E 1,664,460 1,467,232
 
Other Income 59,988 25,970
 
Government Grant towards Port
 

Said Salines loss of production - 96,365 

1,724,448 1589,567
 

COSTS AND EXPENSES
 

Cost of Sales 885,970 772,245
 
Selling, general & administrative
 

expenses 752,940 634,9.0
 
Port Said Salines expenses - 167,982
 

1,638,910 1,575,132
 

Income before items shown below 85,538 14,435
 
Prior year income -- 31,347
 
Prior year income - Port Said salines
 

war damage grant 72,785 -
Prior year charges ( 8,046) (20,450) 

Income taxation (before) id,277 25,332
 
Income tax 2,088 1,752
 

Net income for year 148,189 23,580
 

Retained earnings (losses),beginning of year -(2U,359) (279,939)
 

Retained earnings (losses),end of year £E (108,170) £E (256,359)
 
.. DBBBRi Bm BmBm BBn
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AL NASR SALINES COMPANY 
A MINING SECTOR COMPANY 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION 

For the vears ended December 31,1975 and 1974.
 

WORKING CAPITAL PROVIDED BY : 1975 1974 

Net income for the year LE 148,189 23,580 

Add : 
Depreciation and other items not 
requiring current outflov" of 
working capital 96,138 60,204 

Total from operations 244,327 83,784 
Government redeemable capital participat- 925,000 570,000 

ion 
Long term debt 2719904 91,296 

Total LE 1,441,231 745,080 
WORKING CAPITAL USED FOR : 

Profit distribution . . 
Expenditure for property plant and equip. 590,907 448,577 
Projects in progress 1,188,539 261,482 
Investments . 12000 

Total £E 1,779,446 722,059 
Net increase (decrease) in working capital ( 338,215) 23,021 

Increase (decrease) in working capital : 

Current Assets 
Cash ZE (.105,664) ( 39,478) 
Accounts receivable (106,512) 34,394
Inventories 254,507' 109,864
Prepaid expenses 5,720 6,319 

Total of Current Assets 48,051 111,099
 

Current Liabilities
 
Current portion of long term debit 84,489 44,101
 
Accounts payable 301,777 43,977
 

Total current liabilities 386,266 88,078
 

Increase (decrease) in
 

working capital LE (338,215) 23,021
 



ANNEX P-16 f" 

AL NASR SALINES COMPANY
 

A MINING SECTOR COMPANY
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

1) Summary of significant accounting policies :
 

(a) Inventories
 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
 
realisable value. Cost consists of direct materials, labour
 
and attributable expenses~calculated on an average cost basis.
 

(b) Accounts receivable :
 

Bad debts are fully provided for as they arise and
 
provision is made for all doubtful debts.
 

(c) Depreciation of palnt, property and equipment : 

De"reciation is calculated to write-off the 
 book

value on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives
 
of the assets concerned. Depreciation has been calculated from
 
the day of acquisition and is charged as the asset is used on a
 
daily basis at the rate of 300 shifts per annum~at the following
 
rates : 

Buildings 2 -' .5,% 
Plant & Machinery .5 - 107 
Vehicles 10 - 201, 
Tools 5 - 25% 
Furniture 10 

Where fully depreciated assets are usedlone quarter

of the dfprecia±l4n is charged to costs and credited to dis­
tributable reserves.
 

(d) Foreign currencies :
 

Assets and liabilitites arising in foreign currencies
 
are converted to Egyptian Pounds at the rates of eahnge ruling 
at the balance.sheet date. Profits and losses on exchange are
 
charged to income or expenses during the year, other than those
 
arising from significant changes in rate# such as the change

from official rate to incentive ratep which are included in ex­
traordinary items.
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2) Trade account receivable :
 

Trade accounts receivable consisted of z
 

1975 1974
 
Trade accounts receivable ZE 140,442 287,892
 
Less : Provision for
 

doubtful debts 78,507 48p317
 

LE 61,935 239,575
 

3) Other accounts receivable :
 

Other accounts receivable consisted of the following z 

1975 1974
 

Refundable deposits LE 229863 19,116 
Employees advances 36,719 25,261 
Other receivables 56,237 65r727 
Payments in advance to suppliers 80,153 44,49Z 
ftinistry of Finance - employees

bonus due to profit shortfall 34p395 30,865

Employees compulsory savings repayments 26r222 '
 

LE 256,589 185,461
 

4) Inventories :
 

Inventories are comprised of the following
 

1975 1974
 

Raw materials iE r128 1337
 
Work in progress 21,627 22,939
 
Finished goods 796,892 687,918
 
Fuel 4,583 6,486
 
Spare parts 383,001 265,501
 
Packing material 158,653 121,902
 
Waste materials 10,094 15,387
 

ZE 1,374,978 l120,471
 



3) Property.plant and equipment I 

Building Machines Vehicles Tools F & E Total 

LE £E LE LE LE LE 
Cost to 1.1.75 1,180,721 433,800 757,666 69533 45,857 2,424,577 
Transfers - ( 267) - 267 - -

Additions 143,753 34,261 489,743 2t880 8g 514 679,151 
Disposals by sellinO ( 5143)( 6,770) ( 52,866) ( 1,375) ( 543)( 66,697) 
Disposal& ( 9,466) p12,081) - - ( 21,547) 

Cost to i2. 31. 75 1,309,865 4611024 1,182,462 8#305 539828 3tOl5,484 

Gum. Dep6 

Transfers 

1.1.75 317,155 

-

313,935 

C 233) 

288,872 

-

4,120 

233 

40,521 

-

964,603 

-
Charges for year 

Disposals by selling 

.28t733 22,501 

C 5#143)( 64j78 ) 
141,297 

(52,824) ( 
473 

785) 

1,893 

( 520) 

194,897 

( 65,750) 
Dispokals ( 9,466)( - ) ( 2,481) - - ( 11,947) 

Total dep. to 12. 314 75 3310279 329,725 374#864 40041 41t894 19081,803 

Net Book ValUe 978t586 131,299 807,598 42t 64 11,934 1,933,681 
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6) Invatuents : 

a mestmants consisted of the falowing : 

19-75 1974 

Government Securities :I 

Production Loan. 3h 7. £E 30,096 LE 30,096 

Others : 

1500 shares @ 2T each 

in the. General. Company for 
Mineral Wealth 3,000 3,00 

3 3"0.96..33. 96w 

The market value, of both is unknown,. 

71 Accounts Payable t
 

Accounts payable consisted of the following : 

L975 1974-

Suppliers 
 9 247r455 167,352.
Suppliers of assets 
 92v354- 29,383

Other: payables 123,399 lo2,612
Custom duties on plant and
 

machinery which may be waived 
 125,000 -
Accrued expenses, including. 

AR 163,162 & 19,16Z respectively

interest due to the government on
 
its capital eontribution 
 376,345 200 136 

Payments reoeived in advance. 62 ,943 27,960Brofit distribution, - employees ,275 p275Sundry accounts payable 
 240349 22,625
 

E, 852,120 550,343
 
mlns. imm~ 

http:3"0.96..33


AL NASR SALINES COMPANY 

A GENERAL EGYPTIAN ORGANISATION FOR FOODSTUFFS CO, 

BALANCE SHEET 

December 31,1974 and 1973 

'SETS LIABILITIES 

Note 1974 193 Note 1974 1973 

trrent Assets,; Current *Liabilities j 

Cash a 
Trade accounts receivable 
Other accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses - letters 

ocred it 

2 
3 
4 

LE 341,621 LE 381,099 
239575 161,304 
1"851461 229,338 

1,120,471 1161O9607 

14,573 8,254 

Current portion of long 
term debt 

Accounts payable and 
accrued expenses 7 

LE 44,101 LE -

550,343 506,366 

Totai current assets 1,901,701 1,790,602 Total current liabilitiks 594,444 506 366 

roperty , plant and equipment 
at cost less depreciation 5 19459,975 998,995 Long term debt less current 

portion 8 91 296 -

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
roject-in progress - Max 400974 139,492 Capital account 9 21475p 830 1,905,830 

Non distributable 

ivestments 6 33,096 21,096 
reserves 

Distribution reserves 
10 
11. 

99,209 
791,326 

99,209 
718,718 

Retained earnings (256,359) (279,938) 

Total stockholdersf equity 3 1OOO6 2,443,819 

LE 3,7959746 2,950,185 LE 3,795,746 24950 185 Q 

REST AVAABIJ ECOPY .. 
il r4 
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AL NASR SALINES COMPANY
 

"rG-ENERAL EGYPTIAN ORGANIZATION FOR FOODSTUFFS CO.
 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

For the years ended December 31,1974 and- 1973
 

INCOME 1974 1973 

Net Sales 
Other Income 
Government GrANT towards Port 

Salines loss of production 
Said 

£E 1,467,232 
25,970 

96,365 

1,373,613 
ZO,04o 

68,000 

1,589,567 1,461,653 

COSTS AND EXPENSES
 

Cost of Sales 772,245 &75,833
 
Selling.general & administrative 

expenses 634,.905 689p922
 
Port Said Salines expenses 167,98Z 106,658=
 

1,575,132 1,472,413 

income before items shown below 14,435 C 10,760) 

Income Tax 1,.752 1,860 

Net income for year 12,683 (12,620) 
Retained earnings (losses),beginning of year (279,939) (251,574) 
Prior year charges ( 20,450) C 19,357) 
Prior year income 31,347 3,612
 

Retained earnings (losses),end of year LE (256,359) £E(279, 939)
 



ANNEX P-22 '3.
 

AL NASR SALINES COMPANY 
A GENERAL EGYPTIAN ORGANIZATION FOR FOODSTUFFS CO. 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION 
For the years ended Dec. 31 1974 & 1973
 

1974 1973
 
WORKING CAPITAL PROVIDED BY
 

Net income for the year LE 
 12,683 LE (12,620)
 

.Add . 

Depreciation and other items not
 
requiring current outflow of working
 

capital 
 71,101 461615
 
Total from operations 83t784 33t995
 

Government redeemable capital partizipation 570jOoo 125t000
 
Long term debt 
 91,296
 

Total 745,080 158,995
 

WORKING CAPITAL USED FOR :
 

Profit distribution ­ .
 
Expenditure for property plant and equipmezt 
'448 ,577 11,328

Projects in progress 
 261,482 44t738
 
Investments 
 12,000
 

-i -

Total 722,059 .56,066
 
* ai 

Net increase (decrease,) in working capital 
 LE 23,021 LE1029929
 

Increase (Decrease) in working capltal:
 

Current Assets -
Cash LLE ( 39,478)'£E 28,704
Accounts receivable 34t39,, :118,400
Inventories, 109,864 30,056

Prepaid expenses / 6,319 8,185
 

Total current assets.. 111,099 185t345
 
Current Liabilities
 

Current portion of long term deb. 44p1o1 
Accounts. payable 
 43,977 82,416
 

Total current liabilities LE 88,078 829416
 

Increase (decrease) in
 
working capital LE 23,O21 102,929
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AL NASR SALINES COMPANY 

'AGENERAL EGYPTIAN ORGANISATIOdJ FOR FOODSTUFFS CO. 

A MINING SECTOR COMPANY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

1) Summary of siguificant accounting policies : 

(a) inventories
 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
 
realisable value. Cost consists of direct Cta.erials, labour
 
and attributable expensesvcalculated on an average cost basis.
 

(b) Accounts receivable :
 

Bad debts are fully provided for as they arise and
 
provision is made for all doubtful debts­

(.) Depreciation of plant. property and equipment : 

Depreciation is calulated to write-off the book 
value on a straight Line basis over the expected useful lives 
of the assets gonaerned. Depreciation has been calculated from 
the day of acquisition and is charged as the asset is. used on a 
daily basis at the rate of 300 shifts per annum, at. the 
following rates : 

Buildings 2 - 5 7
 
Plant & Machinery 5 - 10 7
 
Vehicles 10 - 20 7
 
Tools 5 -,25 7. 
Furniture 10 7. 

Where fully depreciated assets are used, one quaoter
 
of the depreciation is charged to costs and credited to distrib­
utable reserves.
 

(d) Foreign currencies
 

Assets and liabilities arising in foreign currencies
 
are converted to Egyptian Pounds at the rates of exchange ruling
 
at the balance sheet date. Profits and losses on exchange are
 
charged to income or expenses during the year, other than those
 
arising from significant changes in rate, such as the change

from official rate to incentive ratewhich are included in ex­
traordinary items.
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2) Trade accounts receivable : 

Trade accounts rsceivable consisted of : 
1974 1973 

Trade accounts receivable LE 287,892 £E A:959672 
Less : Provision for 

doubtful debts 48,317 134,370 

£E 239,575 £E 161,302 

3) 	Other accounts receivable :
 
Other accounts receivable consisted of the following :
 

1974 1973
Refundable deposits 
 .E 19,v-116 LE 19,056
Employees advances 
 25,261 18,728

Other receivables 
 65,727 66,819

Payments in advance to suppliers 44,492 27,792

Ministry of Finance - employees


bonus due to profit shortfall 30,865 
 28,943
Government production grant 
 - 68,000
 

LE 	185,461 
LE 229,338
 

4) 	Inventories :
 

Inventories are comprised of the following :
 

197,4 1973 
Raw 	materials 
 E 3P7 .440Work in progress 
 22,939 3&0712
 
Finished goods 
 687v918 641,-000

Fue 
 6t.486 2,183 
Spare parts 265950X, 2439-266 
Packing materaal 121p90b 77,405
Waste material 15,387 14,601 

E 1,1209471 LE!10,607 
~m mllal m 41nllsl 



(5) Propertyplatnt and equipments 

Cost to 1.,74 


Reclassification 


Additions 


Disposals. 


Cost to 12. 31. 74 


Cum. Dep. to 1.1.74 


Reclassification 


Charges for year 


Dispoaals 


Total dep. to 12.31. 74 


Net book value 


Buildings 


LE 


1V1490238 


-


31408g 


( - ) 

1IlO,721 


289V671 


-

27,484 


( - ) 

317,155 


863,566 


Machines 


LE 


384,681.. 


-


638185 


(14,066) 


43318O. 


306,197 


-

21,181 


(13,443) 


313,935 


119,865 


Vehicles 


391j780 


465F227 


(99?341) 


757,666 


3381450 


-

48,793 


(981371) 


288,872 


468l794 


Tools 


LF
LE 


55,86 


-


13071 


(124) 


6,533 


3,847 


-

383 


(110) 


4,120 


2,413 


F & E 


LE 


44,71.4 


-


11168 


( 25) 


45,857 


39,012 


11524 


( 16) 


40 520 


51337 


Total
 

LE
 

19751999
 

562,134
 

(1131556)
 

2,424,577
 

977,177
 

-

99g365
 

(111,940)
 

964 602
 

1,459,975
 

(J_
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6) Investments t
 

Investments consisted of the following :
 

1974 
 1973M
 

Government Securities .: 
Production Loan 
3 
 LE 30,096 LE 189096
 

Others s
 

1500 shares @ LE .2y each
 
in the General Gompany for

Mineral Wealth 
 3,000 3,000
 

LE 33096 .E 2196
 
a~mmminmmim mm Bmi.
 

The market value of both is unknown.
 

7) Arclount. Paable :
 

Accounts payable consisted of the following :
 

1974 1973
 
Suppliers 


LE 167,352 LE 148,796
SuppLiers of assets 
 29,383 20,733
 
Other payables 102612 65127
 
Accrued expenses, including


interest * '. 200,136 228,753

LE 1939,162 and.231,722 respectively
 

interest due to the government on
 
its capital contribution
 

Payaents reneived.in advance 
 27,960 12,017
Profit distribution - employees 
 275 275
Sudry accounts payable 
 221,625 20,665
 

LE 5503.33 E 506,366 

mmamlmi imm~inmm 

http:reneived.in


ANNEX P'97'
 

8) 	Long term debt t
 

Long term debt. consists of installments due in 1976
 
and 	1977 for the following purchases :
 

4 installments of LE 4p391 for 6 skida trucks LE 17,563 
3 installments of £ 5,687 for. 5 shovel loNIers £E17,060 
4 installments of LE 5,836 for 8 skoda trucks LE 23,343 
4 installments of LE 8,333 for 13 skoda chassis £E33,330 

£E91,296
 

9) 	Capital :
 

Up to December 31,1974- LE 365,000 
182,500 shares of LE 2900 each fully paid 
belonging to the Government of Egypt.. 

Payments made by the Government of Egypt
 
to Al Nasr Salines Company and credited to
 
the Redeemable- Government participation
 
account * 	 2,I0,830 

.E 29,475,830
 

10) 	Non Distributable Reserve. : 

Non 	 dist-ributable reserves consisted of : 

1974 1923 

57. 	 Statutory. reserves LE 69,085 69,085
 

57. 	 Government Securities 
reserve 30,124 30,124 

LE 99,209 99,209
 
memmllmm=M en M~ 



ANNEX P-28' d 

11) Distributable Reserves : 

Distributable reserves consisted of : 

Profit on sale of aseets 
General reserve 

Incomes tax provision not 
required

Reserve in lieu of d4precia.tivn
of written off assets 

Profit equalisation reserve
Sundry provisions 

LE 

1974 

88,632 
167,530 

62p913 

155p751 
26,348 

290,152 

1973 

36,518 
167,530 

62p912 

134p751 
26,348 

290,659 

LE 792,326 
m'~l lml 

718,718 
ll m 



AL NASR SALINES COMPANY 
A General Egyptian Organisation for Foodstuffs Company 

BALANCE SHEET 
recember 31, 1973 and 1972 

ASSETS 
Note 1973 1972 LIABILITIES 

Nt 9317 
CurrentAssets: NCurrent Liabilities 
Cash 
Trade accounts- receivable 
Other accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses - letters 

of credit 
Total current assets 

EE 381,o99 
2 16 1,3o4 
3 229,:338 
4 l,olo,6o7 

8,254 
1,79o,6o2 

EE 352,395 
97,592 

17 4,65o 
98o,551 

69 
1,6o5,257 

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses 7 

Total current liabilities 

EE 5o6,366 

5o 6 L6 

EE 423095o 

4 2 3 ,95o 

Property, 
at cost 

plant & equipment
less depreciation 5 998,995 l,ol5,67o STOCOLDERS, EQUITY 

Projects in progress - Max 139,492 94,754 
Capital account 
Non distributable 

8 1,9o5,83o 1,78o,83o 

Investments 6 

LE 

21,o96 

2,950,185 

21,o96 

£E2,736,777 

reserves
Distribution reserves 

Retained earnings
Total stockholders@ equity 

9 
10 

9 9,2o9
718,718 

( 279938) 
2,443,819 

99,2o9
684,362 

( 251S574)
2,312,627 

EE 2L91JL185 EE2736 77 

to -3



ANNEX P-30 
 /
 

AL NASR SALInS CWN~
 
A General Egyptian Organisation 
for Foodstuffs
 

STKTIrz oF Znxx~ AnD 

RETAZnE zAm=G 
For the years ended Dece er 31, 1973 & 1972 

1973 
 1972 
ICOM 

Net Sales 
EE 1,373,613 
 EE 2,029,623
 

Other Inome 

Government, Grant towards Port Said 

2o,o4o 42,o71
 
Salines loss of pzoduction 
 68,ooo 
 27,475
 

1,461,653 
 2,o99,169
 

COSTS AND EXPW k 

Cost of sales 675,833 1,153,779
Selling, general and administratLve6 
expenses 


689,922
Port Said Salines expenses 884,o93
lo6,658 
 149,554
 

1,472,473 
 2,187,426

Income before tax 

Income tax ( lo,76o) ( 88,257)


( 1,859) ( 1,o91) 

Net income for year 
 ( 12,619) ( 89,348)Retained earnings (losses),

beginn ng of year 
 (251,574) 
 (176,197)
Prior year incoe 3,612 26,772
Prior year charges 

( 19,357) 
 ( 12,8ol) 

Retained earnings (losses),

end of year 
 SE 279,938) SE 251,574) 
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AL NASR SALINES COMPANY 

A General Eqyptian Oranizsation for Foodstuffs Company 

STATEDNT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION 

For the year ended December 31, 1973 

WORKING CAPITAL PROVIDED BY 1973 

Net income 

Add: 

for the year EE (28,364) 

Depreciation and other items not 
requiring current outflow of working 
eapitl 62,359 

Total from operations .33,995 
Government redeemable capital participation 

Total 

WORKING CAPITAL USED FOR 

Profit distribution 
Expenditure for property, plant and equipment 
Projects in progress 

Total 

Net increase (decrease) in working capital 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN WORKING CAPITAL:
 

Current Assets 
Cash 

Accounts receivable 
Inventories 

Prepaid expenses 

Total Current Assets 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

125,ooo 

158,995 

11,328 
44,738 

56,o66 

EE lo2,929 

EE 28,7o4
 
118,4oo 
3o,o56 
8,185 

185,345 

82,416 

Total Current Liabilities 82,416 

Increase (Decrease) in 
working capital EE lo2,929 



L NSR SALInS COMPAY ANNEX P-32 )
A General Emmtian organisation for Foodstuffs Company. 

NOTES 	 TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) 	 Inventories
 
Inventories 
 are stated at the lower of oost and netrealisable value. Cost 	consists of direct materials,labour and attributable expenses, calculated on an 
average cost basis. 

(b) 	 Accounts receivable
 
Bad debts 
are fully provided for as they arise and
 
provision is made 
 for all doubtful debts. 

(c) 	 Depreciation ofplant, Proerty and equipment 
Depreciation is calculated to write-off the book valueon a 	straight line basis over the expected useful lives ofthe assets concerned. Depreciation has been calculatedfrom 	the day of acquisition
used a 	

and is charged as the asset ison daily 	basis at the rate of 300 shifts per annum,at the following rates: 

.Buildi.ngs 2 - 5% 
Plant & machinery 5 10%-
Vehicles 
 10 -	20% 
Tools 5 - 25% 
.Furniture 10%
 

Where fully depreciated assets 
are used, one quarter ofthe above depreciation is charged to costs and creditedto distributable reserves. 

(d) 	 Foreign currencies
 
Assets and liabilities arising in 
 foreign currencies areconverted to Egyptian Pounds at the rates 	of exchangeruling at the balance sheet date. Profits and losses onexcha'nge are charged
other 	than those 

to income or expenses during the year,arising from significant changes in rate,such 	 as the change from official rate to incentive rate,
which are included in extraordinary 
items. 



2. Trade accounts receivable: ANNEX P-33
 

Trade accounts receivable consiste of:
 

1973 1972 
Trade accounts receivable SE 295,672 EE 225,139 
Less: Provision for 

doubtful debts 134,37o 127,547
 

EE 161,3o2 EE 97,592
 

-n
 

3. Other accounts receivable: 

Other accounts receivable consisted 
of the following:
 

Refundable deposits 
 EE 19,o56 EE 19,o72

Employees advances 
 18,728 2o,433
 
Other receivables 66,819 
 99,35o
Payments in advance to suppliers 27,792 35,795 
Ministry of Finance - employees 
bonus due to profit shortfall 28,943 -
Govenment production grant 68,o00 -

SE 229,338 EE 174,65o
 

4. Inventories:
 

Inventories are comprised of the following:
 

Raw ma'erials 
 SE 44o EE 298
 
Work in progress 31,712 27,211

Finished goods 
 641,ooo 626,o76
 
Fuel 
 2,183 3,o3o

Spare parts 
 243,266 22o,253
 
Packing material 77,4o5 
 92,315
 
Waste materials 14,6o1 
 11,368
 

£1 lplo,6o7 SE 98o,551
 



5. Property, plant and equipment: 

Buildings 
EE 

Machines 
EE 

Vehicles 
EE 

Tools 
EE 

F & E 
EE 

Total 
EE 

Cost to January 1, 1973 

Additions 

Dispos*es 

1,129,326 

-2 3,76o 

( 3,848) 

---- -- ---- - -- --

371,851 

12,:83o 

-

-- - -- --

414,183 

15,334 

- 37,737) 

- -- - - ---

4,7o8 

G19 

-

-------

44,6o4 

l1o 

--- - -

1,964,672 

52,913 

41,585) 

Cost to December 31, 1973 1,149,238 '384,681 391,78o 5,587 44,714 1,976,ooo 

Cum. dep. to January 1, 

Charges for year 

Disposals 

1973 

( 

264,428 

28,5o6 

3,335) 

285,6o5 

2o,668 

-

358,549 

17,495 

C 37,594) 

3,337 

334 

-

37,o82 

1,93o 

- ( 

949,ool 

68,933 

40,929) 

Total dep. to December 31, 1973 289,599 3o6,273 338,45o 3,671 39,o12 977,oo5 

Net Book Value 859,639 
. . . . . . . . ~~ . . . 

78,408 
. . . . . . 

:53,33o 
. . . . . . 

1,916 
. 

5,7o2 998,995 

M-"I 



ANNEX P-35
 

6. rnvmlmnt.
 

Invesints consisted of the follwing: 

1973 1972
 

Goeqzmnt Securities
 

Prxobdtion Loan 3 t 
 EZ 	 18,o96 EX 18,o96
 

Others 

1500 	 share @ EE 2 each 
in the General Company for 
MInerl Wealth 3,ooo 3,ooa 

EE 	 21,o96 EE 21,o96
 

The market value of both is unknmown. 

7-. Accounts Payable:
 

Accounts payable consisted of the
 
following:
 

Suppliers 
 EZ 1"48,796'"E 12a,313
 
Suppliers of assets 
 2o,733 9,373
Other payables 65,127 60,338 
Accrued expenses, including 

E 231,72; and EE 193,422 
respecti ly interest due to the 
Governmnt on its capital 
contribution 238,753 195,769


Paymnts received in advance 12,o17 -13,o58
Profit distribution - Employees. 275 275 
Sundzy accounts payable 	 2o,665 
 24,884 

EE 5o6,366 EE 423,95o
 
. -	 .... 



8. 


UP to D@Mcber 31, 1973 
182,500 ibaees of E2 2 each,fully paid, belonging to the Govemntof .Z2 

Redemmable Governmnt of Egyptparticipation account 

1973.aANNEX P-36 
1973 1972 

'365,ooo .1 365,ooo 

1,54o,83o 1,415,83c 

Er 1,9o5,83o EE 1,78o,83o 

9. Non Distributable Reserves: 

Non distributable reserves osisted of: 

5 

5 

% 

% 

stattory reserve 

Goveznment securities reserve 

EE 69,o85 

3o,124 

E 69,o85 

3o,124 

EE 99,2o9 E 99,2o9 

10. Distributable Reserves: 

Dis+zIltable reserves consisted of: 

Prof.t on sale of assets 
General reserve 
Income tax provision not required 
Reserve in lieu of depreciation
of written off assets 

Profit equalisation reserve 
Sudry provisions 

E 36,518167,33o 

62,912 

134,751 
26,348 

290,659 

EE 25,o83167,53o 

78,ool 

lo9.264 
13,oco 

291,484 

21 718,718 EE 684,362 



AVIV 
EL AB SALIMFE CO. 

PORT SAID SALIMS PROJECT 
PROJECTED INCOME STATEMM, 

(Lz 000) 

Ex r o saI 

GosSlsM 00)1980 

a c (e 000)- LI C 98 9 ­0 

1981 

1 7 54 .5 

1982 

211 8 . 0 

1983 

2 1 7 4 0 

198 

22 0 2 

1 

.0 

291-

2 2 3 0, g 

_L8k 

22 0 

107L 

22 0 

1.i8. 

2230 -n 

.a9i 

22 3 LD 

Labor and Administration 
25.9 

Maintenance - Equipment 31.2Maintenance - Building 3.3Power 
26.9

ai7.7 
Packing 

134.6Inland Transportation 60.oShiploadIng 
3.5Depreciation Expense 164.

Amort. Exp. Deferred Deprec. 0Interest Expense 318.1
Amort. Exp. Deferred Interest 0 
Sub-Total Expenses 822.2 

Profit (Loss)Before Ta. 166.8 

Income Taxes 65.1 

MetProfit(oss) I.E 101.7 

6.6 

56.0 
6.0 

241.8 
110.0 

6.3 
290.8 
0 

563.6 
0 

1366.6 

387.9 

151.3 

236.6 

136.5614.7 

77.9 
8.3 
6b.ng 
336.2 
120.0 
11.7 

108.0 
0 

783.6 
0 

2013.3 

10-.7 

140.8 

63-9 

147.5
69.9 

8142 
8.9 
71.7 

363.0 
120.9 
13.5 

136.6 
0 

816.3 
0 

2161.6 

12.4 

h..8 

__f.6j 

153.0 158.72.5 75.1 
87.3 90.4 
9.3 9.6 
714.4i 77.0 

376.7 390.0 
120.0 120.0 
14.4 15.3 
453.1 469.0 
C 23.7 

823.0 789.3 
0 "80. 

2183.7 2297.8 

18.3 (67.8) 

L 0 

11.2 fLJ 

158.A 
75.1 
90.A. 
9.6 
77.0 
390.0 
120.0 
15.3 
305.7 
23.7 
720.3 
80.0 

2065.5 

164.5 

61.2 

100.3 

158. 
75.1 
90.4 
9.6 
77.0 

390.0 
120.0 
15.3 
305.7 
23.7 
623.3 
80.0 

M19-. 

240.5 

9 

1146.7 

158.4 
75.1 
90.4. 
9.6 
77.0 
39G.0 
120.0 
15.3 
305.7 
2..7 
,60.8 

.0 

1906.0 

324.0 

126. 

197.6 

158. 
75.1 
90.. 
9.6 
77.0 
390.0 
120.0 
15.3 
305.7 
23.7 
167.0 
80..0 

1812.2 

417.8 

163. 

2Ia.8a 

I 
BETAAILABLE COpy 



EL NASH SALINES CO. Annex QP.2
PORT SAID SALlNES PROJECT 

PRODUCTION MID SALES SCHEWLE PROJECTION 

Beginning Salt Stockpile (000 tons) 

1980 

30 

1981 
55 

1982 
110 

1983 
130 

198h1 
lho 

98 

1h5 

19 

115 

196TJ 

1.5 

1988 

115 

198 

lk5 
Salt Harvest After Loss (000 tons) 75 15 115 1.05 lh5 15 115 15 1.5 115 
Salt Available (0OO to6s) 105 200 255 275 285 290 290 290 290 290 
nding Stockpile (000 tons) 55 110 130 1.0 115 15 lhk 15 15 115 

Salt Produced and old (000 tons) 50 90 125 135 1.0 1.5 1.5 15 l5 1%5 

PRODC AND SOLD (OOOTOs) 

Refined:Domestic 1 kg. bags 
Export 25 kg. bags 

10 
20 

15 
35 

20 
o 

20 
o 

20 
ho 

20 
ho 

20 
ho 

20 
ho 

20 
%0 

20 
h0 

Waihed & Ground-Bagged & Domestic 1 kg. 20 ho ho ho ho o ho ho ho %0 
Mulk Washed Export 25 35 ho 5 15 5 h5 5 

SALE PRtICE (LE 000) 
Refined Domestic 1 kg. 21.5 21.5 21.5 21.5 21.5 21.5 21.5 21.5 21.5 21.5 

Export 25 kg. 

Washed & Ground-Bacged & Domestic 1 kg 

23.2 

15.5 

23.2 

15.5 

23.2 

15.5 

23.2. 

15.5 

23.2 

15.5 

23.2 

15.5 

23.2 

15.5 

23.2 

15.5 

23.2 

15.5 

23.2 

15.5 
Bulk Washed-Export 5.6 5.6 5.6 5.6 5.6 5.6 5.6 5.6 5.6 5.6 

GROSS SALES( US 000) 

Refined Domestic ­ 1 kg. 

Export ­ 25 kg. 

Washed Piound - Domestic 1 kg. 

215.e 

h6h.0 

310.0 

322.5 

812.0 

626.0 

130.0 

928.0 

620.0 

h30.O 

928.6 

620.0 

h30.0 

928.0 

620.0 

130.0 

928.0 

620.0 

h30.0 

928.0 

620.0 

h30.O 

928.0 

620.0 

h30.0 

928.0 

620.0 

130.0 

928.0 

620.0 
Bulk Washed - Export 1ho.0 196.0 22.0 252.0 252.0 252.0 252.0 252.0 
TOTAL 989.0 175h.5 2118.0 217h.0 2202.0 2230.0 2230.0 2230.0 2230.0 2230.0 

Pr0T AVAILABLE COPY 



4F 

A~n 
EL MASH ALINES CONPANY 

CALCULATION 
PORT SAID SALINES PROJECT

OF PROJECTED ANNUAL DEFERRED INTEREST AND DEPRECIATION lPUS:E 

1978 im 1980 1981 1982 1983 19811 12a~ 198 1Mi .~a 
1. Production Caracity (iOO Ton) -o- -o- 50.0 90.0 125.0 135.0 110.0 115.0 115.0 1115.O 115.0 1150 
2. Capacity at Full Production (000 Ton) -o- -o- 115.0 115.0 15.0 11.5.0 1115.0 115.0 1A5.0 115.0 1115.0 1115a 

3. Percent Capaity -o- -o- 31.5 62.0 86.2 93.1 96.6 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 1000 

It. Percent Capitalized -0- .:o- 65.5 38.0 13.8 6.9 3.1 -4- -o- -0- -0- -0­

5. Intereat Expense (Total) (LE 000) 122.11 699.3 909.0 909.0 909.0 909.0 852.0 780.3 720.3 611.3 560.8 167D 

6. Amount Capitalized 5zS(LE000) 122. 699.3 590.9 3415.,1 125.11 6 2.T 29.0 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0­

7. Mount Expensed "-6 (LE 000) -o- to- 318.1 563.6 783.6 81,6.3 823.0 789.3 720.3 611.3 560.8 1167o 

8. Amortization Xxpense­ -

Interest (LN 000) 
Deterred 

-o- -a- -o- -- -o- -o- -o- 80.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 

9. Depreciation Expense (Total) (LX 000) -o- -o- 469.0 469.0 169.C 169.0 169.0 169.0 305.T 30.? 305.7 305.1 

0.hiaount Capitalized (LE 000) (1hxlO) -0- -o- 301.9 178.2 61.0 32.1. 15.9 -o- -o- -a- -0- -n­

U.1Amount Expensed (LE 000) (9-10) --- -o- 161.1 290.8 1408.0 36.6 53.1 69.0 305.7 305.'[ 305.7 3052 

12 
.mortization Expense - Deterred 

Depreciation (Lu 000) -- -- -0- -0 -o- -0- -0- 23.7 23.7 23.7 23. T 237 

I/ See Annex , Ioan Repayment and Interest Expense. .I 

2/ Total of capitalized Interest. LE 1975. amortized over the remaining 
life of the plant. 25 years. 

_/ Bee Annex , Calculation of Depreciation Expense. 

/ Total of capitalized depreciation. LZ 592. amortized over the 
remaining life of the plant. 25 years. 

BEST AVAiLABLE CoPY 
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_ _ _ 

___ ___ 

__ __ _ __ __ _ __ __ _ 

ENASE SALINE coImANy A~nozQ-4 ANNY 

WXNRAXE 

~LAN 1­
_I , - iM = 

YEAR __ 

1977
 
1978 53$ _ 3 a.-b 1T. 
.1979 
 195.0 
 c01 l~ I-


1980 i3g .b 0
 
1981 
 13 
 14I 6c ll30.
 
1982 
 !i3
 
1983 
 I. l1310! 
198I ., 

1986 1J7
 

1987 it 81
 

1988 
 16 
 -7 

1989 
 1 156 41 1676 1412 72
 
1990 I13t
 
1991 
 3 15
 

_ 19 14L vi711 21 5.-IT
 
1992 
 L T'i
 

_ __ "
 
II
 

_ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ ,__ I P ­

ii 
 ii
 
________ ___________ ______ ___i 

_ i .
 



EL KASR SALINE COMPANT
 
PORT SAID SAL PROJECT
 

CALCULATION OF DE0ECIATION EXPENSE
($oco) 

FOB - -ECIA3LE SALVAGE 
COST BASIS. VALUE 

SaIt Mwzestinm 358.0 483.0 161.cO 

Brine Intake 231.0 312.0 78.0 

Washing and Stockpilin 1070.0 i445.0 361.3 

Rav Salt Stockpilin TT.0 968.0 242.0 

Salt Rexining 1316.0 LTT'.0 41414..3 

Ground Salt 225.a 290.- 72.5 

Materials Zandling 720.0 972.0 324.a 

Salt Reclaiming- 439.0' 593.0 19T.T 

"-iplcading" 45O.o 608.0 152.0 

Package Moving 72.0 97.0 32.3 

Qualitty Control 2-..0 32.0 8.0 

Mobile Equipment 40.0 54T'.0 182.3 

SUBTOTAL 601T.0 81214.0 2255.4 

U.S. Construction Materials 980.0 1323.0 331.0 

Plant Construction -
Completed & to be 
Completed 12T4.o 318.0 

SUBTOTAL 980.0 2597.0 649.0 

Barges 114.0 28.5 

Civil Works ..-- 36T9.0 -o-

GRAND TOTAL $15219.0 $ 2932.9 

or LE 10653.0 

ESTIMATED TM T" 
LIrh 

6.0 53.7 

10.0 23.4 

15.0 72.3 

15.0 48.4 

20.0 66.6 

20.0 10.9 

.6.0 .1O8.o 

10.0 39.5 

15.0 30.4­

6.0. 10.8 

10.0 2.. 

6.0 60.8 

527.2 

30.0 33.0 

30.0 31.9 

614.9 

20.0 4.3
 

50.0 T3.6 

$ 670.0 

LE 469.0 



,BFST AN,-~ COPY(
 

EL NASR SALINES COMPANY 

ANNEX k. 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

1980 1981 1982 

(L.E. 000) 

1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1939 

Net Income - Other 
Tax 101.7 236.6 63.9 7.6 X1.2 167.81 100.3 146.7 197.6 754.9 

Annual Depreciation
Expense 164.1 

Actual Interest 

Expense 318.1 

Capitalized Interest 590.9 

290.8 

563.6 

345.4 

408.0 

783.6 

125.4 

436.6 

846.4 

62.7 

453.4 

823.0 

29.0 

305.7 

789.3 

-0-

305.7 

720.3 

-0-

305.7 

(44.3 

-0-

305.7 

560.6 

-0-

305.7 

467.0 

-0-

Amortization Expense
Depreekation 23.7 23.7 23.- 23.7 23.7 

Amortization Expense 
Interest '80 0 80.0 80.0 60.0 

Cash Available 

Beginning 1174.8 1436.4 1380.9 1353.2 1316.3 1294.2 1230.0 1200.4 1167.8 1131.2 

Balance Forward -0- 264.8 791.2 1262.1 1134.4 969.8 783.1 432.2 251.7 161.41 

Annual Debt Service 910.0 910.0 910.0 1480.9 1480.9 1480.9 1480.9 1480.9 1480.9 1480.9 

Ending Balance: 
Forward 264.8 791.2 1262.1 1134.4 969.8 783.1 532.2 

1/ Beginning with year 1988, projection shLows a regular cash flow. However,
analysis has assumed that sales price of salt will remain constant, which in 
reality, they will not. Debt service will remain constant, thus we would ex­
pect that cash flow would in fact be positive. 

251.7 [61.411i'411.1 1/ 



AM= 

M UM SA.L COMPABT 
PMM ,- SAL= PRO= 

E0NWCC RAff OF RETM 
C oo rz) 

Tbt&a Costs 

Tota. Capital 
opezating & 
Mintamence Net 

CuLative 
Discounted 

raw Revenues Costs Costs Revenues Cash Flaw 

3..2% 

1978 
1979 
1980 
1981. 
1982 
1983 
1984. 
1985' 
1986 
.198T 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1993. 
1992 

-
-

742T.6 
3215.0 
384.a 
3885.a 
3935".3 
398T.8 
3985.8 
3985.8 
3985.8 
3985. 
3985.8 
3985.8 
3985.8 

5250.0 
787M.M 

4.30.6 
T73.7 

. 1025.2 
1091.3 
1121,..T 

U5T..5" 
15T.5' 
115T.5 
U5T.5 
1157.5 
115T.5 
15T.5 

~ 

(5250) 
(875) 
1312.0 
234&I.3 
zrs.a 
Z93.T 
28"0.6 
2157.52828.3 
2828 . 
288.3. 
2828.3 
2828.3 
2828.3 
2828..3 
2828.3 

(5250) 
(1969.3) 
(104. I)
C9559o8) 
( 8a9T".4) 
"C6834..a) 
( 5T49.5)
C 4818.3)
C4O2.8) 
C 3345.9) 
C 2T6T.5)
C 2273.9) 
C1852.8)
C1493.5) 
CU.869) 

1993 
19914. 
1995 
1996 
199T 
1998 
1999 

3985.8 
3985.8 
3985.8 
398F.8 
3985.8 
3985.8 
3985.8 

1157. 
U7F22.-CT2.­
11r7.5 
115T.51 
115. 5-. 
115T.5 
115T.7 

2828.3 

2828..3 
2828.3 
2828.3 
2828.3 
2828.3 

C 925.4) 

C =o.T) 
C 349.2)
C 210.6)
C 92.3) 
C - a -

8EST AVAILA8EI COP*.
 



AM= T -1 
THRESHOLD DECISI:,;! BASED ON'
 

Ir:1ITIAL EINVIROIMMENT,,L EXAM INATION 

Project Location: Egypt
 

Project Title: Port Said Salines
 

Funding (Fiscal Year and Amount): FY 77 $13 million
 

IEE Prepared By: C. J. Patalive Date: September 14, 1977
 

Environmental Action Recommended: 
Negative Determination
 
(Environmental Assessment, Negative Determination, etc.)
 

Bureau for Near East Decision:

(Approval/Disapproval of Environmental Action Recommended in the IEE.)
 

APPROVED:
 

DISAPPROVED:
 

DATE:
 

Clearances:
 
NE/GC: Date:
 

NE/TECH: Date: 
SER/ENGR:_t :Date: /]Da/e 
TA/OST: Date:
 
(as necessary)
 

BEST AVAII.ABLE COPY
 



ANNEX T-2
 

INITIAL ENVIRO:,. :r EXAMINATION,
 
NARRATIVE r.:SCUSSION
 

1. Project Location: Egypt
 

2. Project Title: Port Said Salines
 

3. Fundin, (Fiscal Year and Amount): FY 77 $13 million
 

4. Life of Project: 30 years
 

5. EE Prepared By: C.J. Patalive Date: September 14, 1977
 

6. Action Recommended: Negative Determination
 

7. Discussion of Mlajor Environmental Relationships of Project Relevant
 
to Attached Imoact Identification and Evaluation Form:
 

See attached Environmental Anaiygis prepared by STV, Inc.
 



ANNEX T-3
 

IMPACT IDENTIFICATI :!AILD EVALUATION FORI A 
Impact 

Impact Areas and Sub-areas and Evaluation] 

A. LANlD USE 

1. Changing the character of the land throh: 

a. Increasing the population N 

b. Extracting natural resources N.. 

c. Land clearing 
L 

d. Changing soil character L 
2-:Altering natural defenses L 
3. Foreclosing important uses L 
4. Jeopardizing man or his works N 

5. Other factors 

B. IVATER QUALITY 

1. Physical state of water L 
2. Chemical and biological states L 
3. Ecological balance L 
4. Other factors 

1/N - lo environmental imact 
L - Little environmental impact
M ­ floderate environmental impact
H ­ 1i environmental impact
U - U-nknown environmental impact. 



ft.;PACT H.EtTIFCATIO': ATD EVALUAT ] 

C. AT,"r)SPIER YC 

1. Air additives 

2. Air pollution 

3. Noise pollution 

4. Other factors 

:i . ANNEX 

L 

L 

L 

T-4 

D. N4ATURAL RESOURCES 

I. Diversion, altered use of water 

2. Irreversible, inefficient commitments 

3. Other factors 

N 

L 

E. CULTURAL 

1. Altering physical symbols 

2. Dilution of cultural traditions* 

3. Other factors 

N 

N 

F. SOCIOECONOM IC 

I. Changes in economic/employment patterns 

2. Changes in population 

3. Changes ix-cultural patterns 

4. Other factors 

N 

N 

N 



lIMPACT 1DEITIFICATIO 

G. HEALTH 

, AiO EVALUATI',. F rU, . ANNEX T-5 

1. Changing a natural environi:.ent N 

2. Eliminating an ecosystem element 

3. Other factors 

N 

H. GENERAL 

I. International impacts 

2. Controversial impacts 

3. Other factors 

L 

L 

I. OTHER POSSIBLE IMPACTS (not listed above) 

Prepared By: C, J, Patalive Date: 9/14/77 

Project Location: Egypt 

Pro.iect Title: Port Said Salines 



ANNEX T-6
 

ENVIRONMEITAL ANALYSIS 

DESCRIIYflON OF THE PAOJE(r' 

The objective of the project is to reestablish El Nasr's
 

Port Sa&id Salines P..ant w.ich was partial.' y dostroyed in 

the 1967 and 1973 Arab-isracli Wars. Prior to 1967, salt 

operations had been carr.zd out on a continuous basis since 

the late 1890's. Thereforo, rather than the establishment 

of a salt plant ata now site, thu project considers the
 

return of complete salt operations to a site which has
 

successfully accommodated SuCh operations in the past. This 
fact has a significant bearing on the extent and outcome of
 

the environmental assessment. If the project scope involved 

selecting a new site for the salt plant, then it is possible 

that the present site zig:-t not be chosen as the best avail­

able location. 
In reestablishing the. Port Said Salines, El Nasr seeks 

to modernize the oporatiohi through the addition of new 

waLtor:Lfls hundling, and , It wa :hLnu and 'cifining equipmont. 

In addition to various vehicle needs (salt harvesters, dump­

ty- trucks, fork-l.%ft tr':cks, etc.), El Nasr's plan calls 

for the construction of a 3 story, 7500 square meter salt 

rofincry and Rtorage r, a nmlt waiihing .fan34y w..th 

stacking equipment, a new pump house to bring Mediterranean
 

Sea water int3 the plant' toncentration ponds, a vehicle
 

and equipment maintenance workshop, and the construction of
 

dikes for aploximately f 7e new concentration ponds.
 

6LOCATION 

The Port Said Saline., Plant is located in the Port Said
 

urban area. This urban area includes both the settler0ts
 

of Port Said and Port Fouad, and is immediately adjacent to
 

BEST AVAILALE CoPY 



ANNEX T-7
 

thr head of the Suez Canal. The'area's location within the 

Arab Republic of Egypt (A.R.E.) is shown in Figure 7-1. 

The Port Said Saline,, is locatud on the uasturn (Port 

Fouad) side of the Suez Canal. It is bounded on the north 

by the Mediterranean Sea, on the south and east by Lake 

hiallaha, and on the west i)y Port Founad (see Figure 7-2). 

El Nasr also uses the Suez Canal Authority's (SCA)'shipping 

quay on the Suez Canal where salt is loaded into barges 

and transferred to freighters for export. The company is 

authorized to use a government road for access to the quay. 

PROPOSED PRODUCTION PROCPSSES AND POTENTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL
 

PROBL]E14S 

1lasic solar salt productiou is a rolatively simple 

lroctus that has hoon perriormed lor centurius. Through 

tlh u.so or modarn ianagumunt techniques and material 

hauzdlin,4 equipnoat, tho operation becomes a highly effi­

cient process. There are approximately si"x steps in the 

basic salt operation. Briefly, these include the following: 

L.- Water Intake 

Sea water is drawn from the sea by high volume (approx­

imately 2300 cubic meter!, per hour or 10,000 gallons per
 

minute) water pumps aticl 0~os hrjIeVd ito none, rath:inj PondR,. 

Concenitratioa 
The size of the concentration ponds are approximately
 

ten times the total area ot the crystallizers (described
 

below). Typically, in a solar salt operation, there are
 

between 10 and 15 concentration ponds. These ponds are 

usually divided by mud levees, which may be irregvlar in 

shape, and are flooded with concentrated sea water to a
 

depth of approximately 30 centimeters (12 inches). In the
 

concentration ponds, water is concentrated to the point of
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°
salt saturation (25 Be* or a specific gravity of 1.21. 
During the concentration. procoss, calcium sulfate is
 
precipitated out of the solutiou. IL.-thoro aro sueficiont 
a,,uzats oC calcium sul.fa-L it caj ho recovered. 

Cv'yasal lZILtLoL 

Thu 'ui,.Iiii brIiiu (iatLtraLud LOdLIUi chloriLdu SOIuLLIon) 
i L,ut&:alui'rud Itito Lhu -:ryist .t'lz.Lnl. pC)( 1du. Thutu poilda 

itru LypicaL:ly 25,UUO tiqustru incLurt (5 ILuruUb) ill dizu aud of 
L ru:ular uhapu Lu.,accuo,,odaLu- harvuLti url utuilt,,ullL. Thu 
cryu-Lllizors further co-curttrate tho brina to approximatoly 
299 Ba ,)r a specific gers.vity of 1.26. Salt is harvested 
when. the: salt. bed -attain- a. depth. of 15 to 20 centimeters 
(T to 8 inches).
 

Just before harvesting, the bitterns (concentrated with 
magnesium chloridu.and other halogea salts, and. from which 
80% of the sodium chloride has precipitated) are drained. 
f ma.nesium quantities are sufficient, the magnesium is 

recovered. However, if not, the bitterns must be disposed 
of. This disposal is... normally accomplished by diluting tLe
 
bitterns.with sea water to reduce concentrations from 40 to
 
10 times that of sea water. This is considered to be a safe
 

leol for bi,Wtorn dispow'..
 

Harvesting
 

At lease once a yen:, raw salt is harvested from each 
crystal!.izer. Harvestia: 4s accomplished mechanicaily by 
equipment which resembles highway construction machinery.
 
The harvestable salt cak!- is removed from a permanent salt 
floor and loaded into tr-iks from which it is dumped onto 
belt conveyors which de"',er it to wash plant or refinery 
areas. CcOPY 
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flfnin
 

'fliu r1LW Slt iU IMz,'1%c'VUd ,U a cluaL wLsh brina to remove impurities and additional bitterns which may adhere
 
to the salt crysta3.s. 
*RLiningincreases the sod:ium chloride
 
content from approxim.itely 95% to 99%. 
Depending upon thefinal product quLA]ity do.ired, sodium chlorido crystals may
be reduced and screenod -o roquirod Sizo. The salt is then
dried, rekhucing, nroi'tihr'6 ;ovols',to*oppz'oximatoly 0.214,

Impurities removed in thu washing process include 
magnesium, calcium sulfate, and such insoluble mattor as
silt or sand; ThOSo iIpipuritius appear in the forms of a
sludge which is not oconomically disposable. It is, there­
fore, normally used for road and dike stabilizing. 

Shippinz'
 
After refining, the salt is shipped by trucic 
or barge


to domestic or export markets. 
A typical plant will ship

50% of their salt in bulk and 50% in 
 bags. 

RELATIONSHIP OF THE PROJECT TO GOVERNMENT OF THE A.R.E. POLICY 
Since the roes'*ablis-hment of the Port Said Salines


Plant is sponsored by the Government of the A.R.E., and the
Genoral Or4anizatioua Tor "ndubtrializtion (GOFI), through
El Nasr, the project is in accordance 'withgovernment policy.

The project is in l.-ne w:'t6h 
current national, regn.-_al, and

local goals and objectives (as described in The Master Plan

for Port Said). 
 These goals and objectives support general.

industrial growth,. 
They include:
 

.
 Increased rates *1± economic development
 

. Increased standard of living through expanded employ­ment at decent wages in hdalthy, efficient, and pleasant
 
environments.
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" Development of an industrialization plan.
 

" Developneat of an adequate number and raae of job 

opportunitios to absorb the availablo labor force at all 

growth stages.
 

* Use of the Saoz Canal as tho spinu of doveloputent, 

instead of a boundary. 

I)IJ8CIWyI'I0N OF OTIiER iltOJJiaC'l N 'ril' SAME GENERAL AREA 

WhI1CII ARE FINANCED BY U.S. GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 

There arc Lwo titudieuo in the Port Said area which are 

finatced, or will he fina.cod, by USAID. These are: 

* Port niodernizatic , rehabilitation, and planning. 

* Waterworks and wastewater facilities master plan 

There arL no oiher L.S. financed activities in the
 

Port Said area.
 

Port Modernization, Rehabilitation and Planninz
 

This study is being performed by Frederic It.Harris, 

Inc., Consulting Engineers. New York, N.Y., U.S.A. The 

purpose of the study is to prepare an in-depth analysis of 

port needs, as well as detailed ilanning- for EL now, expanded, 

and modernized port, 

Waterworks and Wastewater Facilities Master Plan 

USAID will soon award a contract to develop a plan and 

program for immediate rehalbilitatioa projects. The plan 

will also include a'25-ye!r development progrram tor water­

works and '-astewater facilities.
 

SOCIOECONOMIC 'SETTING
 

Population Trends
 

The 1976 Master Plan for Port Said (MPPS) estimated
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curz'unt populatioa at botiveon 290,000 azid 330,000 ,)orsons. 

Port Said was evacuated atter the 1967 war and people have 

been returning since 1974. Population is expected to 

incrvass rapidly to appro-A.mately 750,000 to 1,000,000 

persons by the year 2000. The planners reached this fore­

cast by atSuming: a docl~no in the fertility rate based in 
accordance with iuternational oxporience aud a constant 

rate of migration to Port Said. 

Lnqp.oymnot 1'endrc 
'lhe IPPS projocto thlt ;he 1966 lthor force of 70,OU 

will I1,row to 260,000 by tho yowr 2000, T1'10o 7-1. Ihulaw 
shows projected popilatin., household, and ]Abor force 

lovols.
 

Table 2 

Port Said - Projected Population, Households, and Labor
 
Force (in thousands)
 

1980 1985 1990 2000 

Population 384 '71 561 750 

Xa e 195 '.2 288 3 

Female 189 229 273 366 

Households 83 99 120 169 

Labor Force 114 751 184 266 

hale 100 130 154 214 

Female 14 21 v 30 51 

Source: Master Plan for Port Said; Bullen and Partners,
 

Ot ul., March, 1970 
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LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE 

fRoad Systom
 
Thu Port Said urban.area is served by 
two majcr inter­

rulgional roads, one to E1 Qutara and Isinailia, to the south,
aid Lhu othur to DiunluttiL Lo thu wurL. WlIth:la thu urbnu arua
thu road uystoin bualcally consists or a grlI neotwork. Wl thiuPort 1ouad the grid is intersoctod by several long diagonals.

The AIPPS found no i:ntancu'r of trnffc c:ostn oitio withinthe urbaa area and,; Ln..fact, cited -Lgenarml ovor-provision
 
ot road space. 
The plan. fnr the year 2000 cavisioas increased,

but still re!ativeiy law . owsiership for Port Said rcsidents.
The pla. omphasizes non-wntorizad- movement, includng 'pedes­trians, cyclists, and animal traffic. 
Moat motor vehicle
 
traffic is restricted to "gioal, arterial, and distributor
 
roads with the urban struit systom ruserved for pedestrians,

cyclists, and service veh 4 :les. 
 This plan should ease
 
conflicts between internal and through tra tic and help
expedite the movomet 
 ot people and g-oods through the urban
 
area.
 

The salines plant, itselt, is counected to the roadnotworc by a rough, dirt road. In order to improve access 
to the salines plnt -for both workar; and truc1¢ truflic, thin
 access road should be upgraded to modern standards.
 

Ferries 
Ferries (operating across the Suez Canal between Port

Said and Port Fouad) play a vital role in uaifying the urban
 
area and enabling the mov-.ment of people and goods between
 
the two settlements. 
The service (operated by the Suez
Canal Authority) is fast, frequent, and cheap. 
The ferries
 
are the only means cf tr-..sportation between Port Said and

Port Fouad, and, therefor , al1 materials bound to or from 

BEST AVAILABLE COPY
 



ANNEX T-14
 

Port Fouad (and the sali.s plant) must come by ferry. In 

addition, the ferry is-the major commutation mode for workers 

at the salinas pla:.L. t. -,mpazy bus ?:ieots oach shift of 

workurs at the Tarry and carries them to the planL. 

At prosent,.thore are fivu boats operating. The
 

crouslill; Lsi'Icu ilpprnximitru1y IiJvu mntuLus and total trip 

tiumu uvuralcoh approxiuuLtuly thirtoon mlni tos (incJuding 

wai Ing Lime). 

The M1PPS onvitdions rutontion of tho ferry system, since 

forecasted year;'200 movemonts between Port Said and Port 
Fouad will not justify a tunnel or high-level bridge. The 
planners propose that the present ferry service be limited 

to pedestrian traffic only, and that two additional ferry 

operations (at different locations) be instituted for 

vehicular and pedestrian traffic. If implemented, this
 
o plan would expedite the movement of people and goods and 

should be an asset to nll in Port Found, includnsT the 
salinas plaut. 

Railroads 

At present, thero ii no rail service to or from Port 

Said. ail 'facilities suszainod'lbavy dOiamtive during tho 
19C7 war and murvine has nut yet been reinstitutodl. locou­

struction is currently undurway,.'and new lines are contemplated. 

Restoration and expansion of rail service to Port &-aid should 

prove valuable to El Nasr as an alternative shipping mode. 

Fresh Water Supply 

Port Said draws its fresh water from the Nile River by
 
means of the Abassa Canal (a branch of the Ismailia Canal). 

Water is treated at the El Raswa Water Treatment Works on
 

the Port Said side of the canal. Port Fouad receives its
 

fresh water by means of *wo 500 millimeter pipes located
 
under the Suaz Canal. Water supply is, at present, considered
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deficient due to a lack of flow in the Abassa Canal and 
unrepaired war damage inflicted on the El Raswa works. 

The SCA has initiated an improvement program for the
 
repair, rehabilitation, modification,nd extension of
 
thu I':l Rati;L Watur 'rruatm,,oanLt Plan L. Tha improvumunL, of 
tho trittaLiunt plant, aloeji wi Lh thu uxtuitbloi of Lho watur 

dl IlJitz' i,ItI l ; ysLnm, HhO ,lUIII Vi L'rO ;u ikdo(lttaLo an(It 'ol ablo 
fresh wator supply for thu salt pl.-nt. 

Electricity
 

Port Said rolio on ".tn own dional Ironaratorm (Ot 41 
Jlaswa) which'are oporatet,' by tha'I1&Typtiin J-lootrj'city 

Autiority (EIEA). Port Fl. :ad has a separato system with 
its own diesel generatin- station operating at 5500 volts
 
(stepped down ,to 400 and .10 volts), 50 cycle, 3 phase. 
By 1977, the Port Said aj.:1 Port Fouad systems will be inter­
connected by means of submarine cables under the Suez Canal. 
In 1978, when the EEA has agreed to meet El Nasr's power 
needs, Port Fouad's power characteristics will be changed 
to 11,000 volts (stopped downi to :80 and 220 volts), 50 

cycle, 3 phase. 
By 1981, a 220 and 6 kv overhead transmission line 

from Ismailia will supply the Port Said urban area with 
power from EFA's 220 kilovolt (kv) network in Lower Egypt. 
When the Ismailia interconnection is complete, the existing
 

diesel generators will revert to standby duty. This will
 
ensure a highly roliable .ource of electricity for the salt
 

plant. 
Should powor fail cJ?.r!n, tho washing or refining process, 

there will be no harm to the equipment or the environment.
 
Activities-will mer-ly c- - to a halt until the power is
 
restored.
 

/ C'/
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Sewage Disposal
 

The Port Said side '" the Suez Canal is served by a
 
municipal sewerage syster which delivers sewage to a
 
treatment plant located a! the northwest edge of Port Said,
 
between the coast road ai:. Lake Llanzala. Despite several
 

pIlUaL cxpaiasio.-., the amount of sewagu delivorod to the 

plant far exceeds capacity','.:.nd, as a result, is not treated
 

before being discharged into Lake Manzala.
 

There is limited information available about the
 

sewerage system on the Pc.t Fouud side. The 1;PPS states 

that many homeslhavelseptic tanks which discharge sewage
 
into dralnaLre chaucls loadinir to thu Suez Caal, the 
Ai.'.turant SBt$ or thu I1iU.I'141y tl.'Ua U1lhit Or 1101't11,'ouad, 

In addition, the plan nots, tlhire is a municipal sovrage
 
system with a single pumping station located in the port's 

workshop area (just south of Port Fouad). Hare, unitreated
 

sewage is discharged into the Suez Canal. 

The I;PPS proposes fu. nier uxtensions to the existing
 

plant, and that troated effluent. be dischargod into the 

Mediterranean. The propcsed wastewater facilities master
 

plan will investigate anC" evaluate alternativos to determine
 
th most economical mothod and dogreo of treatment and typo 

of disposal. 

EXISTING AND PI1OPOSI1D L.- USE OF SUIRlOUNDING AIt'A 

Existin"Land Use
 

The Port Said Salines Plant is located on a relatively
 
rerote land area east of Port Fouad. The site is bounded
 
on the north by the Mediterranean Sea, on the south and east
 
by Lake llallaha, and on the west by Port Fouad.
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The Mediterranean shoreline, to the north, is undeveloped

and currently used by the A.R.Z. armed forces.


Lake Mallaha- is an a-ive fishery lake covering approx­imately 6 square km. It an.s importaot local source of 
fish for domestic consumpwioa,
 

Iligh-rise apartments have recently been built on the
oustur'li ,ollo of hurl. L'outaid, IldJaunal; 'Lo land I Natiii isuaiulfi ro- Iiitturt, disp)ouni.4 anad wiLhilu vluw of porliols of
Lides t IIL pl1111 L. 
 L LI.z' irs, £'oUpoLLutI thaLt a&uI Ivuzr. Ly
may. bo built on n. portion oC th iti 
 bittoru disposal area. 

Future Land Use
 
Thur are 
three factors which will have a major effect
 on. shaping future land use in the area of the salt plant.These are cross-canal transportation, Suez Canal Bypass,

and locatiozn of now port facilities..
 
V Cross-canal 
 trans '),utation- Th lack of a directhighway link. (bridge or t,.'txol) bletwon Port Said uid Port.Fouad is a dterrent to i. crasod dovolopment in Port Found.At present, all poople, mataerials, and oquipmont-must cross
 

the canal by ferry.
 
Suoa Canal lypass - The 
 SCA is creating L bypasscanal to roroute northbound tanker traffic that now passes
I 'QoLIrJ;I cite puzt; of Part.JaId (suo Illiguru 7-2). The bypasscanal will forn, the oaste-n boundary of the salinos plant.

To compensate El. Nasr for land used for the bypaub, tihe SCAis dikin. and creating new land areas south of the oxistingplant. of this land willPart be used by the salines plant,while remaining- portions 
- .111be used for a dredge dumping
 
area by the SCA. 
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In addition to the ijpact on ultimate salt(doacribod in SOction 2 't this roport), tho bypass canal
 

prodUction
 
will blod, the plant from any expansiol Possibilities
tho 
 uLIL. Lxpajjuso on

1 iltu LI.ko Maliliha woird4 iicziu'u,ll'tlUtl L t5se0 saltmi iIl -'J:r;.fly ILfrocL Lho ImpaorLaL iano 

Now port facilitJes - The AIPPS proposes 
a now port,
 
south of the existin, porxt facilities#
side, Opposite Lake Mallaha. 

on the Port Said

This proposed site and several
alternatives 
are boing'reviowed

in thoir by Freduric R..flarrts, IncPort hModorn±i.lolut UIUIiJontatiStudy. alOne altornative a
'ould place the now port on the
Moditorraaoan 
coast to tho west of Port Said, With new ship
ropair racilities located on roclaimed land south of the
salt plant.


If major investments 

FOuad side of 

are made in areas on the Port
the Suez 0,.ral, and, especially if cross-
Canal transportLtiol problems are .solved, thoreincreasing pressuro wouldfor beland development in the vicinityt!a ofsalt plant.
The MPPS Proposes -aatplant contiue in the sallie 

the land now held by the salinesUse, AgrJcuTUral
P2lnnua deveopment istoz & a t of the bypass.the Plant, the Ir;j.odlatolyMPPS proposes ILI, west of"urban amenity area" serving
as a buffer between the plant and heavy industry, paark land,and Port Found. 

The Proposod Land USo Plan io shown in Figura 7-3.
Duo to tr&u4porztiou problems between the cast and west
banks of the Suez Canal. the plan envisios only limited
expansion in Port Fouad. 
Most development is Planned for
the Port S.-' Side of tk.a canal, where land reclamation 
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from Lake mlanzala and' o "'4 ' low-lying areas is planned to 

vastly increase Port Sn.-" s land area. 

ATMOSPIII'IIC "CONDITIONS 
"1 t(.11icozi W i ILLluouj:,', 'J( .1 oiici HO I111 e:oIILori ulpoi 

pruvall InLk winds and poluLiJoni mOtrCut Utpwild frol tho s,.1t 

)]ant and sozultLivo land uuu.-J downwilnci I'ron thy a lmt 1pajL. 
Thol-u :iourcui uI)wlud could havo a dotriinuu~tl u:l'oct on 

tv.' sa1l plant, while sonsitivo downwind arous may suffer 
if air pollutants are released during- salt plant operations. 

The sa't"plant would ho' ''cuistive Ia any Upwind 
po]lutants that might settle on concentrating ponds, crystal­

lzozrs or salt stockpiles, impzir'i.- Salt quality. At El 

Nasr's EL Mex Salinas Plant near Aloxandria, for example, a 
ai ~?hhI0i111OiUU'V pIWI Coemuat LIu.4t Set tlus.Lip 1OW. Which1 

In crystllizers and oveit apoar.i in tho ilal salt product, 
Downwind land uses way be sonsitive to salt dust 

produced in the re:iningr nrocess. -Dust, however, can be 

eliminated as a poiiutan. Ly using dust collectors and wet 

scrubbers. The salt stac:; will not be susceptible to 
dusting for two rensons. IFirst, the washed or raw salt will 

contain approximately G%.bisture; and second, during the 

aging process the salt crystals adhere to one another to 

form a hard salt cover. 

With the exception of minor vehicular pollutants 
produced from trucks and harvesters, there will be no air 

pollutants pw.luced. 

According tp an an~iysis of monthly wind roses Tor tho 
Port Sa± aan ooltained I. The IMPS, prevailing winds are 
frnm the northwest. The'-; -rF no existing or planned land' 

developments to the northwest which should produce undue 
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lovols ol air pollutants, and none to thu southeast which 

would be sensitive to any pollutitts originating front the 

salt plant. 

SOIL CONDITIONS
 

Operation of the Port Said Salines Plant will not
 
adversely affect soil conditions. The soils at the plant
 
rnno froin a silt to fine saud undorlain by clay, silt, 
az14 'C1o salld. Ground watter is I.i~ileaJ ly SaI I)Ocause 
adjacunt surface is water from thewater salt leditorranean
 
Sea, Lake Mallaha, and the Suez Canal. The operatic. of
 
the salt plan%' wt.l no' -irsy affect -round wator.
 

Soils within, und aujaceat 'to,:the salin.tes plant are 
not suitable for buildinIV:' roquiring- heavy foundations, 
but are acceptable for thi' proposed buildings planned for 
construction by El Nasr. 

Because of unstable ,il conditions, care must be 
taken when selecting the location and height of the salt 
stacks. Their weight is such that they could cause soil 
movement which would cause uplift pressures on nearby
 

plant buildings.
 

SONIC CONDITIONS
 

Sonic conditions refor to noise pollution probability, 
the noise sensitivity of surrounding land development, and 
the sound-carrying characteristics of air at the project 

sito. 
Noise levels at spect.fic areas on the site may be
 

objectionable (pump houses, salt washers, trucks, etc.). 
Despite excellent souLvd-c..-.yia,, character..stics, however, 
noise is quickly dissipat,.-d by virtue uf the plant's location 
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acld dlitnico frow Hurrouulan dov lopdc iruai. The plant, 
itLU Ii', cOv(!': zlpl:OXiai ;,y 10 square kiloineters and is 
IW0W lMI'i'lidud hy uudlovo . ct 1,w1 I 1 ijarshoul and wator
 
b,' .oH which act 1H. burJ,, ..
 

VISUAIL CONDITIONS 

Visual concitions are not typically a problom with 
solar salt plants. 
Salt rlants are usually located rway
 
irom any dovelopod areas 
which ,nay bo wonsitivo to visual
 
conditions, i.u., the viow 
of the salt plant from the
 
surrounding area. The Port 
 Said Salinus Plant is unusual 
in that it is quite close to Port Fouad and is in sight of
 
a nearby high-rise apartment complex. Because the salt
 
plant existed at the time the housing was built, it is
 
reasonable to assume thn; acceptance of the view of the salt
 
plant be a pro-existing condition for residence. 
 It is more
 
logical to ask whether hcasing should be constructed within
 
view of a salt plant.
 

WASTE DISPOSAL
 

Sewage from Port Sai. and Port Fouad should not pose
 
a threat to final salt quality or sea water quality at 
the
 
point whore Ll Nasr's sea water intaco is planned (see
 
Section 2.2 for details of the proposed sea water intake
 

lc. tion).
 

Ships moving 'through the Suez Canal are not permitted
 
to dump wast! in the ca 
 ? or -Vithin Egyptian territorial
 
waters. 
This rule is enforced by the SCA's helicopter
 
patrol. Therefore, shipping should not endanger feed water
 

quality.
 

las" PM o 
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Sewge 63nerated by the salt plant's omployees1 is 
treated ia septic tanks on the southern side of the admin­

istration butldini, guest house, ad V,'age, and is not a 
threat to salt or water r-uality. 

POTENTIAL EINVIRONf lNTAL 1'IOBLEMS 

Several minor onvirerxmontal issues are raised in the 

plauned salt production process to be used at Port Said. 

However, in each case, a '!itigmting measure nelratos or 
tialimi.zos the problem. 

Bittern Disposal
 

The magnesium.ia.-the bitterns is a valuable resource 

and can be recovered. However, El Nasr plans to dispose of 

their .itterns since 175,630 tons of raw salt will produce 

insuf 4'icient quantitios to make recovery economically 
feasible. Since the bitterns are concentrated to more thin 
-10 timus that of se n watcr, discharge into the sea would 

probably have adverse effects on varine and plant life. 

To remedy this, the bitterus will be first diluted with 
sufficient quantities of sea water so that the concentration 

level is reduced to ten times that of sea water. At this 
level, the water m=y be c-fely returned to the sea with no 
harmlul effects. This procedure has been accepted by the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for bittern disposal in the 

United States. 

Cross-Canal Transportatioa
 

Earlier in this sectiou it was shown that lack of a 
direct highway connectioL between Port Said and Port Fouad 

is a deterrent to develop.rent in Port Fouad and that the 

fe.,:y system constrains .'ee movement. This situation is 
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mitigated by the fact that the saline plant operates well
 

within the constraints. ..the ferry system, and is, there­

fore, au ideal industry ior the Port Found side of the
 
cr-al. This is so because it can operate, to a large extent,
 

without the ferry systeL. :.or receipt zf its raw materials
 

(soa water) or s 4.pment of a large portion of its .inal 

product.
 

.'uul Oil Stora-lu
 

APjproxl,,atoly 40,OOu lifters'uofQiusol-fuel will be 

stored at the sa3iaes plant to powur the vuhiclo which 
El Nasr will:oper-te. Witeno',er;such quantities of fuel 
are present,-steps must be taken to guard against the possi­
bility of spills that may cause ground aind groundwater 

contamination. This will be accomplished by the construction 

of dikes and containment areas which will hold at least 

twice the capacity of th'n fuel oil tanksl. The dike area 
and tank base will also La covered with an impermeable
 

material to contain spills.
 

I .. 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE IMPA'LS 
It will take approximately 24 months to complete the 

reestablishment and moderuization.of the Port Said Salines 
plnt. During this period, between 100 and 200 additional 
w"-hors will be. on the site. Ginco m-oot work-r ";ill b 
from the local area, thezoe should be ao temporary housing 
problem. 

The transportation c-7 conv'ruction equipment and
 
, 	material to the salt plant will be constrained by the limited 

capacity of the cross-canal ferry system, and the added 
burden,on the ferry systt-.B will. further inhibit the movement 
of people and goods. 
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out 1.sPe,. may ria,.-w'!i.1i1y, bur periodic w&tering
should minimize the problam a cL shoull not affect sa.lt 
quality-. 

During construction, limited salt production.will 
continue with ao. foresoon lmpactu oI 
 salt quality.

Construction'phae impacts are summarized in Table -?.
 

3{QfORT-TER IMPACTS 
Short-term impac:ts ao- thoso oxtandinT 

conatrutiun. phase- for short period of 
beyond 

time. 
tho 

There are 
ti, rorewmou advortse uhort -'orm iuipaet. 

ShurL-tcrmL impacta ara uummarizud in Tahla -Z. 

LONJ-.TERLI I IPACT'S 

Long-teu. impacta will last long a£Ztr the 'product
is completed. There ara no foreseun. long-term adverse 
impacta. 

This conclusion, is s'3ported by the following; 
. Salt opertion.s haWe beon succossfully carried out

oLL the site for approximr"9,ty seventy years.
W The creation of tho Suez Canal Bypass will form mbarrier that-wil .presorv.the fishing industry in Lake

Mallaha. Fishing might otherwise suffer if the salt plant 
werato expand into the L3!ce.
 

Long-term impacts a e summarized in Table -2.
 

R-SOCHABLE ALTEMATIMv TO T1lE PROPOSED ACTION 
Since there are no Li.osolved conflicts concerning 

alternative uses of available resources, no analysis is 
necessary. 

BEST AVAILABLE COPY
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FOJRESE.fLE, UKAVOLDMflaX1 . VERSE ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS 
Durina; tho CoLIsLructloI phaso, air construction
 

oquipmaut und plunit m-turijl will 
 have to croon the canal
 
iy forry. The i1,itiLud calieclt'y o the forry mystem and
 
thu ndldu hurdlult placudt upou IL will furLhu.Z 
 iuhiblt tho 
mov,.nt of people and goods. 

LOCAL S I RT-T] M USES 111.OF 1MNVI'ONMENT AND TIE MAINTENANCE 
AND ENNiCEMENT OF1 LONGC-TIcLM PIRODUMTVITY 

There are zo short or long-term losses, and, therefore,
 
no trade-of fs 'to be "ansiderod.
 

IRREVERSIBLE AND IRRETIEVAfnLE COMITAIENTS OF NATUIAL OR 
CULTURAL RESOOnCES 

There are no irreversible or irretrievable commitments 
of natural or cult1ural re..urces. 

All salt harvesting, htndling, washing, and refining 
equipment is retrievable and moveable for use nt other sites. 
kost buildings at the salt plant aro adaptable to alternative 
uses. Capital invostmnent in the reconstruction of the salt 
pans is quite low. Therefore, reinforcing the commitment of 
this land to a salt plant is reversible and retrievable and 
the land could be relaimed for an alternative use. 

OTHER U.S. INTERESTS THAT AY OFFSET ADVERSE ENVIROmENTALEFFECTS 

With the exception. of tbhe cross-canal ferry limitations, 
there are no adverse environmental effects. 
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Tablo 2 

urnuiary 'f - wi'o1ronn tl Iipts
 
Impact 
 Conr:truction ShortArwi Long Secondary, .. Plu so Tormi Tur I ,p 

0 - + 0 - + 0 - 0 -

Air x x x 

Frosh Wator x x x x 
SoIL lWa or x x x x 
Land x x xFlora. NP NP NP NPFauna 
 NP 
 NP 
 NP 
 NP.
Socio-EconomLc 

Conditions x
 

Solid Waste x x xNoise 
 x 
 x 
 x 
 x

Radiation 
 NA 
 NA 
 NA 
 NA
 
Hazardous NA NA NA
Substances 


NA
 
Natural Resources 


x

Development x x
 
Energy Sourcos 
 x 
 x xTransportation x 

x 
 x 
 x 
 x
 

Key
 

+ Positive Impact
 
O No Impact
 

- Negative Impact
 

NA Not Applicable
 
NP 
Not Present
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